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Financial Highlights
MBEE

Percentage

2017 2016 Change

20175 20165  EFHAHANL
(Approximately) (Approximately) (Approximately)
(#49) (#4) (##4)

Revenue (RMB million) WAANEREBET) 5,688.7 7,324.4 (22.3%)
Gross profit margin ES B 22.0% 17.6% 4.4%
Consolidated net profit (RMB million) SENBEARERET) 85.7 76.6 11.9%
Profit attributable to equity shareholders AN AR FE (G

of the Company (RMB million) (AR®EBET) 60.7 87.0 (30.2%)
Net cash generated from operating TESSEENE A 7 SBIS

activities (RMB million) (AREBET) 85.6 72.2 18.6%
Basic and diluted earnings per share BRERARBERF

(RMB cents) (ARED) 0.98 1.40 (30.0%)
Proposed final dividend per share ERERARERE (BI)

(HKD cents) NIL NIL 0.0%
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Corporate Culture & Mission
TEX R FED

OPERATION PHILOSOPHY ReEEe
Technology leads markets R 5| R ™%
Services create value ARG EI:EEE
ENTERPRISE MOTTO 3

To do things honestly BEEME

To treat people sincerely HEFA

To understand causes and results RBAEIE

To unify theory and practice MiTE—
CORPORATE MISSION D

For the country (Ml BNIREX - AP -
For the customers BET - BIRE]

For the employees
For the shareholders

MANAGEMENT CONCEPTS EEER
Sustainable Development SEER
Circular Improvement BRI
Statistics Analysis FET DT

Continuous Improvement TERS
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Corporate Culture & Mission

EE LR En

PRODUCT CONCEPTS
Service

Quality

Cost

WEALTH CONCEPTS
Wealth means responsibility

TALENT CONCEPTS
Judging people on his performance
Talent comes first

MARKETING CONCEPTS

Identify the needs of the customers
Create value for the customers
Provide best services to the customers

CULTURE CONCEPTS
Respect

Communicate
Understand

Integrate

Pursue

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES
Independent Brand

Independent Intellectual Property
Independent Marketing Network
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

B S~

If you wish to succeed, you should use persistence as your
good friend, experience as your reference, prudence as your
brother and hope as your sentry

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Yuanda China
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group” or “Yuanda China”), | hereby present to you the Group’s
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Reporting
Period”).

In 2017, the global economic growth rebounded to 3%, the fastest
since 2011. China contributed about a third of global economic
growth. However, the increase in interest rate and the trade
protectionism in the USA, geopolitical crisis and the shrinking scale
of quantitative easing in Europe make the global economy uncertain.

\.

A
R

\

WMRRFERL > BUELRRE ~ U
BRASHE UEEARE UFER
IHE o

B BABIR

RAABRERERFEZERBR 2GR
AR EREMBAR(FFE[AE®] =k
(BAHE]DESS((ESE]]) AAT
SRAEBEHE2017F12A31BIEFE
(IREWE])) 2 FERE -

017 F 2B R B - BREE
3% @ ERE2011 FURFHRIER - PEH
HEHREEIERNERMELOE1/3- B2
EEME EHESHREEERE
BBUREH - BUMGER 2L ERRER -
MR B FRICERA T2 T EERAE -
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company decreased by about RMB26.3
million or 30.2% as compared with last year to about RMB60.7
million (2016: about RMB87.0 million). In 2017, the Group was
awarded with 52 new projects with an aggregate amount of
approximately RMB4,156.1 million. For the year ended 31 December
2017, the remaining contract value of backlog of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB16,120.6 million, which will strongly
guarantee the development of the Group in the next 2-3 years.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Under the background of slower development of domestic
real estate market and economic and political uncertainty of
oversea markets, the Group will continue to take a relatively
prudent operating strategy. While evaluating the new orders
comprehensively, the Group will also strengthen the control level
of the existing orders, the budget management and cost control,
as well as the collection of receivables and foreign exchange risk
management, to ensure healthy and sustainable development of
the Group’s curtain wall business. Meanwhile, the Group will adapt
to the changes in the market, and strengthen the expansion of
overseas markets strategically.

EWOE

HZE2017F12A31BILFE - AT
IR EEFEH AR 60.7 A& T (2016
F:OARKS7T.0EET) BREAFRD
HAANR®E26.3BEL330.2% : 72017
FoOREBHAETRS2ME 28408
BEHOAREA4156.1 A& T ¢ L2017
F12A31H  AZRITARESELH AL A
R#¥16,1206 B&7L - AEBEARK2-3F
B EIRMHE NRE -

RBRE

FEANEHETSERBE  HIM5E
KEBEREBUSTRENAER T A%H
1B R B BIELC SRR - ¥
BRI EETRET MR - AT

FAIEMNERKYE  REEEEENK
AR - D0 5% FE WK K (] e % SN

frER - AMREEDEE ERERE
E’ﬁ*)?% o [AFF - A5 [ ¥ IE fE T 35 1) B
b - IR ISR SIS HI R o
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FEHRE

The Group will continue to strengthen internal control level, kick-
start the overall information management system, improve the
efficiency of management, strengthen team construction, implement
effective employee incentive mechanism, and improve per capita
performance, so as to ensure orderly and efficient operation of
various businesses of the Group.

Curtain wall industry will step into an integration period, during which
large scale companies with high-quality will outstand through the
competition. Also, the Group will actively seize the opportunities and
seek for favorable investment opportunities to accelerate the industry
integration and the strategic transformation of enterprise and create
more values for shareholders.

Kang Baohua
Chairman

29 March 2018

AEEBRENBNHELKT  2E
BEBEALERRG  RATERE
s EBRE - A ML A TREE
5 ORFAGER  BREBSEES
B SRR -

BETESEABRSRS  BRES
TEARTEA - HEERRENNX
B o AN BTSRRI A0
B NERERES HEFTREE - B
PRRAIEEAEE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overall performance

The global economy experienced a broad-based upturn in 2017, but
potential downside risks, such as geopolitical tensions, emerging
trade protectionism and global financial austerity still persist.
Meanwhile, China’s macro-economic growth beats expectation in
the wake of “deleveraging” efforts.

In 2017, the curtain wall industry in China saw higher fragmentation
and greater adjustments.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company decreased by about RMB26.3
million or 30.2% as compared with last year to about RMB60.7
million (2016: about RMB87.0 million). The main reason was that
the Group has been selective in choosing curtain wall projects and
has focused on major projects owned by customers with good
reputation.

Newly-awarded projects (including VAT)

During the year 2017, the aggregate amount of new-awarded
projects of the Group decreased by about RMB1,963.0 million or
32.1% as compared with last year to about RMB4,156.1 million
(2016: about RMB6,119.1 million). The main reason for the change
was the tight domestic liquidity which has lowered the investment in
commercial real estate.

KB
E)

RREBER 2017 5B L > BIHEER
WHEBUEER - EHREIERRE 2
ReEMRBRBEFEETITRR -+
REEEE [ XER | MER TEREBR
HEE -

2017 FRREBREITEDEIE - FHEMN
Bl -

HE2017F12A31BIEFE * XA T
IR EGFEOARE60.7BET(2016
F:HOARES7T0EET) BREFRD
AR 26.38ETH30.2% * TERHA
EAKE—MBEREEFERKEER B
XX EERMHHKNIER ©

A TIR(B2EEN)

MR2017 % - AEERFAE TIREED
AR® 41561 BET(20165F : HAR
#6,1191 B &8 T) - REAFRLHARKE
1,963.0B&ELsk32.1% - EBMWEE R
EAEBEANES B8R ERmELE
B IRER o

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
Number of Number of
projects RMB million projects RMB million
HEHE AR¥EETT HEEE ARKBEETT
Domestic A 37 1,570.7 50 2,726.7
Overseas iSBN 15 2,585.4 18 3,392.4
Total Sar 52 4,156.1 68 6,119.1
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Newly-awarded projects (including VAT) (continued)

Details of newly-awarded projects with over hundred-million RMB

contract value are as follows:

Project name

HE B8

Los Angeles Wanda, USA
ERR M EEIR A
C0600 College Town, Kuwait
RHEF K 235 COB00 1R X
Carla Office Building,Sweden
IR AE

Changchun Long Xiang Center A, China

FEREEATLAR

447 Collins Street, Australia
RN 447 FIMRHET R BT

SAN Jose SJSC Building, USA
EEIE[ZE SISC KE
Walsin Lihwa Center, China
REE R

No. 1 Denison Street, Australia
M A SR FHERRAE

MAS, Malaysia
F52RPEEE MAS 32

Fuli Silver Tower, USA

EEE NRETIR

Silk Road Pearl Tower, China
P B 4 B FA TR IR

LS Group Building, China
HPEIREMNEA

EEE(E)

AR TIR(BERER)(E)

ERSEEBSETARENIART

BERZFHBHT :
Category of Approximate
project utilization Contract Value
HE ARER BHEEBN
RMB million
ARBBEET
Commercial Complex 619.9
[BEZoa=y:
Commercial Complex 489.7
[EELoaey:
Headquarters Building 294.2
RPN
Commercial Complex 294.0
[BEZoa=y:
Commercial Complex 283.0
[EELoaey:
Commercial Complex 270.5
[SESES=y
Commercial Complex 169.4
[BEZoa=y:
Commercial Complex 120.1
[EELoaey:
Commercial Complex 118.4
[SESaS=y
Headquarters Building 113.2
I RIE
Commercial Complex 110.0
[EELoaey:
Headquarters Building 104.7
RPN

13
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Backlog

As at 31 December 2017, the remaining backlog contract value
of the Group decreased by about RMB1,766.4 million or 9.9%
as compared with last year to about RMB16,120.6 million (31
December 2016: about RMB17,887.0 million), which could support
a sustainable development of the Group for the next 2-3 years.

EBEE(E)
AEIAR

MR2017F 128318 » AEEMHBT X
TIEREBENARKE16,1206BE T
(2016412 A31H : H AR 17,887.0
BET)  BREFRIHOARKE1,766.48
BITek9.9% ' RABAREERRK2-3FH
BRIEHAIZE -

2017 2016
2017 20164
Remaining value of contracts Remaining value of contracts
BRKRTEERE &R TEE
Number of Number of
projects RMB million projects RMB million
HEHE AR¥EER BEEgEE AREBER
Domestic " 291 7,279.4 337 9,203.1
Overseas BN 89 8,841.2 102 8,683.9
Total &&t 380 16,120.6 439 17,887.0
Major technology achievements and awards EERMKR M EEIE

In 2017, the Group obtained 16 patents, including 4 patents for
invention and 12 patents for utility model.

R2017F » AEBFEZFEE1618
HAZ A= 418 - ERFAEFR 1218 -



AP BERARAT ZF—-baEaER

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEBNWR DM

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The curtain wall industry is expected to face a challenging
environment in 2018. Considering factors such as the curbing of
demands, the reduction of residents’ leverage and unbalanced
demand and supply, tightening financing environment will further
weaken the willingness of property developers to invest in 2018; and
the sales volume of new projects is expected to decline. The Group
will closely monitor trends and developments in the macro-economy
and sector markets, focus to enhance its sensitivity and perception
of market developments so that it could proactively formulate
forward-looking business strategies in response to changes in the
external business conditions.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Company aims to increase shareholder value through
sustainable revenue and earnings growth and free cash flow
generation. In order to achieve this objective, the Group uses the
following indicators to measure business performance:

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the revenue of the Group
decreased by about RMB1,635.7 million or 22.3% as compared with
last year to about RMB5,688.7 million (2016: about RMB7,324.4
million). Among which:

1. the revenue from domestic market of the Group decreased
by about RMB1,290.9 million or 28.3% as compared with last
year to about RMB3,273.4 million (2016: about RMB4,564.3
million), contributing approximately 57.5% of the total revenue
of the Group. The decline is due to the revenue shrank in
Northeast and East China; and

2.  the revenue from overseas market of the Group decreased
by about RMB344.8 million or 12.5% as compared with last
year to about RMB2,415.3 million (2016: about RMB2,760.1
million), contributing approximately 42.5% of the total revenue
of the Group.

RBRE

TEHI2018 F F i 17 5 4% [ i o8 2 BB -
ERRBIF R - BEERERXMELR
ERBRHBNTARLEA HE - 20184F
BERGBESERSYRBERNRE
ERTE FIREEREZRGAE

BRHMETRE - AEEBTIEER
BREMITEMSESDS  ETEBRSHM
SR BURE AR 1 - 5 E AT IR MR
LRES - THRUINEEERBRE -

g C)

ARBEEEBIRHBEEERARETN
BENKELBEHRERREITRRE
B> REWBER AKERAATER

=Wy PO SN
EELEFN

BREA

HE2017F12 A31 HILFE » AEEH
BEIAN AR 5,688.7 B & £(2016
FEHARBTII244BET)  BEER
DEARYA1,635.7 BET22.3% ° &
==l

1. AEEMNBATSBRAHARE
32734 HET(2016F : HARME
4564.3B8TT) REFBILOIA
K¥1,290.9 & 7T5(28.3% ' (A<
EEAUWMALS75% NEEER
FA B LA B 2 B8 th [ &9 U A 48RP
B &

2. AEEMNFINTHBBRAHARKE
2,415.3 BB T(2016F : HARKE
2,7601BET) r REFHIAIA
R#344.8B8T12.5% ' 1548&%
BB AL 42.5% o
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Cost of sales

In 2017, the cost of sales of the Group decreased by about
RMB1,592.7 million or 26.4% as compared with last year to about
RMB4,439.7 million (2016: about RMB6,032.4 million). With the
decrease in revenue, the related costs of sales were correspondingly
decreased.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

In 2017, the gross profit of the Group decreased by about RMB43.1
million or 3.3% as compared with last year to about RMB1,248.9
million (2016: about RMB1,292.0 million).

In 2017, the gross profit margin of the Group increased by about
4.4% as compared with last year to about 22.0% (2016: about
17.6%). The Group’s gross profit margin kept growing, which was
mainly attributable to strengthened budget management and cost
control and higher gross profit margin of newly-accepted projects of
the Group. Among which:

1.  gross profit margin from domestic market of the Group
increased by about 3.7% as compared with last year to about
22.6% (2016: about 18.9%); and

2. gross profit margin from overseas market of the Group
increased by about 5.6% as compared with last year to about
21.1% (2016: about 15.5%).

B EIRE(E)
SHER A

R20176F - AEERHEEKREAN A A
E¥4,430.7B 8 T(2016F : HARK
6,0324B8BL) REFRLHARK
1,5602.7 BET0526.4% ° BEE & WA
KR - FRRASHE AR E L MAFT T o

EFREM=H

R2017F - AEENEMHARE
1,248.9F & 70 (20165F : ) AR #1,292.0
BETL)  REFRIOARKE41EE
JL8%3.3% °

R20174 - NEEH E F X 422.0%
(20164 : #917.6%) ' B X F 1 ML
4.4% c AEBEMNREBRIFER - =
E R AN AE E N 78 & & M AT
HIA R AEIEE EFERE - A :

1., AEBHEAEFED226%
(2016 4E : 4918.9%) + B EEH N
H93.7% : &

2. AEEMBEINEFELH21.1%
(2016 4F : 4915.5%) » B EFEIL AN
#495.6% °
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Major customers and suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue generated from
the five largest customers of the Group accounted for an amount of
less than 30% of the total operating revenues of the Group. The five
largest customers were not connected to the Company in any way.
None of the Directors, senior management, key technical personnel,
shareholders holding 5% or more of the shares, de facto controller
and other connected parties of the Company had any direct or
indirect interest in any of the aforesaid five largest customers. None
of the Directors or their close associates or, to the knowledge of the
Board, any of the shareholders holding 5% or more of the shares of
the Company had any interest in any of the five largest customers of
the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, purchases from the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for an amount of less than
30% of the total annual purchases of the Group. The five largest
suppliers were not connected to the Company in any way. None
of the Directors, senior management, key technical personnel,
shareholders holding 5% or more of the shares, de facto controller
and other connected parties of the Company had any direct or
indirect interest in any of the aforesaid five largest suppliers.

Other income

Other income of the Group primarily comprised of government
grants, rental income from operating leases, net income from
provision of repairs and maintenance services and net gain on
disposal of property, plant and equipment and land use rights.

In 2017, other income of the Group decreased by about RMB5.6
million or 4.8% as compared with last year to about RMB108.9
million (2016: about RMB114.5 million). The decrease in the Group’s
other income was mainly due to the decline in government grants
during the Reporting Period.

BrISERE (42 )

TREPMEERD

HE2017F12A31 BILFE  ZEER
A5 BRAZTFPERMBRALRAER 2
K A BRBR)30% © RIS BRAR P
RAB N FEBEREE  AXAFES -
BREREAB - ROEMAE - FA&5%
LA ERRER - B B 428 I AR EL Ath B Bk 05 7
A BBRARPHEEENERERS
B o AAAIESHEBRER AR
EEEMAMEAHEEARR R 5% A %
NMzREBERBEAEEFRMAZRA
BEE T AfER o

HE2017F12A31BILFE - A& H
MAIS BERAEENNRBEREINAEE
2 FEEIRBREEN30% ° I 5 BRAME
FEEARNR I FEBBAER  ARFRE

- EREEAR  ROUBEMAER - F
AR 5% A ERARER - BRI I AN E Ath B ES
AERIS BRAREETR M EEENER
A ER -

HAp A

AEEEMBAEE BB KHE
BBA - REBERRERS - HER
MEEFRA R EDE - BB NRE
3 f A A3 s

R2017F - AEBWEMPADIARKE
108.9B&E L(2016 F : HARK 11458
B  BREFRALHARBS6BETLH
4.8% c NREBEMBANBLEEZHR
s BB BhR D PTEL -
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Selling expenses

In 2017, the selling expenses of the Group decreased by about
RMB26.2 million or 21.5% as compared with last year to about
RMB95.2 million (2016: about RMB121.4 million), accounted for
approximately 1.7% of the operating revenue of the Group (2016:
1.7%). The main reason for the decrease was due to the strict control
of expenses.

Administrative expenses

In 2017, the administrative expenses of the Group decreased by
about RMB139.9 million or 12.6% as compared with last year
to about RMB971.6 million (2016: about RMB1,111.5 million),
accounted for approximately 17.1% of the operating revenue of
the Group (2016: 15.2%). The decrease in administrative expenses
was a combined effect of: (i) the headcount optimization policy
implemented over the past few years, which resulted in the decrease
in the staff cost of administrative staff; and (i) the Group continued to
maintain the principle of prudence, and the provision for bad debts
increased as compared with last year, resulting in the increase of
administrative expenses.

Finance costs

In 2017, the finance costs of the Group increased by about
RMB146.4 million as compared with last year to about RMB232.8
million (2016: about RMB86.4 million), accounted for 4.1% of the
operating revenue of the Group (2016: 1.2%). This was mainly due
to foreign exchange recognised as a net loss during the Reporting
Period rather than a net profit in last year.

Income tax

In 2017, the income tax benefit of the Group was about RMB27.5
million (2016: an income tax expense of about RMB10.6 million).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Consolidated net profit

As a result of the foregoing, in 2017, the consolidated net profit of the
Group increased by about RMB9.1 million or 11.9% as compared
with last year to about RMB85.7 million (2016: about RMB76.6
million).

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

In 2017, the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
decreased by about RMB26.3 million or 30.2% as compared with
last year to about RMB60.7 million (2016: about RMB87.0 million).

Net current assets and financial resources

As at 31 December 2017, the net current assets of the Group
increased by about RMB981.9 million or 64.3% as compared with
last year to about RMB2,508.8 million (31 December 2016: about
RMB1,526.9 million).

As at 31 December 2017, the cash on hand and in bank of the Group
decreased by about RMB557.1 million or 23.6% as compared with
last year to about RMB1,805.6 million (31 December 2016: about
RMB2,362.7 million), mainly denominated in RMB, USD, Australian
Dollar (“AUD”), Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR”), Malaysia Ringgit (“MYR”)
and Singapore Dollar (“SGD”).

Bank loans and gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2017, the total bank loan of the Group
decreased by about RMB616.4 million or 17.3% as compared with
last year to about RMB2,943.6 million (31 December 2016: about
RMB3,560.0 million).

The Group’s gearing ratio (calculated by total liabilities divided by
total assets) was 72.1% (31 December 2016: 77.2%).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Turnover days of receivables/trade and bills payables/inventory

Turnover days (day)
BAERH(X)

Receivables (note 1) FEWCR (AT 1)
Trade and bills payables (note 2)

Inventory (note 3) FE(#E3)
Notes:
1. The calculation of the receivables turnover days is based on the

average amount of trade and bills receivables and net contract
work receivables (gross amount due from customers for contract
work less gross amount due to customers for contract work) as
at the beginning and ending of the relevant period divided by total
revenue of the relevant period and multiplied by 365 days.

2. The calculation of turnover days of trade and bills payables is
based on the average amount of trade and bills payables as at the
beginning and ending of the relevant period divided by cost of raw
materials and installation cost of the relevant period and multiplied
by 365 days.

3. The calculation of inventory turnover days is based on the average
amount of inventory as at the beginning and ending of the relevant
period (net of provision) divided by cost of raw materials of the
relevant period and multiplied by 365 days.

During the Reporting Period, the turnover days of receivables of the
Group increased by about 73 days or 21.2% as compared with last
year to about 417 days (2016: about 344 days). Although the Group
strengthened collection receivables which resulted in the decline
of the receivable at the end of 2017, the final completion of and
payment settlement for construction projects in China continued to
slow down in 2017.

During the Reporting Period, the turnover days of trade and bill
payables of the Group increased by about 75 days or 22.5% as
compared with last year to about 409 days (2016: about 334 days).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Inventory and inventory turnover days

The Group’s inventories primarily consist of materials used in
fabrication of curtain wall products, including extrusions aluminum,
glass, steel and sealant.

As at 31 December 2017, the inventory of the Group decreased
by about RMB80.7 million or 22.6% as compared with last year to
about RMB277.2 million (31 December 2016: about RMB357.9
million).

During the Reporting Period, the inventory turnover days of the
Group increased by about 4 days or 8.0% as compared with last
year to about 54 days (2016: about 50 days).

Capital expenditure

In 2017, the payment for capital expenditure of the Group decreased
by about RMB65.8 million or 96.1% as compared with last year to
about RMB2.7 million (2016: about RMB68.5 million), which was
mainly related to the payment on land acquisition, construction of
plant and purchase of equipment.

Foreign exchange risk

The overseas projects of the Group were mainly dominated in
USD, GBP, AUD and SGD. To hedge any foreign exchange risks,
the Group has entered into forward foreign exchange contracts
which hedge the forecast transactions and monetary assets
denominated in foreign currencies of the Group. The Group ensures
that net exposure to currency risk arising from assets and liabilities
maintained at an acceptable level.

Contingent liabilities

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2017
are set out in Note 31.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Charge on assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s bank loans of approximately
RMB1,261.6 million were secured by property, plant and
equipment and land use rights with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately RMB1,050.9 million.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other charge on its
assets as at 31 December 2017.

Material acquisitions and disposals

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any material
acquisitions and disposals of its subsidiaries and associated
companies.

Significant investment

The Group did not make any significant investments during the
Reporting Period.

Future plans for significant investments or capital assets

As at the date of this annual report, a subsidiary of the Group has a
plan for capital expenditure with the amount of RMB28.2 million for
building as new factory.

Global offering and use of proceeds

In May 2011, the Company conducted a global offering (the “Global
Offering”) through which 1,708,734,000 new ordinary shares
were offered at a price of HK$1.50 per share. Net proceeds raised
were approximately HK$2,402,947,000. The ordinary shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
17 May 2011.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Global offering and use of proceeds (continued)

As stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 20 April 2011 and
the supplementary prospectus dated 5 May 2011 (collectively, the
“Prospectus”), the Group intended to use the proceeds from the
Global Offering for expansion of its production capacity, repayment
of its existing debts, investment in research and development,
expansion of its sales and marketing network.

As at 31 December 2017, an accumulated amount of approximately
HK$2,018 million of proceeds from the Global Offering (of which
expansion of production capacity: HK$575 million; repayment of
bank loans (mainly comprised the bridge loan of Standard Chartered
Bank): HK$962 million; expenses in research and development:
HK$261 million; and expansion of its sales and marketing network:
HK$220 million) was utilized in accordance with the intended use as
stated in the Prospectus. It is intended that the remaining proceeds
of approximately HK$385 million will be used in accordance to the
proposed allocation as stated in the Prospectus.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 6,094 full-time employees
in total (31 December 2016: 7,425). The decrease in the number
of full-time employees was the result of the Group’s headcount
optimization. The Group has sound policies of management
incentives and competitive remuneration, which align with the
interests of management, employees and shareholders’ alike. The
Group sets its remuneration policy with reference to the prevailing
market conditions and the performance of the individuals concerned,
subject to review from time to time. The components of the
remuneration package consist of basic salary, allowances, and fringe
benefits, including medical insurance and contributions to pension
funds, as well as incentives like discretionary bonus and share
options.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties
in addition to those shown below which are not known to the Group
or which may not be material now but could turn out to be material
in the future.

Business Risk

As most of the Group’s customers are property developers or
main contractors of public infrastructure and commercial buildings,
the business and prospects of the Group heavily depend on the
performance of the construction and real estate industries, which
are cyclical and could be significantly affected by fluctuations in
economic conditions. China saw a more fragmented property
market, and the first-tier cities, former red-hot second-tier cities
and third and fourth-tier cities around the first-tier cities became the
key targets of market regulation. The property market will face a
challenging environment considering factors such as the curbing of
demands, the reduction of residents’ leverage and the unbalanced
demand and supply. On the basis of maintaining a good relationship
with existing customers, the Group actively explores high-quality
customers to reduce the adverse effects of the risk.

Industrial Risk

An excessive supply of curtain wall products on the mainland has
sparked fierce competition. Upgrading the industry is the only way
to force small and inferior competitors to leave the market and
eventually benefit large and superior suppliers, like Yuanda. The
industry will accelerate consolidation, resulting in continued rising of
concentration, where acquisition and reorganization and cooperative
development will become major growth drivers. The whole curtain
wall industry will experience the period of industry consolidation
during which market correction in curtain wall sector may lead
to more opportunities for mergers and acquisitions and asset
purchases.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from external events.
Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests with
every function at divisional and departmental levels.

The Group recognises that operational risks cannot be eliminated
completely and that it may not always be cost effective to do so. Key
functions in the Group are guided by their operating procedures,
limits of authority and reporting framework. The Group will identify
and assess key operational exposures from time to time and report
such risk issues to senior management as early as possible so that
appropriate risk response can be taken. The Group will continue
to enhance refined management, and continuously implement and
improve activity-based costing and the refined management system
with management accounting as its core, and comprehensively
strengthen management over financial, financing, investment and
operational risks.

Credit Risk

The Group is serving a large customer base with differing credit
status, and its business development will inevitably be affected by
the varied credit profiles of these customers. The Group seeks to
reduce the aforesaid impact by identifying and managing credit
risks through internal credit management measures, such as credit
search, credit rating, credit limit management, overall credit risk
assessment and stringent credit control against customers with
faulty payment records, as well as by transferring credit risks through
the purchase of credit insurance.

Financial Risk

The financial risk management of the Group are set out in note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Kang Baohua (BEE ), aged 64, is the founder and chairman
of the Group, and was appointed as an Executive Director on
February 26, 2010. Mr. Kang is the vice president of the Liaoning
Chamber of Commerce (EZEAEE). Graduated from Liaoning
University (& 28 A E2) with a diploma in politics in 1984, Mr. Kang has
over 24 years of experience in the curtain wall industry and has been
responsible for the overall management and strategic development
of the Group since 1992. Prior to founding the Group, Mr. Kang was
an executive director of Shenyang Strong Wind Group Company
(E5oaEEE /A 7). Since the establishment of the Company,
Mr. Kang has been involved in the management of the Company,
including business development, finance and corporate strategy
formulation. Mr. Kang is also a director of various other subsidiaries
of the Group.

Mr. Li Hongren (Z3#t A ), aged 51, the chief executive officer of
the Group and an Executive Director of the Company (appointed
on 8 February 2017), obtained his bachelor’s degree in Engineering
from Northeastern Industrial College* (R4t TEBz) (currently
known as Northeastern University (515 AE2)) in 1990 with a major
in machinery manufacturing processes and equipment. Mr. Li was
qualified as a senior engineer by Ministry of Human Resources and
Social Security of the People’s Republic of China in 2006. Mr. Li
joined the Group in 1999 and has more than 18 years of experience
in manufacturing and marketing of curtain wall products. Since 2006,
Mr. Li has been a manager of various Eurasian subsidiaries of the
Group. Since 2014, Mr. Li was promoted to the vice president of the
Group and is responsible for management.
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Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Liu Futao (2J#8E), aged 53, an Executive Director of
the Company (appointed on 8 February 2017), obtained his
bachelor’s degree in Engineering from Shenyang Correspondence
University (JEF5EIBEAEAEZ) in 1987 with a major in machinery
manufacturing.Mr. Liu joined the Group in 1997 and has more than
20 years in manufacturing and project management. Since 2008,
Mr. Liu has been a manager of various Mideast subsidiaries of the
Group. In 2012, Mr. Liu was promoted to the regional manager of the
northeast China of the Group.

Mr. Ma Minghui (K 83 #), aged 37, an Executive Director
of the Company (appointed on 8 February 2017), obtained his
bachelor’s degree in Management from Shenyang Institute of
Aeronautical Engineering (JLFZ 128 T 22285 in 2003 with a major
in public administration.Mr. Ma joined the Group in 2007 and has
accumulated more than 10 years of experience in human resources
management and budget management. Since 2011, Mr. Ma has
been the secretary to the president of the Group. In 2015, Mr. Ma
was promoted to the director of human resources of the Group.

Mr. Wang Hao (£ &), aged 37, the chief financial officer of the
Company and an Executive Director of the Company (appointed on
8 February 2017), obtained his bachelor’s degree in Management
from Jilin University (5 #AZ2) in 2002 with a major in accounting.
Mr. Wang Hao joined the Group in 2007 and has accumulated more
than 10 years of experience in financial management.
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Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Zhang Lei (5R5), aged 45, since February 2013, he acted
as vice President of Shenyang Yuanda, one of the subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in July 2002 and has
over 15 years of experience in curtain wall industry. Before joining
the Group, from 1994 to 2000, Mr. Zhang held various managerial
positions in Northeast Refractory Plant, including vice director in
charge of production and equipment and director of equipment
department in No.4 branch of Northeast Refractory Plant. From 2001
to 2002, Mr. Zhang acted as a management intern in Japanese YKK
company.From 2002 to 2005, Mr.Zhang held various key positions
including quality control and technology minister in Northeast
Branch of Shenyang Yuanda. He acted as a designer in Zhongdong
Branch of Shenyang Yuanda from 2005 to 2006. From 2006 to
2008, he acted as chief designer in Dubai Branch of Shenyang
Yuanda, responsible for the Group’s ACC44 residential buildings,
imperial buildings and commercial bay administration building
and other projects. From 2008 to 2012, Mr. Zhang held various
positions in Shenyang Yuanda, including assistant to chief engineer
in International Operation of Shenyang Yuanda, deputy director of
International Curtain Wall Manufacturer under Shenyang Yuangda,
factory controller and factory president of Shenyang Yuanda. Mr.
Zhang graduated from Shenyang Electrical Industrial School with a
diploma in electrical and mechanical engineering in 1994.

EE(E)
HITER(E)

RESLLE 4558 - B2013F 2 ARRHE
RAFIHBRREREASEE - KL
ER2002F7 ANMBAREE RERXE
HEB15FLE - IMARERA - KL
A 7R 1994 4 Z= 2000 £ SR AL it K AR
DRIEEZEE R - B IERIm A
MEBE S BRAEERBERE RZRER
B o 52001 F£E 20024 » sR&EERH
RYKKARIHESEEEA - FEER
2002 £ £ 2005 F BB EANRIL D AT
BEEZEZE BREERERIETR-
1872 2005 F &= 2006 F1EBHEANF R D
AR)HERETE - 722006 F E 2008 F1&
TEGERNBEDRAEERTE B
EAREBACCUEFEAE FTEREM
FEFEITEIEEIEE - B 2008 F £ 2012
FREAHEBBERZEARMN - 2
FBEGERNBER SIS 42 TI2amE)
1B - E G R K B B 5 i i R B AT &) R
K BBEATIRAE  BHEATKR
A o RAEMN1994 FIEEIGH T T
ERERETIEOR -



AP BERARAT ZF—-baEaER

Directors and Senior Management
EERGREEAE

DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (F&MEl), aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 12 April 2011. Mr. Poon
obtained a Master’s degree in international accounting, a Bachelor’s
degree in laws and a Bachelor’s degree in business studies. He
was awarded a postgraduate diploma in laws by the University of
London. He is a fellow member of CPA Australia, the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute (also an associate instructor), a
fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (“HKICS”)
and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
He is also a member of the Technical Consultation Panel and
Professional Development Committee of HKICS. He now serves
as an executive director, vice-president and company secretary of
Huabao International Holdings Limited. Mr. Poon has over 28 years
of experience in regulatory affairs, investment banking and listed
company management. Currently, he is also an independent non-
executive director of the following companies: Sunac China Holdings
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 1918), Changan Minsheng APLL
Logistics Co., Ltd. (Hong Kong stock code: 292), Tonly Electronics
Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 1249), TUS International
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 872), AUX International Holdings
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 2080), Sany Heavy Equipment
International Holdings Company Limited (Hong Kong stock code:
631), Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd. (Hong Kong stock code:
2869), Jinchuan Group International Resources Co. Ltd. (Hong
Kong stock code: 2362), Honghua Group Limited (Hong Kong stock
code: 196) with effect from 15 June 2017 and Yanzhou Coal Mining
Company Limited (Hong Kong stock code:1171) with effect from 29
June 2017.

BEE(E)
BYIFATES

EREB %A 5558 R2011F 4 H12
BEZERBIIENITES - BALER
R BELT  FEE T REEES
T WESHEBEGAKRNBERE T EZ2HE
EXR e RBRNGTMAGERTME
AN EABSRIREZGERGER
HYFBER - EARTWELREER
T REEBFHAFTMERITHRAEAR
BREeT  BEENMBEBFIWE
EHEMBANEKNEREEEER
BE2XRE  BHAEEZEEERZERBERA
WITES - IBHFRARIWE - &
EREEER REROTREMRARAE
B EEE A28 FRLR o INEEN
TRABIZEIIFNTES : galPEE
BREBRAR(EBROARS :1918) &
BRZEREY RN ER QR (EBERD
Ko : 292) - BHETHEBRBRAR(F
BB HRER © 1249) « BB AR AR
(BERMDREE - 872) « B ATEIRRIER
BRATR(EERMDMRI : 2080) » =—
EEREBRZERBRAR(EERORSE
631) * AR S E B R A R (FHERD
5% 1 2869) AR &) EBE BB ERAR
DA (BBRMDNRSE:2362) - FEEESF
PR AR (BRDAEE - 196) » B 201746 A
15 B4R REMEERHBRAF(R
MRS 1171) - B20176 6 H298 &
R o

%

>

/,

&
=]
I
ES
al

29



30

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017

Directors and Senior Management
EERGREEAE

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (#Z &), aged 48 was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 12 April, 2011. Mr.
Woo has over 22 years of experience in the accounting and financial
services industry. He began his career as a certified accountant
at Arthur Andersen & Co where he qualified. Subsequently, he
was employed in senior positions as an investment banker at ING,
CITIC Securities and Credit Suisse. Mr. Woo holds a Bachelor of
Commerce degree. He is a member of the Australian Society of
Certified Practising Accountants and a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Woo has served as
an executive director and chief financial officer of TUS International
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 872) since September 2015. He
is also an independent non-executive director of IRC Limited (Hong
Kong stock code: 1029), and an independent non-executive director
of SMIT Holdings Limited (Hong kong stock code: 2239).

Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny (&), aged 45, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 12 April 2011. Mr.
Pang is a member of each of the audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Pang
is the managing partner of Benny Pang & Co. which specializes in
capital markets and general corporate and commercial work. Mr.
Pang is also an executive director and a vice chairman of Huabang
Financial Holdings Limited (previously known as Goldenmars
Technology Holdings Limited) (“Huabang”) (Hong Kong stock code:
3638) since January 2017. He was an independent non-executive
director of Huabang since June 2012. Between 1997 and 2009,
Mr. Pang practiced as a lawyer with several international law firms in
Hong Kong and Sydney. Mr. Pang received his bachelor’s degree
in laws (honors) from Bond University, Australia, in 1996. In 1997,
Mr. Pang obtained his Graduate Diploma in Legal Practice and
master’s degree in laws from The College of Law, Sydney and the
University of New South Wales, Australia, respectively. He has been
admitted as a legal practitioner of the Supreme Court of New South
Wales, Australia since 1997 and as a solicitor of the High Court of
Hong Kong since 2009. He is a member of both the Law Society
of New South Wales, Australia and the Law Society of Hong Kong.
Currently, Mr. Pang is also an independent non-executive Director of
the following companies: China Regenerative Medicine International
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 8158) and Sanbase Corporation
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 8501).
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EERGREEAE

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Save as otherwise disclosed, there was no change to any
information required to be disclosed in relation to any Director
pursuant to Rule 13.51(2)(a) to (e) and (g) of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 December 2017. All
Directors are not involved in any matters concerning Rule 13.51(2)(h)
to (v) of the Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Leung Fai, Philip ((R &), aged 41, was appointed as the
company secretary and authorized representative of the Company
in June 2012 and has over 11 years of experience in corporate
services field. He was an auditor of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
from 2000 to 2001. Since 2001, Mr. Yu joined Fung, Yu & Co.
CPA Limited and is currently the company’s managing director.
Mr. Yu has also been the company secretary of China National
Materials Co. Ltd. (Hong Kong stock code: 01893), Beijing Media
Corporation Ltd. (Hong Kong stock code: 01000) and Sany Heavy
Equipment International Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code:
00631), and independent non-executive director of Realord Group
Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 01196), all of which are
listed companies in Hong Kong, since 2009, 2010, 2017 and 2014,
respectively. Mr. Yu graduated from the University of Toronto with
a bachelor’s degree in commerce in 2000 and from the University
of London with a bachelor’s degree in law in 2005. He is a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Certified
Practicing Accountants of Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Hongren (Z=3# A ), Chief Executive Officer of the Company
— see the paragraph under “Executive Directors” above.

Mr. Wang Hao (£ &), the chief financial officer of the Company —
see the paragraph under “Executive Directors” above.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to
present this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group strives to maintain high standards of corporate
governance to enhance shareholder value and safeguard
shareholder interests. The Group’s corporate governance principles
emphasize the importance of a quality Board, effective internal
controls and accountability to shareholders of the Company.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has adopted
and complied with the applicable code provisions set out in the CG
Code as its own code to govern its corporate governance practices.

The Company reviews its corporate governance practices regularly
to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance with the objective of enhancing shareholders’
value including setting and approving the Company’s strategic
implementation, considering substantial investments, reviewing the
Group’s financial performance and developing and reviewing the
Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance. The Board
has delegated to the chief executive officer, of whom the directors
also undertake, and through him, to the senior management the
authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group. In addition, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Responsibilities (continued)

All directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this annual report, membership of the Board is
made up of nine members in total, with six executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors. The composition of the
Board is set out below:

Executive Directors
Chairman

Mr. Kang Baohua

Mr. Li Hongren Chief executive officer

(appointed on 8 February 2017)

Mr. Liu Futao (appointed on 8 February 2017)
Mr. Ma Minghui (appointed on 8 February 2017)
Mr. Wang Hao Chief financial officer

(appointed on 8 February 2017)

Mr. Zhang Lei
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BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok
Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond
Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time. The independent non-executive directors
are expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to
the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the members of the Board are disclosed
under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this
annual report. None of the members of the Board is related to one
another.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive directors to be independent
in accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in the
Listing Rules.

All directors, including independent non-executive directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. Independent non-executive directors are
invited to serve on the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
Committees of the Company.

Save as otherwise disclosed, there is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material relationship) between any
member of the Board.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has considered a board diversity policy setting out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
considered diversity of board members can be achieved through
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments are based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates is based on a range of diversified
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits of the
selected candidates and their contribution to the Board.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and duties of the chairman and the chief executive officer of
the Company are carried out by different individuals and have been
clearly defined in writing.

The chairman of the Board is Mr. Kang Baohua, and the chief
executive officer is Mr. Li Hongren. The positions of chairman and
chief executive officer are held by separate persons in order to
preserve independence and a balance of views and judgments. With
the support of the senior management, the chairman is responsible
for ensuring that the directors receive adequate, complete and
reliable information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on
issues arising at Board meetings. The chief executive officer focuses
on implementing objectives, policies and strategies approved and
delegated by the Board. The chief executive officer is in charge of
the Company’s day-to-day management and operations. The chief
executive officer is also responsible for developing strategic plans
and formulating the organizational structure, control systems and
internal procedures and processes for the Board’s approval.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive directors of the Company is engaged on a
service contract for a term of three years, and the appointment may
be terminated by not less than one month’s written notice. Each
of the independent non-executive directors of the Company has
been appointed for a term of one year and the appointment may be
terminated by not less than three months’ written notice.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and any new director appointed by the
Board to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall
submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of
Association. The Nomination Committee established on 12 April
2011 is to be responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors.

BOARD MEETINGS

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to directors in advance.

Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all directors at least 14
days before the meeting. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep directors apprised of
the latest developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
director also have separate and independent access to the senior
management where necessary.
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BOARD MEETINGS (continued)

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings (continued)

The Company’s senior management, including chief executive
officer, chief financial officer and company secretary, attend all
regular Board meetings and where necessary, other Board and
committee meetings, to advise on business developments, financial
and accounting matters, statutory and regulatory compliance,
corporate governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The company secretary of the Company is responsible for taking
and keeping minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings.
Draft minutes are normally circulated to directors for comment within
a reasonable time after each meeting and final versions are open for
directors’ inspection.

The Company’s Articles of Association contain provisions requiring
directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum
at meetings for approving transactions in which such directors or any
of their associates have a material interest.

Directors’ Attendance Records

The attendance records of each director at the Board meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2017 and the annual general
meeting for the financial year of 2016 held on 1 June 2017 (the “2016
AGM”) are set out below:
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BOARD MEETINGS (continued) EESER(E)
Directors’ Attendance Records (continued) EEHEeRIERE)

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERY, EEBA
Annual

Nomination Remuneration Audit General
Name of Director Board  Committee = Committee =~ Committee Meeting
EEng EZ® REZEE FMZEE EKZEE RREFXAE
Kang Baohua 6/6 212 11
REE
Tian Shouliang (resigned on 8 February 2017) 2/6 1/2
BTFR (R=B—+&E= AN\BEHT)
Guo Zhongshan (resigned on 8 February 2017) 2/6
2R (R=Z—+&F-AN\BET)
Wang Yijun (resigned on 8 February 2017) 2/6
I£F (RZZ—+E_AN\HE)
Wang Lihui (resigned on 8 February 2017) 2/6
TE (RZZE—+F-AN\BE)
Li Hongren (appointed on 8 February 2017) 4/6 1/2 11
FHEA (R=Z—+&-AN\BEZR{T)
Liu Futao (appointed on 8 February 2017) 4/6 11
e (R=—Z—+5-A\BEZF)
Ma Minghui (appointed on 8 February 2017) 4/6 i1
SeE (R=Z—+E&_A\BEZE)
Wang Hao (appointed on 8 February 2017) 4/6 2/2 11
i= (R=Z—+F_A\BEZT)
Zhang Lei 6/6 11
K&
Poon Chiu Kwok 6/6 2/2 2/2 11
TERE
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond  6/6 2/2 2/2 i1
R
Pang Chung Fai, Benny 6/6 212 212 2/2 11

ZHE
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
and are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company would provide to each newly appointed director or
alternative director an induction package covering the summary
of the responsibilities and liabilities of a director of a Hong Kong
listed company, the Group’s businesses and the statutory
regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company as well
as the Company’s constitutional documents to ensure that he/
she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The
Group also provided briefings and other training to develop and
refresh the directors’ knowledge and skills from time to time.
Further, the Company continuously updates directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

Details regarding the trainings attended by the Directors during the
year ended 31 December 2017 are as follow:

EEET

EXANBRFAREE  A2AERE
EX2EFEERER  UBRNMEE
WEMB NI - ARBHRGERIE
TESHETEFREHEAREN &N
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Types of training

Directors == EINEE
Executive Directors HITES

Kang Baohua RE#E AB,CD
Tian Shouliang (resigned on 8 February 2017) AsTR (R 201742 A8 HEHMT) B
Guo Zhongshan (resigned on 8 February 2017) 2B L(7A2017 42 A 8 HEHTL) B
Wang Yijun (resigned on 8 February 2017) THZE(R2017F2 A8 HEHMT) B
Wang Lihui (resigned on 8 February 2017) F7¥E(R 2017 F 2 A 8 HEHE) B

Li Hongren (appointed on 8 February 2017) ZHA(R20175F2 A8 BEZET) AB,D
Liu Futao (appointed on 8 February 2017) 2f@E(R20174F2 A8 BEZRT) AB,D
Ma Minghui (appointed on 8 February 2017) HRANE (72017 F2 A8 HEZ ) ABD
Wang Hao (appointed on 8 February 2017) T2(R2017F2 A8 HEERT) AB,D
Zhang Lei RE AB,D
Independent Non-Executive Directors BAFEHTES

Poon Chiu Kwok & IR E AB,CD
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond FARIR AB.CD
Pang Chung Fai, Benny wHE AB,C,D
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING (continued)

Notes:
A. Attending seminar(s)/forum(s)

B. Reading materials relating to general business, real estate
development, directors’ duties and responsibilities and so on

C. Giving talks to external seminar(s)/forum(s)

D. Attending corporate event(s)/visit(s)

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Appendix 10”) and
devised its own code of conduct regarding directors’ dealings in
the Company’s securities (the “Company Code”) on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code and
the Company Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
Company matters, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the chief executive officer and the
senior management. The delegated functions and responsibilities
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
aforesaid officers. The Board also has the full support of the chief
executive officer and the senior management for the discharge of its
responsibilities.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure
for formulating policies on remuneration of senior management of
the Group. Details of the remuneration of each of the directors of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in Note
8 to the Financial Statements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of sound corporate governance practices, the
Board has established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference which are available to shareholders
on the Company’s website. Each of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
Kang Baohua (chairman), Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok and Mr. Pang Chung
Fai, Benny, the majority of which are independent non-executive
directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and succession planning of directors, and
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination
Committee:

° reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board annually and
made recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to implement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° made recommendations to the Board to ensure that the
independent non-executive Directors comprise at least one-
third of the Board;

° assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

° made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment
of Directors; and

o made recommendations to achieve board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, ethnicity, professional experience and
knowledge.

The Nomination Committee will meet at least once per year
according to its terms of reference. Two Nomination Committee
meetings were held during the year under review.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (chairman), Mr. Li Hongren and Mr.
Pang Chung Fai, Benny, the majority of which are independent non-
executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the directors’ remuneration and other benefits.
The remuneration of all directors is subject to regular monitoring
by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that level of their
remuneration and compensation are reasonable. Their written terms
of reference are in compliance with the provisions of the CG Code.
Pursuant to code provision B.1.4 of the CG Code, the Remuneration
Committee would make available its terms of reference, explaining its
role and the authority delegated to it by the Board.

EEZEE(H)
REZBE(E)

s HNEFENZEREFSRLES
K

s RRBEEFEEZEHEZITH(ETR
R (iR - ik - Rik - BEK
BEREFE)BEREESHNSHM -

REZESHREBEEBESESFED
BI—ReH - NEOEFE  REEE8

SRITT2REE -
FEES

¥FZEeh=—2KE8EK  DRI2H
RRELE(EE) FHALLERZHE
4 REDK B RBIUIFMITES -

FHNEZE SR AN ESTHM R EMER
RMEZ - 2REZFMOXFMEE
SEHEE  ABRNSZFHIKE LA
EEAE NEREHENEREXE
ST RIS - RIRDEFTE AT AR
X B.1.4STRNMES - #EHNE B &K HIET B
EEHE BEEBEMNESEEMET
HRER e

43



44 YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Remuneration
Committee:

° made recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

° reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

° reviewed and approved the disclosure details of any
remuneration payable to members of senior management by
band in the annual reports; and

° conducted regular evaluations of the Board on its performance
as it may consider appropriate.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG code, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management by band for the year
ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:
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Number of
individuals
In the band of = E AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,0008 7T 7
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 752 2,000,000 87T 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 % 7TZE 3,000,000 57T 2

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Poon
Chiu Kwok (chairman), Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond and Mr. Pang
Chung Fai, Benny, all of which are independent non-executive
directors.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system
and to provide advice and comments to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee:

° made recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, and
approved the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor;

° reviewed and monitored the external auditor’'s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

° reviewed the annual results in respect of the year ended 31
December 2016 and the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2017 as well as significant issues on financial
control, internal control and risk management systems;

o discussed the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system. This discussion included the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting functions; and

° developed and reviewed the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and made recommendations to the
Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2017.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors of the Company
twice without the presence of the executive directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

During the period under review, the Board is responsible for
determining the policy for the corporate governance of the Company
performing the corporate governance duties as below:

° to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Group; and

° to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
announcements of inside information and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory
requirements.

The management of the Company has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable the Board
to carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Company including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal
control system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company
assets and with the support of the Audit Committee, reviewing the
effectiveness of such system on an annual basis.

Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and
established which can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss, as they are
designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

The Board oversees the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis, and ensures that a review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems is being conducted at least annually.

In 2017, the Company focused on the following internal control
operations:

Reviewing risk management and internal control in 2017, assessing
the Company’s progress for risk control in key business operations
such as sales, purchase and development and legal compliance,
and formulating the risk management and internal control plan for
2018;

Reviewing risk management and internal control in 2017, assessing
the Company’s progress for risk control in key business operations
such as sales, purchase and development and legal compliance,
and formulating the risk management and internal control plan for
2018;

Evaluating the material impact on the Company’s financial
performance or condition which resulted from the incidence of any
significant control failings or weaknesses that have been identified;

Focusing on the internal control deficiencies identified during
the self-assessment, the Company promptly identified the
responsibilities and timely rectified the deficiencies, effectively
control and eliminate any potential risks. The Company also worked
towards enhancing the systems and procedures, and deepening its
governance measures, while continuously enhancing the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control; and

Commencing on all fronts activities, such as sharing of experiences
and know-how of risk management and internal control, risk
management processes and group study on risk management
knowledge for key business activities.

REEERAREE(#F)

ARAEFEEREEEARERERER
RAREREG  EBREDBFRN—
REBNEREERANGEZERGRE
BR -

2017 FARNAIEBFHE T TN AR T 1E:

BECOITFERBRERERAIIES T
B FEARFI017TFEHE - HiE
REREREEHER LNRRETE
B WEFHIE 2018 FEMREE KA
PEH| TVERTE

#E— B EBRBFIM & B B 3R
AP EEER BERSEBRIANT
ZRk  AHHMHETERRSE I
BBREB A H NIE B A ETT
AHE - (REB R TEREER

AHESRAENERERRRAERNEX
ERRRS AR BN M EERINE
EBRTE

HEBRAHERNOANZRE - 2 F
——REBEME RRTKREENR B
R ) A0 B B R R BR B 0 3AE N 5
B R@2ERE  AMOREEE TR
THA AR RIERAT MBI TR AL ¢ K

EHRARBRESEHNEREERA
MEHERAE  NBEE  RRERE
MIEEE - E TR M AR E)
@J o



AP BERARAT ZF—-baEaER

Corporate Governance Report

SREABE

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

The Board has implemented procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information. During
the Reporting Period, material transactions of the Company were
reviewed by various internal departments of the Company including
the legal department and the finance and securities department.
After reviewing, if the legal department and the finance and securities
department were in the view that the proposed transactions may
involve inside information, they would consult with the legal adviser
of the Company. Thereafter the proposed transaction concerned
would be reported to the Board. If the relevant information
constituted inside information, the legal adviser, with the assistance
of the legal department and the financed and securities department
of the Company, would draft an announcement which would be
reviewed by members of the Board. After that, dissemination of such
inside information would be conducted by publishing the relevant
information on the Company’s website and the website of the Stock
Exchange in accordance with the Listing Rules.

As a result of the above operations, the Board confirms, and
management has also confirmed to the Board, that the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems are basically effective and
adequate and have complied with the Corporate Governance Code
provisions on risk management and internal control throughout the
year and up to the date of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Leung Fai of Yu & Co. CPA Limited, the external company
secretary service provider of the Company, has been engaged by the
Company as its company secretary since 30 June 2012. The primary
corporate contact person at the Company is Jason Li, the vice
president of the Finance and Securities Department of the Company.

The company secretary’s biography is set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” on pages 26 to 31 of this report.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the company secretary
undertook over 15 hours of professional training to update his skills
and knowledge.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the financial statements of the Company
is set out in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages 103 to
111.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in
respect of audit services for the year ended 31 December 2017
amounted to approximately RMB9.3million. The external auditors
of the Company provided non-audit services with contract-value
of about RMBO.7 million to the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting (including making proposals/moving a resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting)

° Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”), to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, including making proposals or
moving a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued) BREER(Z)
Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general RSB BRI K= (B IR EERIK
meeting (including making proposals/moving a resolution at the @ FIRHIRER SRS VNIRRT (E)

extraordinary general meeting) (continued)

° Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an extraordinary
general meeting for the purpose of making proposals or
moving a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting must
deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by
the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 1121, 11/F
No.1 Block, Grand Central Plaza 138 Shatin Rural Committee
Road Shatin Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

° The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding in the
Company, the reason(s) to convene an extraordinary general
meeting, the agenda proposed to be included the details of the
business(es) proposed to be transacted in the extraordinary
general meeting, signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned.

° If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the Board
has not advised the Eligible Shareholders of any outcome to
the contrary and fails to proceed to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, the Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/herself/
themselves may do so in accordance with the memorandum
and articles of associations, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned by the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Disclaimer

The contents of this sub-section headed “Shareholders’ Rights”
are for reference and disclosure compliance purposes only. The
information does not represent and should not be regarded as legal
or other professional advice from the Company to the shareholders.
Shareholders should seek their own independent legal or other
professional advice as to their rights as shareholders of the
Company. The Company disclaims all liabilities for losses incurred
by its shareholders in reliance on any contents of this sub-section
headed “Shareholders’ Rights”.

Making enquires to the Board
Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the principal place of business of the Company

in Hong Kong by post through the following means:

Telephone number:  (86) 24 25273288

By post: 20, Street 13 Shenyang Economic &
Technological Development Area,
Shenyang, 110027, China

Attention: Investor Relations Department

By email: investors@yuandacn.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its articles of association. An up-to-date version of the
Company’s articles of association is also available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

Investors Communication Policy

The Company regards the communication with institutional investors
as important means to enhance the transparency of the Company
and collect views and feedbacks from institutional investors. To
promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.yuandacn.com, where up-to-date information and updates
on the Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are posted are available for public access. During the year under
review, the directors and senior management of the Company
participated in numerous road shows and investment conferences.
In addition, the Company also maintains regular communication with
the media through press conferences, news releases to the media
and on the Company’s website, and answering enquiries from the
media.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders face-to-
face dialogue with the shareholders. The Chairman of the Board
as well as chairmen of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee or, in their absence, other
members of the respective committees and, where applicable, the
chairman of the independent Board committee, are available to
answer questions at shareholder meetings.

The annual general meeting regarding the financial results for the
year ended 31 December 2017(the “AGM”) will be held on 29 May
2018. The notice of AGM will be sent to shareholders at least 20 clear
business days before the AGM.
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The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their report and
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017 of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year under review and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development and outlook
of the Company’s business, possible risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing and important events affecting the Company
occurred during the year ended 31 December 2017 are provided
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 11 to 25 of this annual report. An account of the Company’s
relationships with its key stakeholders is included in the paragraph
headed “Relationships with Employees, Suppliers and Customers”
of the report of the Directors on page 57 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31
December 2017 using financial performance indicators is provided
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 11 to 25 of this annual report and the Group’s “Five Year
Financial Summary” on page 244 of this annual report.

In addition, more details regarding the Group’s performance by
reference to environmental and social-related key performance
indicators and policies, as well as compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Company
are provided in the report headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance” on pages 76 to 102 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Environmental conservation remains a key focus for the Group.
The conscientious use of resources and adoption of best
practices across the Group’s businesses underlie its commitment
to safeguarding the environment. The Group encourages
environmental protection and complies with environmental legislation
and promotes awareness towards environmental protection to the
employees.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

The Group puts great emphasis in environmental protection
and sustainable development. Through the establishment of an
ever-improving management system, enhancement on procedure
monitoring, energy conservation and environment protection were
strongly promoted, leading to the achievement of environmental
management. Several measures have been implemented by the
Group in order to promote environmental protection. Further details
are set forth in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report as
set forth in this annual report.

MAJOR BUSINESS

The Company is principally engaged in the provision of one-stop
integrated curtain wall solutions for its customers to meet the
technical specifications and performance requirements of their
projects. The analysis of the revenue of the Group for the year is set
out in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
financial condition of the Company and the Group as at that date are
set out in the Financial Statements on pages 112 to 243.

SHARE CAPITAL

The changes in the share capital of Company during the year are set
out in Note 27(c) to the Financial Statements.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to declare any annual dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2017, subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

There is no arrangement under which a shareholder of the Company
has waived or agreed to waive any dividend.
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BOOK CLOSURE PERIOD AND RECORD DATE

For the purpose in determining who will be eligible to attend and
vote at the Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Thursday, 24 May 2018 to Tuesday,
29 May 2018 (both days inclusive), during which time no transfer
of shares will be registered. To ensure that the shareholders are
entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, the
shareholders must deliver their duly stamped instruments of transfer,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, to the Group’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Room 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by no later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 23 May 2018 for registration of the
relevant transfer.

RESERVE

Details of movements in reserve of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2017 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity of the Financial Statements. Details of movements
in the reserves of the Company during the year are set out in Note
27(a) to the Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution of dividends to
the shareholders subject to the provisions of the Company’s Articles
of Associations, and with the sanction of an ordinary resolution,
dividend may be declared and paid out of share premium account or
any other fund or account which can be authorized for this propose.
As at 31 December 2017, the distributable reserves of the Company
were RMB574.0 million (31 December 2016: RMB574.0 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

The changes in property, plant and equipments of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in Note 12 to the
Financial Statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and the Group’s five
largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 3.5%
and 12.7% of the Group’s total purchase, respectively. The
percentage of turnover attributable to the Group’s largest customer
and the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 3.1% and 13.6% of the Group’s total turnover,
respectively.

Save as disclosed herein, so far as is known to the Directors,
none of the Directors or his/her close associates and none of the
shareholders possessing over 5% of the interest in the share capital
of the Company possessed any interest in the abovementioned
suppliers and customers.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets. The
Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract
and motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard.

The Group’s business is built on a customer-oriented culture.
The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its immediate
and long-term goals. To maintain its market competitiveness within
the industry, the Group aims at delivering constantly high standards
and high quality products to its customers. During the year under
review, there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the year and as of the date of this report
are as follows:

Executive Directors

Kang Baohua (Chairman)
Tian Shouliang
(Chief Executive Officer) (resigned on 8 February 2017)
Guo Zhongshan (resigned on 8 February 2017)
Wang Yijun (resigned on 8 February 2017)
Wang Lihui
(Chief Financial Officer) (resigned on 8 February 2017)
Li Hongren
(Chief Executive Officer) (appointed on 8 February 2017)
Liu Futao (appointed on 8 February 2017)
Ma Minghui (appointed on 8 February 2017)
Wang Hao (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 8 February 2017)
Zhang Lei

Independent non-executive Directors

Poon Chiu Kwok
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond
Pang Chung Fai, Benny

Biographical details of the directors and senior management are
set forth in the section “Directors and Senior Management” of this
report.
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SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

Details of service contracts for our executive Directors and non-
executive Directors of the Company are set out under the section
headed “Appointment and Re-election of Directors” of the Corporate
Governance Report. There was no service contract entered by the
Company and any Directors to be re-elected in the coming annual
general meeting stipulating that the Company may not terminate the
appointment within one year without compensation payment (other
than the statutory compensation).

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and the
CG Code, Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok, Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond and
Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny will retire at the AGM. and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. Please refer to
Note 8 to the Financial Statements for details of the remuneration of
Company’s directors for the year ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than those transactions disclosed in Note 28 to the Financial
Statements, there was no other significant contract with any member
of the Group as the contracting party and in which the Directors of
the Company possessed direct or indirect substantial interests, and
which was still valid on the year end date or any time during the year
and related to the business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETITIVE BUSINESS

The Chairman, Mr. Kang Baohua, owns and through Best Outlook
Limited (“Best Outlook”) and Neo Pioneer Limited (“Neo Pioneer”)
owns in aggregate approximately 57.05% of the issued share
capital in the Company as at the date of this report of the Board.
Mr. Kang Baohua, Best Outlook and Neo Pioneer are the controlling
shareholders of the Company. Mr. Kang Baohua also owns 100%
interest in Yuanda Aluminium Industry Engineering (Singapore)
Pte. Ltd. (“Yuanda Singapore”) through Yuanda Group, which is
owned by Mr. Kang Baohua. Yuanda Singapore is primarily engaged
in curtain wall works and trading as well as investment holding.
Although the Company has established a wholly owned subsidiary
in Singapore to carry out curtain wall contracting projects, the ability
to contract for large-scale public curtain wall projects in Singapore is
dependent on local contracting experience. Given the lack of direct
local contracting experience, the Group has been cooperating with
Yuanda Singapore on the contracting of large scale public curtain
wall projects in Singapore during the last five years and will continue
to supply curtain wall products to Yuanda Singapore until the
Company’s wholly owned subsidiary will be able to undertake such
projects in Singapore on its own. Please see the section headed
“Connected Transactions” in the Prospectus for details. For the
aforesaid purpose, Yuanda Singapore has been excluded from the
deed of non-competition (“Deed of Non-competition”) provided by
the controlling shareholders to the Company on 21 April 2011.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from
each of the Company’s controlling shareholders in respect of the
compliance by them and their associates with the Deed of Non-
competition. Each of the controlling shareholders of the Company
have also confirmed that all of them have abided by the Deed of Non-
competition during the year ended 31 December 2017.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Deed of
Non-competition, the confirmation given by each of the Company’s
controlling shareholder and whether the controlling shareholders
have abided by the non-competition undertaking under the Deed
of Non-competition. The independent non-executive Directors
confirmed that they had determined that the controlling shareholders
have not been in breach of the Deed of Non-competition during the
year ended 31 December 2017.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETITIVE BUSINESS
(continued)

Save as disclosed, no Directors nor their respective connected
persons possessed any interests in any business that competed or
might compete with the business that the Group conducted.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Each Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he or she may incur or sustain in or
about the execution of the duties of his or her office or otherwise
in relation thereto in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 12 April 2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Board of Directors can
grant options for the subscription of our shares to the employees,
managerial staff and senior employees of the Group and those
other persons that the Board of Directors considers that they will
contribute or have contributed to the Group (the “Participants”)
as described in the Share Option Scheme in order to serve as
compliment and to reciprocate their contribution to the Group. The
maximum number of shares that may be issued under the Share
Option Scheme was 600,000,000 shares which is equivalent to
10% of the issued capital of the Company after completion of
the Global Offering (as defined in the Prospectus). The number of
shares that may be granted pursuant to the terms of the Share
Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued shares of the
Company immediately after the completion of the Global Offering.
Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted to
the Participants under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed
1% within any 12-month period (other than those granted to the
substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules), or the
total number of shares that may be granted under the options to
the independent non-executive Directors or any of their respective
connected persons shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue of
the Company from time to time. There is no minimum period that
the options must be held before they become exercisable, and the
options granted shall be exercised within the period decided by the
Board of Directors, and however no options shall be exercised 10
years after they have been granted. The exercise price of the option
shall be the highest of:
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@  the closing price of the Shares on the daily quotation sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(b)  the average closing price of the Shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

() nominal value of the Share. Each grantee shall pay a
consideration of HK$1.00 at the time the option is granted.

The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the date it is
adopted and shall remain effective within a period of 10 years from
that date.

Since the Share Option Scheme was adopted, no options have been
granted.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was adopted
on 10 April 2013 to recognize and motivate the contributions made
to the Group by its employees and to give incentives in order to
retain them for the continuous operation and development of the
Group. For the year ended 31 December 2017, no shares had been
awarded under the Share Award Scheme. Details of the rules of
the Share Award Scheme are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 10 April 2013.

The Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of
10 years commencing on the date of adoption on 10 April 2013.
Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the shares will be acquired
by the independent trustee at the cost of the Company and be held
in trust for the selected employees until the end of each vesting
period. The maximum number of shares which may be granted to
the selected employees under the Share Award Scheme shall not
exceed five percent (5%) of the total issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The maximum number of shares which
may be awarded to a selected employee under the Share Award
Scheme shall not exceed one percent (1%) of the total issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.
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DEBENTURE

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company, its holding
company or its subsidiaries were not the contracting parties of
any arrangements from which the Directors could make a profit by
purchasing the shares or debentures of the Company or any other
companies.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interest or short position of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which would be required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which would be required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to Model Code, are as follows:

(i) Interest of the Company

Name of Director Nature of Interest

- BEtE

Kang Baohua Beneficial owner

REE ERBEAA
Interest of controlled corporation
LB MR

Tian Shouliang Beneficial owner

(resigned on 8 February 2017)

AR (R2017£2 A8 ABHF) EREAA

&3

HE2017F12A31 HILFE » ARaA]
HEERARSKEMBARYIEBERNZ
RETN S  BEESAEBALART
AR E M A BRI IRD KBS MR o

EERKRG - AERORESNERR
RE

M20175E12 8318 - EENAQNTHRS
ITA BRAAR R RS EERAEHEE (E
ERBHLEEEMIEXVE) B MD - 4/
RO REFT  BEREEFMPE
IE&BIEXVERET R8I BEMNEARRAR K
BRATMERSOAE (BEREES KB
BRAIZEGRESHEERER A
BREZIOAR)  IREFESF RIS K
Il 28 352 1&7R A0 A% I FTTe 8 & ae A4
mHAR  RIRBIRETRIZBANE AR
AR FTR MRS SOA B I T ¢

) MAREHRER

Approximate Percentage

Number of Shares of Shareholding
RO 8E REBNE DL
228,636,000 (L) 3.68%
3,313,604,694 (L) 53.37%
12,714,460 (1) 0.20%
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(i) Interest of the Company (continued)
Name of Director Nature of Interest
Esns BEME
Guo Zhongshan Beneficial owner

(resigned on 8 February 2017)
BRIL(K2017F2 A8 HFE) BRBEA

Wang Yijun Beneficial owner
(resigned on 8 February 2017)
TRER2017%2A8A%E) BuEBA

Wang Lihui Beneficial owner
(resigned on 8 February 2017)
FuRB(Ro017F2A8AFE) BuEAA

Li Hongren Beneficial owner
(appointed on 8 February 2017)
BHAR2017F2 A8 HEZF) BRBBA

Liu Futao Beneficial owner
(appointed on 8 February 2017)
BIBE (201742 A8 AEE(T) BRBEA

Ma Minghui Beneficial owner
(appointed on 8 February 2017)
BB (R 2017%2 A8 HEEF) BRlkBA

Wang Hao Beneficial owner
(appointed on 8 February 2017)
TR(R2017F2 A8 HEZE) BRBEAA

Zhang Lei Beneficial owner

K& EalAA

EERERG - HERORESNERR
KR (E)

Approximate Percentage

Number of Shares of Shareholding
Ro#E RESNEDL
12,714,460 (1) 0.20%
12,714,460 (1) 0.20%
10,335,384 (L) 0.17%
831,333(L) 0.01%
3,603,333 (L) 0.06%

0 0

150,000 (L) 0.01%
3,000,000 (L) 0.05%
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS IN EERNRG - HEARORESFNERZR

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES RE(E)
(continued)
()  Interest of the Company (continued) )  RARABIRREZR(E)
Notes: st -
(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities. (1) FEILIRKRRZEZFNETE -
(2)  Of the shares held by Mr. Kang Baohua, 2,582,971,923 @ REBELLEMEBEEANKHG
Shares were held by Best Outlook Limited and 730,632,771 = EEARAIIF B
Shares were held by Neo Pioneer Limited, both companies 2,582,971,923 i fn - mEFAIA
of which are wholly-owned by Mr. Kang Baohua. [RAR)BI4E5 730,682,771 L ARA%
D MRABIEEREELESR
BHER o
(i) Interest in associated corporations (i) PRAEEEERER

Name of Associated Percentage of

Name of Director Corporation Number of Shares Shareholding
EEpL MEZEER RO EE REBDL
Kang Baohua Best Outlook Limited 1) 100%
REE EFEERAF

Kang Baohua Neo Pioneer Limited 1() 100%
REE #EIARAF

Note: it -

(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities. 1) FEILIRERRNZEESFNTE -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at the date 31 December 2017, the following persons (other than
the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had or deemed
or taken to have an interest and/or short position in the Shares or
the underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336
of SFO, or who was directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of
the issued share capital of the Company:

Interest of the Company

Name Capacity

£ g4

Best Outlook Limited™ Beneficial owner
ERARAFO ExBEBA

Beneficial owner

BEaEAA

Neo Pioneer Limited®

#EIAR AT

Notes:

(1)  Best Outlook Limited and Neo Pioneer Limited are companies
incorporated in the BVI and are wholly-owned by Mr. Kang

Baohua.

(2)  The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company as of 31 December
2017 are set out in Note 14 to the Financial Statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year under review.

TERROEZRAR

R2017E 128318 » RN AR 7
RIEFEF K BERGIFEIBHRATED
Zif - TIAL(BEZRAREZET
A BBRIN SR BE ER RN K
B () R BRI E H KA E RIS
XV EFEE 2 & 379 ERAE SR T BB A M 2
k/EKE  KEEXEEEEAAR
BEB1TIRAR 5% sk bA_E RfERS ¢

NIERA/NS =g £

Approximate Percentage

Number of Shares of Shareholding
RGOEE BREFNED L
2,582,971,923 (L) 41.60%
730,632,771 (L) 11.77%

#isz :

() EHARAFARMABRATBNLE
wRBSEMRIOAT LR
5ok 2B o

@ FBILRERESESOTE -

B2 F

ARATNR2017FE12 A31 BN EEHEA
AR BEN YRR 14 -

EEEH
REBFEA - BEIT LK FEEFNARH

ARREMHIEFMERLOXBEER
TTHBRIEH] °
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT STATUS

The Company received the letters of confirmation of independence
issued by all the independent non-executive Directors in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board of Directors was
satisfied with the independent status of all the independent non-
executive Directors.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

In May 2011, the Company conducted a global offering (the “Global
Offering”) through which 1,708,734,000 new ordinary shares
were offered at a price of HK$1.50 per share. Net proceeds raised
were approximately HK$2,402,947,000. The ordinary shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
17 May 2011.

As stated in the Prospectus the Group intended to use the proceeds
from the Global Offering for expansion of its production capacity,
repayment of its existing debts, investment in research and
development, expansion of its sales and marketing network.

As at 31 December 2017, an accumulated amount of approximately
HK$2,018 million of proceeds from the Global Offering (of which
expansion of production capacity: HK$575 million; repayment of
bank loans (mainly comprised the bridge loan of Standard Chartered
Bank): HK$962 million; expenses in research and development:
HK$261 million; and expansion of its sales and marketing network:
HK$220 million) was utilized in accordance with the intended use as
stated in the Prospectus. It is intended that the remaining proceeds
of approximately HK$385 million will be used in accordance to the
proposed allocation as stated in the Prospectus.

BB 55

ARRICEREEZBBIIFNTESRE
AR RIS 313 R EE h ) IB L FERR K ©
B EMERBUFNTESNEY
F1in e

BRLARBERERERE

R2011F5 8 » AARIETEREREE([2
HREBE |) - BE1,708,734,000 J T &
B BEEAER150BTT E50
FT{S 5/ I8 R 584 /5 2,402,947,000 78 7T °
ANAREBIN 2011 F5 B 17 BEBR
FTEMR £ o

IR BT - AN B H TS
HAERETERSR  EERABER KA
RIFFTMFE - RIBEFTIHEME HEE -

R2017F12H31H ' A&EEEBRE
BT AR R FERARRBEERSE
FA92,018 BEBIT(HAERRER : 575
BEEL BERTER(EERETR
TIBBER) : 962 BB BT AT H -
261 BB RIEFTEHEAEL - 2208
BHETT) c B TS RIEX38BEET
BERAEBBREERBRBRER
FRE DB ARRE A o
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KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS

The Group owns only 49% of the equity interests of its operating
companies, Yuanda Kuwait General Contracting for Buildings
Underes (“Yuanda Kuwait”) and Yuanda Qatar Aluminium Industry
Engineering Co., W.L.L. (“Yuanda Qatar”), in Kuwait and Qatar
respectively, as both Kuwait and Qatar laws do not allow foreign
companies to own a majority interest in a local operating company.
The Group had no operation in Qatar prior to the establishment of
Yuanda Qatar and prior to the establishment of Yuanda Kuwait,
the Group supplied products to a local company for projects it
undertook in Kuwait.

Yuanda Kuwait

Under Kuwait law, the Group is not allowed to own a majority interest
in the local operating company. In order to enable it to govern and
control the financial and operation of Yuanda Kuwait and capture
its entire economic interest from its operations, the Group entered
into an agreement on 30 March 2009 (the “Kuwait Incorporation
Agreement”) with Mr. Mohamed Tareq Al Essa (the “Kuwait Local
Partner”), an independent third party, pursuant to which the Kuwait
Local Partner agreed to be the facilitator of the Group in relation
to the conduct of the Group’s business in Kuwait. Pursuant to the
Kuwait Incorporation Agreement, the Kuwait Local Partner has
declared that:

all the capital and assets belong to Shenyang Yuanda;

° he has no share (and hence no voting rights) or the right to get
any share in Yuanda Kuwait or any entitlement to the profit of
Yuanda Kuwait;

° he is not involved in the day-to-day operation of Yuanda
Kuwait, save for assisting Yuanda Kuwait with coordination
with the local government authorities;

° all works in relation to tendering, execution of contracts and
collection of proceeds are carried out by Yuanda Kuwait under

the management of Shenyang Yuanda;

° he would not be held liable for any losses; and

BRESRFEREE

BB M REBER T RN
REAEMEERRNSZ B LD &
AEBNBER R RER - E0RER
HEBRNRRAMBF R RZEEAER
REEAR(NEBFEKR]) LERRE
(REB) ITRBRAR(FHEEEKX])
H) 49% A o AN SR X R 5 B KR AL
Al - EREEYEEREE - MAERE
R KAAZAT » NERBAER R — XK
23 N AIHE (L EE an A EL O B B P AR
KRR TR -

RIAESTEUN

BERBRERE  XEETAIHRE
EENRINZH R - REEAIER
EHIRBEFERNT B R EE  WHHE
LERRGEE2HLENR  AREER
2009 %F 3 A 30 H 237 25 = 75 Mohamed
Tareq Al EssaZt & (MBS E B )
I —ERE(( MRS LIGE]) - &
I BEEEMEHREKNAEARER
MEBFETASEELNBAA - BIE
BMEBRKHE SRS ERBEHEE
R :

s MMBEEANBELBIREGEN

o RARHEUREARSLER () (Bt I 8
BERE)  MEENGHEFEARN
ERI REFB BB R KA

o« BEEORTREY BB
FHEASN BTSRRI K
0 AR RE

o« FEEBRE - A R RUEAR
BRANTFYEEBEANHESE
T RIBAEART

s WIAEREMEEALAEE: Rk
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KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Kuwait (continued)

° the above terms in the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement is
irrevocable for three years effective from the date of signing
and will be automatically renewed for a similar period unless
and until terminated by both parties with a notice at least 90
days in advance.

Through the above arrangement, the Group is able to control the
operation of Yuanda Kuwait. As advised by the legal advisors of the
Company as to Kuwait law, the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement is
legal, valid and binding to its parties and constitutes legally binding
and enforceable obligations against the Kuwait Local Partner under
Kuwait law and is in compliance with the laws and regulations
of Kuwait. Based on the above, and in accordance with relevant
accounting standards, the Group consolidated Yuanda Kuwait into
its consolidated financial statements as a wholly-owned subsidiary.

As disclosed in the Prospectus and the annual report of the
Company in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011,
notwithstanding that the Company considers that it is able to
effectively operate and conduct the business of Yuanda Kuwait
under the present arrangement, the Company has undertaken that in
order to protect the interests of the Company, it will introduce further
measures, including using our best efforts to amend the terms of
the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement, by entering into supplemental
agreements that would include, among others, revisions that the
Kuwait Local Partner will not transfer any of its shares in Yuanda
Kuwait without the prior written consent of the Company, it will
vote for any resolutions of Yuanda Kuwait in accordance with the
instruction of the Company, and if there shall be any change to
the Kuwait laws or regulations and/or policies such that a foreign
entity becomes legally entitled to hold a majority interest in Yuanda
Kuwait, it will promptly transfer its relevant interest in Yuanda Kuwait
to the extent permitted by the then applicable laws or regulations to
Shenyang Yuanda to enable the Company to become the majority
shareholder of Yuanda Kuwait.

MEBERFERER(E)
MEFE AN (F)

o  LAMERKIBENERNEE
BHIEET =F A TR - X8
PIREEFHRER RIEREEE
HIAR &0 BB BT AL IE
Lk e

BiE P B AN E R BB R R
RHEE - REBEARBINBE AR
[ B a5 &0 RHBURE B 1 o AR T B BT
ERREBE BHRBETNET AR
RN SRR EWBHEXE AR
MR RFRHMITHEE  XFAH
BURE RAR BORR o IRIB £ XA A K
RS S &R AR B H BT R
RERZEMBLRARRNEA M E®mEK
NERE AR

BUHBRERRARREE2011 412 A
B1AILEFEREMEE - AARREBIR
BEROTHE - HeemEREE RET
MEREANERS - BEW - AfE
ARRAMFIEE - AR RE FA#H L FEHA S
NiE— 2450 - BIEE RIS
ERE|ENER] SR HBEABE(E
TR AER R FE B ERERE
AARIEAEARENBERLT @ TSEE
HEANRBFERARD - EiGRERA
RAMETRRERFRRANEAIRZER
B REBBEERIER RS
RERAEMESHERIINHNERE LA
BERERBEBFERNZE8ER £
CRANERERBERZEIERTAH
MEREREFREANFOEBREZR TES
BA MMEARRKABRIEFEAHKR
PRER -
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KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Kuwait (continued)

If the above additional measures cannot be implemented, there
will not be any legal consequences assumed by the Company
arising solely as a result of the Company’s failure to enter into the
supplemental agreements to implement these additional measures.
However, in order to better protect the Company’s interests,
the Company will search for a replacement for its existing local
partner who is willing to enter into a cooperation agreement with
the Company that will contain the terms of the abovementioned
additional measures which are in compliance with the requirements
of the Stock Exchange.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company is still in negotiation
with the Kuwait Local Partner on the implementation of the above
additional measures and the Company will disclose any measures
implemented and/or replacement of existing local partner in the
Company’s future annual reports.

Yuanda Qatar

Under Qatar law, the Group is not allowed to own a majority interest
in the local operating company. In order to enable the Company
to govern and control the financial and operation of Yuanda Qatar
and capture its entire economic interest from its operations, the
Company has entered into the memorandum of association of
Yuanda Qatar dated 20 January 2008 (the “Qatar Articles”) with
Mr. Ahmed Omar Bbhaa Ahmed (the “Qatar Local Partner”),
an independent third party, and an agreement dated September
16, 2007 (the “Qatar Incorporation Agreement”) entered into
between Shenyang Yuanda and Actrade for Trading & Contracting,
a company of which the Qatar Local Partner was the authorized
signatory with respect to the governing of the operation of Yuanda
Qatar.

Pursuant to the Qatar Articles and the Qatar Incorporation
Agreement, Yuanda Qatar was established and held as to 51%
by the Qatar Local Partner and as to 49% by Shenyang Yuanda.
Pursuant to the Qatar Articles:

MREERFERER(E)
MR A (E)
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ERRGET LB ABEEETEING
i MEEMERER - A /EH
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KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Qatar (continued)

° representatives of Shenyang Yuanda are responsible for °
managing the company during the entire term of its existence;

° profits of the company will be distributed as to 95% to °
Shenyang Yuanda and as to 5% to the Qatar Local Partner.

The Qatar Articles were supplemented by the Qatar Incorporation

Agreement pursuant to which it was agreed that:

MEBERFERER(E)
REREXR(E)

BEEANKRAERZAAFHE
MEEREEEZ QR

ZR A R95% K 6% 5 % T
RGEA N RERE B -

RNERERAMAITY R RIE B E
7 - Bt BHEE

° the Qatar Local Partner will facilitate Shenyang Yuanda to °

conduct business in Qatar;

instead of receiving dividends from Yuanda Qatar, the Qatar
Local Partner will be paid an annual service fee of US$40,000
plus a scalable commission calculated based on 1% to 5% of
the contract value of projects that Yuanda Qatar won with the
assistance of the Qatar Local Partner;

the dividends declared by Yuanda Qatar may be used to offset
and settle any service fees due or payable to the Qatar Local
Partner;

save for assisting Yuanda Qatar with coordination with the
local government authorities, the Qatar Local Partner is not
involved in the day-to-day operations of Yuanda Qatar;

all works in relation to tendering, execution of contracts and
collection of proceeds are carried out by Yuanda Qatar under
the management of Shenyang Yuanda.

B B 15 SR BRAR
MRS

REREHMBH I TS WNFER
BAMKRE  MERRSFEREE
FA40,000% 7T © ZINEREREKR
ERERE R HE TIRERIE
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KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Qatar (continued)

As advised by the legal advisors of the Company as to Qatar law,
subject to the Qatar Articles, the Qatar Incorporation Agreement is
legal, valid, binding and enforceable under Qatar law, and as the
Qatar Incorporation Agreement and the Qatar Articles are related
to the same subject matter, the Qatar Incorporation Agreement is
considered to be an explanatory to the Qatar Articles under Qatar
law. The Company’s legal advisors as to Qatar law has further
advised that the Qatar Articles is a validly binding and legally
enforceable document and constitutes legal, valid, binding and
enforceable obligations of the parties thereto with respect to the
governance of the affairs of Yuanda Qatar and is in compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations of Qatar and the Qatar
Incorporation Agreement is enforceable against the Qatar Local
Partner.

The Company entered into this arrangement in Qatar in order to
enable it to control and operate Yuanda Qatar and capture the
economic interest from its operations, and these are supported by
the following terms in the Qatar Articles and the Qatar Incorporation
Agreement:

° the representatives from Shenyang Yuanda are entitled to
similar responsibilities and authorities in Yuanda Qatar as
board members in other subsidiaries of Shenyang Yuanda;

° the representatives from Shenyang Yuanda are responsible for
managing Yuanda Qatar during the entire term of its existence
and they may not be removed without the approval from
Shenyang Yuanda;

° resolutions of the shareholders of Yuanda Qatar will only be
valid by approval from a majority of the shareholders holding
75% of the shares in Yuanda Qatar;
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KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Qatar (continued)

° Yuanda Qatar is managed exclusively by Shenyang Yuanda
and its representatives for the period of its existence.
Shenyang Yuanda and its representatives shall have full and
absolute authority and exclusive right to manage and operate
the business of Yuanda Qatar. Such powers are irrevocable
and the Qatar Local Partner may not intervene in managing
the company or bind or commit Yuanda Qatar in any way
whatsoever except with prior written consent from Shenyang
Yuanda;

o Pursuant to the Qatar Articles, the profits of Yuanda Qatar
will be distributed as to 95% to Shenyang Yuanda and as to
5% the Qatar Local Partner, while the dividends declared by
Shenyang Yuanda may be used to offset and settle any service
fees due or payable under the management of Shenyang
Yuanda under the Qatar Incorporation Agreement.

Based on the above, and in accordance with relevant accounting
standards, the Group consolidated Yuanda Qatar into its
consolidated financial statement as a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group.

As disclosed in the Prospectus and subsequent annual reports of
the Company, notwithstanding that the Company considers that it
is able to effectively operate and conduct the business of Yuanda
Qatar under the present arrangement, the Company has undertaken
that in order to protect the interests of the Company, it will introduce
further measures, including using its best efforts to amend the terms
of the Qatar Incorporation Agreement, by entering into supplemental
agreements that would include, among others, provisions that the
Qatar Local Partner will not transfer any of its shares in Yuanda
Qatar without the Company’s prior written consent, it will vote for
any resolutions of Yuanda Qatar in accordance with our instruction,
and if there shall be any change to the Qatar laws or regulations
and/or policies such that a foreign entity becomes legally entitled to
hold a majority interest in Yuanda Qatar, it will promptly transfer its
relevant interest in Yuanda Qatar to the extent permitted by the then
applicable laws or regulations to Shenyang Yuanda to enable the
Company to become the majority shareholder in Yuanda Qatar.
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KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Qatar (continued)

If the above additional measures cannot be implemented, there will
not be any legal consequences to the Company arising solely as
a result of our failure to enter into the supplemental agreements to
implement these additional measures. However, in order to better
protect the Company’s interests, the Company will search for a
replacement for its existing local partner who is willing to enter into a
cooperation agreement with the Company that will contain the terms
of the abovementioned additional measures which are in compliance
with the requirements of the Stock Exchange.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company is still negotiation
with the Qatar Local Partner on the implementation of the above
additional measures and the Company will disclose any measures
implemented and/or replacement of its existing local partner in its
future annual reports.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report in this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE GROUP

During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
listed securities of the Company.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.20 OF THE LISTING
RULES

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibility of disclosure under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules
regarding the provision of advances by the Company to an entity.
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Report of the Board of Directors

EEERE

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group in the
past five years is set out on page 244 of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision regarding pre-emptive rights in the Articles of
Association of the Company or the ordinance of Cayman Islands,
stipulating that any new shares shall be offered according to the
respective shareholding of the existing shareholders of the Company
when new shares are issued by the Company.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this

annual report, the Group maintained adequate public float under the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

AUDITOR
The Company appointed KPMG as the Auditor of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2017. The Company will submit a

resolution in the coming AGM. to re-appoint KPMG as the Auditor of
the Company.

By order of the Board

Kang Baohua
Chairman

29 March 2018
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BIR - 4B RERRE

INTRODUCTION

This is the environmental, social and governance (the “ESG”)
report (the “ESG Report”) of Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the
“Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2017. The principal activities of the Group
are the design, procurement, production, sale and installation of
curtain wall systems.

The Company believes that this ESG Report enables the Company
to communicate the Group’s sustainability related matters in a
transparent and accountable manner, which is key to gaining
the trust of its stakeholders. The Group is committed to making
continuous contribution to the sustainable development in China
and overseas, and fulfilling corporate social responsibilities at
various operational levels. This ESG Report provides an overview
of the Group’s performance related to sustainable development
in the areas of the environment, community, employment and
labor practices and operation convention for the year ended 31
December 2017, with a coverage of the Company’s PRC office and
its operation sites in overseas.

Reporting Standard and Scope

This ESG Report has been prepared with reference to the ESG
Reporting Guide as set forth under Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. A detailed ESG content index has been included
at the back of this report to aid the reader and facilitate greater
transparency. This is the Company’s first annual ESG Report, it
describes the initiatives of the Group and its progress with regard
to ESG issues for the period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2017.

Operating in compliance with the laws

The Group has ensured and will continue to ensure basically
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on its operations, including but not limited to laws and
regulations in relation to product safety and liabilities, customer
rights protection and employment and occupational safety. The
management will monitor the impact for any changes in the relevant
laws and regulations from time to time and seek external advice if
considered necessary.
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CHERERERE

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group proactively responses to the national environmental

protection policies with an objective (i) to reduce the adverse

effect that the operational production may bring to the

environment; and (i) to ensure the harmonious development

of the Group and environmental sustainability. The Group

strives to reduce energy and other energy consumption,

reduce waste emissions, to fully utilise recyclable resources,

increase area of greening and introduce the concept of green

environmental protection in the Group’s products.

Al

Energy Preservation and Emission Reduction

The Group always concerns itself with environmental
protection and works on energy saving and emission
reduction.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has
strengthened energy saving, emission reduction and
waste reduction in various aspects of its production
process as follows:

Related policy and Management
Production process method
Product Design e The Company has instilled the
concept of green-building into the
products and gained the certification
of green building materials and

products.

Choice of Supplier e Suppliers are asked to provide
environmental assessment reports or
guarantee of environmental protection
to help suppliers to enhance energy
conservation and emissions reduction

in production.

e Purchasing materials according
to order demand, the Company
preferentially chooses the nearby
suppliers to reduce the energy
consumption of delivery.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued) A.

A1 Energy Preservation and Emission Reduction
(continued)

Related policy and Management
Production process method

Production e Dust Control: For dust generated
during our sealant processing, we use
filters to control and recover dust. For
dust generated during the spraying
process, the Group has adopted both
filter method and cyclone method to
control and recover dust.

* Noise Control: We adopted
various measures to control the
noise generated from its production
process, including implementation of
shock absorption, appropriate design
of factory layout, and cultivation of
plants at our production facilities.

Policies e Regularly conduct a comprehensive
energy audit to analyze the energy
management and give suggestions for
improvements.

e The company is effectively operating
the Environmental Management
System 1SO14001: 2004.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued) A RE(E)
A.1 Energy Preservation and Emission Reduction A1 EiBERBERAERAD (&)
(continued)
Related policy and Management ERBRREE
Production process ~ method EERE FE

The Group implemented “Safe, saving

energy and reducing consumption” & HRER
management in all the operation BEEIE)
sites to regulate the behaviour RBETTAR
of employees and lower energy PR LR AR
consumption. Production planning ETEIEFTR
department reasonably arranged BEETHEE
the production shift to avoid electric WK BEEE
usage rush hour. Al the office rooms RETEET
equipped with the curtain wall to BERERER
ensure efficient usage of sunlight and g WHOERS
save energy. MABAKLR

AERER

o KERVTRA

The Group has a comprehensive non- EZEIEANET
hazardous treatment and re-Utiisation JEES PN EN Gl
system to recycle and re-use the BANAEREE
waste. EFMEEERE
FRESREY) o

2 % 3 -

& : ’-,-‘-,.’-" |
= "
‘E_ i 3 J‘jm

wd AL

79



80

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017

Environmental, Social and Governance
RIE - B8 RERRSE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued) A. RE(EZ)
A1 Energy Preservation and Emission Reduction A1 EIRERBERAIRL A (4B)

(continued)

In 2017, the Company has not been challenged or 20175 » NABEAESZREFE

questioned by any competent government authorities A EREE E BT iE s i a

of relevant bodies in relation to issue on environmental FAHER Y S| fEIRIEIS L ETH

pollution caused by emission. REFHM o

Plan for the year 2018 2018 FH)51Z/

e To increase our transparency by developing o EEI@BHIFIARIABE
company-wide guidelines for energy consumption, IRIEFRES] » AKRET
as well as setting greenhouse gas emission target B 2017 F 5| 2019F )
of 3% reduction from 2017 to 2019. BERBHMANSZ=

RET - BINERE -

e To further reduce paper use by enhancing the o BRI EIAELALER
paperless system for internal communications. o E— TR -

Energy and resource Consumption and Pollutant KEEFEER « B HFERT

Emissions of the Group R

The main emissions of the Group are carbon dioxide, REBNETESRETELSE -

nitrogen oxides, sulfur dioxide and particulate matter athx - mELEY - —&1k

which are monitored to ensure compliance with i~ BB o BT MEERE K

standards before being discharged. R - AR AIZEEHE

B ©
a
Chart 1 =M1
Resources consumption of the Group EEEFEER
Power Water
consumption Diesel Gasoline consumption
(KWH) L) (L) (md)
HEE S | FKE
(FEE) (H) (FH) (LK)

Annual Consumption of 2017 14,611,801 270,643 83,418 340,741

2017 F2FHER

Annual Consumption of 2016 17,821,985 352,032 403,510 512,314

2016 F2FHEE
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A

A2

Energy Preservation and Emission Reduction
(continued)

Chart 2
Indlirect emissions of the Group

Carbon dioxide

emissions

(kg)

— &b

HmE

(F%)

Annual emissions of 2017 15,473,293

2017 E2EHHE

Annual emissions of 2016
2016 F2FHWE

19,641,013

Green Concept

In order to be more effective in utilisation of resources
and achieve waste reduction and environmental
protection, all the operation sites of the Group began to
implement ‘Green’ office, ‘Green’ material and ‘Green’
filing management. Employees are also encouraged
to save documents, files and product information
electronically and go paperless, thus resolving the
difficulty in file searching and management and realising
resources sharing. In term of production technology,
selects and uses lighter and more environmental-friendly
materials to ease the burden to the environment.

The Group focuses on the greening of production bases.
Total carbon dioxide annually absorbed by green plants
is 726,570 kg.

A. BIE(E)

A1 ERREREEIREIRIA (A8

*I&2
EEEEHNY
No,_ So, Particulate
emissions emissions matter
(kg) (kg) (kg)
AEEW —F iR
B E B E TR
(%) (F=) (F=)
514,596 438,354 3,974,410
1,694,142 534,660 4,847,580
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A.2 Green Concept (continued)

A3

Chart 3
Green planting area

Production base in Shenyang

BRAESN

Production base in Chengdu

PREEER

Production base in Foshan

I EEE

Production base in Shanghai

LBEERN

Waste Management

A. BIE(E)

A2 4kBIBS(E

RI%3
AREERETE
2017 2016
20175 2016
Green area  Absorbed carbon Green area Absorbed carbon
of the base dioxide(kg) of the base dioxide(kg)

BERLER RU-EHE k) FE&EE TR aLiE ko)

120,000 m? 726,570 125,000 m? 744,970
8,167 m? 8,167 m?
4,000 m? 3,000 m?
25,783 m? 25,783 m?

A3 REEYER

The Group has a comprehensive non-hazardous EEEY TEAEERENE
treatment and re-utilisation system to recycle and re- T P Z 455 DA [B] U R0 B ) R R N
use the waste steel, waste paint, waste water, exhaust EEEMAEERETELR
gas even the waste packing materials arisen from the LB - BEER . pRakR R
production process in all the Group’s factories. All the AW R BEEME o ZLLpE) e
wastes would be collected, sorted and recycled. FREEAME O U T

Bl BREFAA -
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continuea) A. BRE(E)
A.3 Waste Management (continued) A3 FEYEIE(E)
Chart 4 &I%4
Waste recycling management S ESOF FE
2017 2016
175 2016F
Other Other

Metal  Wood  Plasic  Paper  waste Metal  Wood Plasic ~ Paper  waste

&8 &y BB £ Rt B AWM ZH G

Recycling weight (kg)-
production base in Shenyang 4,955,790 770,460 110,120 502,800 596,460 5,954,290 1,084,400 291,866 677,787 1,186,064
ERAEES-IWEE (g

Recycling weight (kg)-

production base in Foshan 572,330 320,270 - 33930 434140 625940 57,638

fRLAEER-RNES (k)
Recycling weight (kg)-

20680 45,070

14,460 245 796,265 = - 2121 1,970

production base in Chengdu 341,170
RAEERN-DUEE k)
Recycling weight (kg)-

production base in Shanghai 563,728 44,331 - 34950 11,685 756419 57496 5820 591,300 4550
FEEER-TUEE (g
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B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS B.

The Group’s sustainability and development cannot be
separated from the value of its employees. The Group strives
to continuously establish and improve its staff management
system, including the recruitment of quality employees,
establish and improve the welfare system to provide
employees with a safe working environment, improve the
professional development of employees with an objective that
employees can grow together with the Company.

Provide a good working Clear job description, appointment criteria
environment to attract and performance appraisal standards
outstanding employees

Cultivate staff Regular business training and education
development

Well-being of employees ~ Conduct regular physical examination,
games, convenient staff commuting and
sudden disaster weather timely evacuation

Importance of work Regular equipment maintenance, safety
safety training, dangerous operating practices
Promote a fair and Anti-corruption, anti-discrimination

honest corporate culture  awareness of publicity, reporting as well as

internal audit and other measures

ERRETIRE

ZEENAFEMEFERETHE
TITHEME - AKELE HTEEILMN
TEEIEEER  EEEENE
BET Bv #2aEFER -
AETRE—ELTE2MNIIERE -
e E THBEERE AT HED
BiFEE Te AR KRIKE ©

BURFTHE  EEE NS
BAEFAT B EEEE G
B

RABTHRRZER TEHNRHEI - H

A

BEEIMERE B 2P {
BTRY REUE
KRR B

ERZ2LE EHRFEER X2

Bl
EEATRAN RER  REAES
EEX ME



AP BERARAT ZF—-baEaER

Environmental, Social and Governance
RIE - HERERRSE

B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS (continued)

B.1

Working Environment

To enable the growth and development of the Group’s
employees, the Group strives to build a collaborative
and harmonious working environment. The Company
rewards its employees with competitive remuneration
packages and fringe benefits which commensurate
with their experience and job task. Staff members are
also informed of requirements on expected professional
conduct. The Company adheres to the “fairness,
equality, diversity” principle for its staff management
and does not tolerate discrimination or harassment in
any form, and allow its staff members to realise their full
potential at work.

The Company adopted a transparent system for
assessing staff performance. At the end of each
year, the Company will appraise the performance of
all employees, and together with the results of the
assessment results and employees’ personal desire
to adjust their job nature and pay arrangement as
appropriate.

In terms of talent recruitment, the Group attracts the
best talents through various channels such as social
recruitment, internal recommendation and campus
recruitment, and strengthen the talent deployment
between different regions. All employment with the
Group is voluntary. The Group complies with national
and local laws and all employees are voluntary and do
not employ any child labor. The Group is dedicated to
ensuring that operations remain free from child labor,
and is developing systems and procedures to handle
the management of such incidents. Should a child be
discovered working on our premises, he or she will
immediately be transported back to their hometown
or place of origin. The Group will then file necessary
documentation with the local authorities while consulting
with the child’s guardians on avenues for his or her return
to school.
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B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS (continued) B. EREREIREE)

B.2 Cultivate Staff Development B2 EEETIXE
NAIEEE T2 53 E

and further studies to enhance their job-related skills RIR S M P9 T /EHL B2 A &0

# o fERREI—E  1BIlER

The Company encourages its staff to undertake training

and knowledge. This training shall contribute to a

more productive and effective workforce that is able to
address the challenges that the Company may face as a
company.

Changes in social and business environments may
require updated skill sets to deal with new market
opportunities. The Group has devoted plenty resources
in offering staff training and development programmes.
We encourage continuous learning via training and
further studies to enhance our staff’s job-related
skills and knowledge. It does not only increase staff

WﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁWmM@ﬁ'%
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satisfaction and reduce staff turnover but also enhances
ability for staff to adapt to change.

The Company also has a strong desire to develop

e e TMEREETREE
|z¢ffﬁ,§\_|__/m9i’ s

BIERTE

TiEERLMEES -

its own pool of talents in view of the uniqueness and

diversity of its business. The
Company provides graduates
with the opportunity to make
their way up in their career as
qualified professionals. Other
training, such as seminars,
workshops and technical visits
are aligned to the specific
needs of individuals, covering
professional development as well
as management and technical
skills.

For the year ended 31 December
2017, the Group organised a total
of 31 internal training targeted at
employees of the Group.
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B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS (continued)

B.2

B.3

Cultivate Staff Development (continued)

Employees Type of trainings

Management level Managerial and compliance

Design department Software operation

Workshop and Safety operation, safety installation training

construction site and raw material production

Sales department Business etiquette and language

Well-being of Employees

A healthy work-life balance is encouraged among the
Group’s staff members. The Group has organised a
wide array of staff activities including badminton contest,
ping pong contest and brisk walking, amongst others, to
cater to the diverse interests of its employees.

As the fast pace and pressure of life, the Group and
the specialized medical institutions reached a long-term
cooperation agreement, pursuant to which staff can
enjoy a medical check-up and examination on an annual
basis. Further, the Company also arranged and invited
relevant medical specialists to the factory and production
site to arrange physical examination for staff free-of-
charge.
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B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS (continued) B. EREREIREE)

B.4 Occupational Safety B4 BFELE

The health and safety of the Group’s employees
are of utmost concern. The Group has adopted the
Management System GB/T28001-20110HSAS18001:
2007 as a standard to guide its approach in mitigating
occupational health and safety hazards.

Different safety-related initiatives and measures
have been rolled out in the Group’s operations. Risk
assessments are also conducted to identify risks in
special working environments, while detailed safety
instructions have been formulated and communicated to
workers as part of their safety training sessions. Safety
officers are appointed to coordinate and communicate
safety-related matters to workers on site.

Safety In order to clarify the operational

instructions steps and risk points of each
process, the Group has prepared
a number of safety instructions.

Training In order to ensure the safety of
employees in practice, the Group
conducts training on theory and
field safety on a regular basis to
promote safety awareness.

Inspection Perform regular maintenance and
inspection on the production sits
with higher tendency of safety
issues.
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B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS (continued)

B.4 Occupational Safety (continued)

Certification The Group has passed the GBT
28001-2011/OHSAS18001:
2007 safety management
certification, during the process
of which, a comprehensive review
of the Group’s safety risks had
been conducted and thorough
rectification.

Accountability Strengthen the Group’s safety
management by way of annual
assessment of the responsible
person responsible the safety
issue of each workshop and
production site.

The Group also seeks to influence its subcontractors and
collaborate with them to heighten their understanding of
safety concerns at the workplace.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there
was no confirmed material non-compliance incident
or grievance in relation to human rights and labour
practices. Reported lost days due to work related injuries
amounted to a total of 90 days.

B. EEREIR&E(=)

B4 BXZZ2(&)

g REERIB T GBT
28001-2011/
OHSAS18001:
2007 L2 EER
BAERBEZ
BEFEHREZE
BEEETEE
B H B o

BE HREEERR
EERGHER
2REEA BB
RERREFE
ZZ AR BT
B MREERE
e

SETHESHES B 0 &
I —RERR S TIESMN %

BB -

HZ=2017F12 A 31 HEAMAE -
HMEOBRNERERSZHRA
RS TR R o B T {ERRE
WISERTIEQX -
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B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS (continued)

B.5

B.6

Fair and honest corporate culture

The Group adheres to high standards of business ethics
and integrity, all staff members are required to abide by
the requirements of professional conduct specified in the
employees handbook. Strict rules have also been laid out
on accepting gifts from business partners during festive
seasons.

In order to promote a corporate culture with high integrity
standard, the Company not only regularly conducts
lectures on anti-corruption, but also encourages all
employees to participate in anti-corruption activities.
Complementing this effort is the implementation of an
anti-fraud policy as well as a whistle-blowing policy,
which provides a reporting channel for employees and
stakeholders such as customers, suppliers, amongst
others to report any misconduct or malpractice. During
the reporting year, there had been no confirmed case of
corruption.

Compliance

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
had no material incidences of non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations regarding employment and
labour practices.

Plan for 2018

o To offer the opportunity to employees for furthering
their skills

o To increase employees’ knowledge on health
protection and introduce health and hygiene
knowledge.

B. EEREIR&G(#E)

B.5

B.6

EHATFRENEEXIE

5 B2 5 5 Y P S (R
B - A B LA AETE
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Z3k o FRRERItLEEIRERNH
Eﬂ?ﬁ'ﬂﬁ'\]%&?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ ®
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£ REMEEHRETRBR
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B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS (continued) B. EREREIREE)

B.6 Compliance (continued) B.6 AM(E)
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 6,094 HZE2017F12A31H » AX&EE
employees. The formation of its staff was as follows: HERE ABEET6,094 A -
ABERBERNT :
Chart 5 xI%5
Employees of the Group EEBTIEX
2017 2016
2017 5§ 2016
Number of Training hours Number of  Training hours
employees per capita employees per capita

BIAR ASEINE BTAR Al

Total A% 6,094 7,425
Gender MRl Male 1 5,210 3.70 6,351 253
Female 221t 884 3.30 1,074 2.15
Age IBE iR Under the age of 30 839 4.20 2,291 2.60
S0MUT
Between the age of 30 and 50 4,869 3.64 4,870 2.43
30-50 5%
Above the age of 50 386 2.45 264 2.20
50 mbA £
Region /& Northeast of China 7 Bl 1t & 13 3,839 4.10 2,804 2.64
Other regions H b 2,255 2.86 4,531 2.37
Job category B4 Senior management B2 /8 265 5.30 233 3.25
Ordinary emplyee &8 T 5,829 3.57 7,192 2.45
In 2017, the turnover of employees is 17.9%. 2017 A B 7 %k & A

17.9% °
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OPERATION PRACTICES

Since establishment, the Group has been committed to
building and improving the supply chain of products. On the
basis of traditional curtain wall products, the Group adopts
relatively complex designs, uses new materials or advanced
technology to develop a variety of products, which has
proven to be able to provide different functions, such as
environmental protection, energy saving and intelligent control.
A comprehensive product supply has laid a solid foundation for
the Group’s development in the China and overseas markets.
In order to ensure products are of high quality, the Group
screens its suppliers strictly in terms of quality provided, and
pay close attention to maintain a good relations of cooperation

mIBEE

BEISIAK - RA—BEENER
TEEMMRE EEGERERN
AL RPERAEZEMNR
A M EERER - REZRE
Em - DRETEINEE - MRE
EiBE R B REIE R - 2 E R EMmELE
REMEETRENER - FRP
BAFINTIZERBNAR - KIRE
EmimmE - RABRRGEED
R - WIS RHEERTER
BERENGERER FREKBES
2 RNEE -

with customers to ensure efficient and smooth operation of the
Group.

AEBELREY T EENHERT
mEG  NMEBREBERNE N
8 HEEBRG - E
B BEEREMER &
TRTRERR - HAR
BEEREMBAER - RIEF
HER  BFHREFES

The Group has established a comprehensive supplier
evaluation system that includes not only the strength and
reputation of the supplier, the quality control system, the
technology, the capacity, the
management and the price of the
product, but also whether it is

environmentally friendly, harmless to @
AC ® oo N
- BREEEEE - WEEHK

the human body and other factors.
H B i R R AE o H P . . —
According to the assessment resullts, ERERE R HEES BAB-C=

the list of qualified suppliers is 89 metssaRIL 8 REBR—MREINZF

BiEM
compiled every year, and the qualified w2 e FEMAaRHERDE
suppliers are divided into three il X BRME - HPABERE
. GB/T 24001-2004 idt ISO 14001: 2004 . wr 5 =/ Q
categories: A, B and C. The Group i R CHEREZE -

MR AR, SR AT,
BEENTHRIH?. FL. 27 ZEPRF
ATHENHM: 2015212 080 £ 20841200 0
SENRMASSRPE S0 BB NOEF AN R, KA # i Skt St qac. com on;
AR LT AR FASUTRAFEE L& TH MM vow. cnca, gov, ca L3

PR AR P KAEF: lﬁ
Sk 4 AL W 2015 4128 08 B

usually purchases raw materials only
from the qualified suppliers of the list,
of which A is the preferred choice and
C is the least preferred choice of the
three categories.

ATPARLZRBTNH LT 10040
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C. OPERATION PRACTICES (continued)

CA

Product responsibility

The Group performs a number of product performance

tests before, during and after installation to ensure a high

level of safety as follows:

Before Safety test for
installation  curtain wall

connectivity

Re-testing of
materials

Material
compatibility
testing

Curtain wall
performance
testing

The test will usually be conducted during the embedment
and after the embedment of the curtain wall parts. The
Group will firstly apply for testing, and then conduct
sample testing on site as approved by the site supervisor.
Testing will be conducted by a professional testing
company, which willissue a test report to guide us on the
rectification step thereafter, if any.

This is a quality test of curtain wall components. The

site supervisor will select the material samples from the
site. Thereafter, samples will be sent to the laboratory for
chemical and physical testing, with conclusions being
delivered by the laboratory with reference to the national
and industry-related standards.

This Is a safety and performance test to determine if the
sealant and curtain wall components have any bonding
problems or harmful chemical effects. Samples of curtain
wall components will be provided to the relevant sealant
manufacturers who will conduct the tests and provide
written reports to the Group.

This test is used to ensure that the performance of

the curtain wall in use, with four basis tests to be
conducted, including wind pressure, water-tightness,
air tightness, in-plane deformation. Inspections may
also include insulation, sound insulation, seismic and
optical performance as part of the test, as appropriate.
Performance testing is conducted by national laboratory
with reference to the relevant project curtain wall
performance and performance indicators.

C.

minEE(E)
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C. OPERATION PRACTICES (continued) C. MmiZEZ(E)
C.1  Product responsibility (continued) Cl EmEEE)
During Conformance  The purpose of the testis to ensure that people and &R BEAREN RUBHEETERENR
installation  testing of property in the building will not be damaged by lightning. B HANBETERBER
lightning Detection will be carried out in each lightning protection E mﬁf E-pler
protection grid. SRR EERET -
grid
Strength The structural achesive is used to connect the curtain wal EEBNE EEBBARNERSERS
testing of panel and aluminum. This is what is required to be done Al REH  ERAMEZ L
structural after applying the structural adhesive and applying the EEBRUNSRIN £
achesives sealant to the curtain wall component. 2 EBHBAEEETN
o
After On-site water  This is a field test of whether the curtain wall has water RE%  BEEKS GERYBRATLKAE
installation  spray test leakage, i.e., a five-minute water spray test for each B Bae NERETTE
CroSs-connector. NETRAAERKAS -
Incaseof Tobehanded We attach enormous significance to customer RERHE THRE NY%EP E@&uﬁuﬂi
complaint(s) assoonas  satisfaction and regard customers’ feedback as the ﬁ* ERAE TARE
possible motivation for advancement and innovation. Any o
complaint to our operation sites will be recorded and dealt
with immediately.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the HZE0017E12 B31 BILEE
customers’ complaints rate of the Group is under 1%. N KEBZEEEFRER
The Company will continue to enhance its product 19% o ZK/L\\ TS 4 =R E
quality to strive to reduce the number of complaints in B VIR RIS

the future. 2 o
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C. OPERATION PRACTICES (continued)

C.2 Supply chain management

The Group relies on an extensive network of suppliers
and subcontractors to ensure the quality and
consistency of its services. The proactive management
of the Group’s supply chain helps the Group mitigate
and manage related risks that may affect its operations.
The Group continuously engages with its subcontractors
and raise their awareness on occupational health and
safety issues. The Group also monitors and assesses its
suppliers and subcontractors by reviewing their services,
product quality, safety, financial performance on an
annual basis. Substandard suppliers and subcontractors
will be suspended or even removed from our approved
vendor list.

The Group has established a very perfect supplier
evaluation system, evaluation factors include not only the
strength and credibility of the supplier, the quality control
system, technology, production capacity, supply ability,
management and product price, also consider whether
the factors such as environmental protection, harmless
to the human body. According to the evaluation results,
compiled annually qualified supplier list, and qualified
suppliers can be divided into A, B, C three categories,
we usually only from this year’s list of qualified suppliers
in the purchase of raw materials, including class A is
preferred, class C as the last resort. In order to reduce
carbon emissions in the process of transportation and
save the transportation cost at the same time, we give
priority to local quality qualified suppliers.

Preliminary review of documents and discussion on
bidding proposals will be conducted. When the final
decision is made after deliberation, the Group will enter
into a purchase agreement with the selected supplier.

Necessary due diligence is also performed where
required, with site visits and verification of products or
services arranged to ensure that suppliers conform to
the Group’s high standards.

C.
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C. OPERATION PRACTICES (continued)

C.2

C.3

Supply chain management

Chart 6
Qualified suppliers of the Group

Number of suppliers

HEBHE

Geographical region

bicezi) ]

Northeast of China
514

Other regions of China
HhEm

Overseas
SEHN

Intellectual Rights Protection

In order to provide consumers with genuine high-
quality products and protect our product and installation
method of intellectual property rights, in 2017, the Group
obtained 16 patents, including 4 patents for invention

and 12 patents for utility model.

HiZEE(E)
C.2 HpE@EeEs

*1%6
EELSERERIER

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 F &
135 147
566 715
124 152

C.3 HBERERE

ATEERHBEEERESES
MEM  AREEBRMHE
mREE T AN AHRERE - R
20174 - AEEHEZRIF
1618 - HRERAEF415 -
BERMEERN 1218 -
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COMMUNITY D. #E
The Group as a corporation, should take up and be EA—EAR  KEEEZAESHT
accountable for social responsibility. The Group actively @EF o  REBRBRBA LA =ME
cares about the society and fulfills its corporate social ThEEMESEE  BRKIAR @ &£
responsibilities. Ever since the establishment, the Group has B -HREFRYEBEE A EM
been maintaining close communications and interactions with BER(BEEH R - it &
local communities in order to contribute to local development. EE SRR R M ATEE)
As a result of which, the Group actively participates in BelZE—AMELrear = -
community and government livelihood activities, to create a
harmonious society.
Chart 7 RIBT
Social responsibility activities HEEELE
Date Community activities
HH SEEERE
2017117 Alleviated poverty of military families
=
2017.3.15 Organized health knowledge lectures
{2 % R 8k o B
2017.3.17 Honored the martyrs of the War to Resist US Aggression and Aid Korea
KEMEERANLE
2017.3.23 Organized free medical consultation clinic about spine for local family
BTHEATERD
2017.6.17 Organized the stride race
P E
2017.7.27 Alleviated poverty of military families
BE
2017.12.4 Organized constitution propaganda
BEHRERE
Every month  Organized psychological consultation and public lectures
WS LIS N
In 2017, total expense of community activities is about 20175 e ETHBaT LA

RMBO0.12 million. ARBEQOI2EETT °
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COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company adhered to the business philosophy of
“Materials Bringing a Prosperous Life”. \While improving
management and creating values, the Company opens up
various channels for the stakeholders, including investors,
employees, customers, suppliers, subcontractors, regulators
and the media, to participate in the production and operation
of the Company, enabling the stakeholders to understand
and oversee the operation of the Company and the Company
to fully understand and actively respond to their opinions via
continuous communication and exchanges.

BN @MEEENRE

ARRRBFLEIED [ HRHER
TEWNEE] - ARREREEME
EEE ARIFETSERENT
@mEEE BERREE BT ¥
F-HER 288 BEEREN
e 2EQTNEELE  EF
540 B B SR R N B2 B A RV AE
AR B 72 2 T R I AR 5 R 4t 1P
BB L BBRERBRTIN -

ESG content index ESG % 35|
Aspect KPI Description Remarks
EHE B gt Bx
A. Environmental
AR
A1 Emission Al General Disclosure A, A1
A1 B —MRIKER
Al.1 Types of emissions and respective emissions data Chart 2
Per g $R AR A HE IR x~I%2
Al1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and where  Chart 2
appropriate, intensity
mERBBATNE R (WER)EZER xI%2
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and where Not Applicable
appropriate, intensity
FREXEEEEMEE R (WER)EE TiE A
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and where  Not Applicable
appropriate, intensity
EXBEEREENHEERTE TiE A
A1.5 Measure to mitigate emissions and results achieved A.2, Chart 3
AU EHE R E B FE i R PSR A2, FKIE3
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous A.3,
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results  Chart 4
achieved
HMREEEREZTEEYN L  BEELEEN AS,
EYSBIEEIDES x~&4
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ESG content index (continued)

Aspect
Em

A2 Use of Resources

A2 ERER

A3

The Environment
and Natural
Resources

A3 RERRAREIR

B. Social

B.#®
Employment and
Labour Practices
EER S T#R
B1 Employment
B1 Ef&

KPI
B

A2

A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

A3

A3.1

B1

ESGZ5|(#&)

Description

i

General Disclosure

—MRIKER

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in
total and intensity

RENEIDNERER SHEEREEERTE
Water consumption in total and intensity
BFEKERTE

Energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved
e R A e vt 8 R AT1E R

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved
0t SRERE A 7KOR B Rl BRI RE - A R AKX
Mt & LTS RCR

Total packaging material used for finished products
RmTABREMENEER(NER)BEESN
2

General Disclosure

—MRIRER

Significant impacts of activities on the environment
and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them
HIREBEHHRBERRABERNEATEREK
BERBBTENITE

General Disclosure

—MRIRE

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age
group and geographical region

ZR - EREDS - FRAER KRS NESR
2

Remarks

B

A

A.1, Chart 1

A, R
A.1, Chart 1
A1, RIEA
A1

Al

A.1, Chart 1

A, RIEA

A3

A
A

A.1, Chart 1
A.2, Chart 3

A, RIEA
A2, K13

B
B

B.6, Chart 5

B.6, & 1% 5

99



100

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017

Environmental, Social and Governance

BIR - HERERHRE

ESG content index (continued)

Aspect
Em

B2 Health and Safety
B2 REHEZE

B3 Development
and Training

B3 2R K iEZH

B4 Labour Standards
B4 % T %A

KPI
BR

B2

B2.1

B2.2

B2.3

B3

B3.1

B3.2

B4.1

B4.2

ESG %S| (&)

Description

S

General Disclosure

—MRIKER

Number and rate of work-related fatalities

B TEREREME T A AB K&

Lost days due to work injury

EITEERTERS

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, how they are implemented and
monitored

A PTER AN B SR (2 R B2 245 3 - DA KRB EATT
REER A

General Disclosure

—MRIRER

Percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category

BRI REERRESNZIEER D

Average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category
BREMNKEEREMNE D BREETKZIIN TS
1532

General Disclosure

—MRIRER

Measures to review employment practices to avoid
child and forced labour

it g s FRHE B I e HE LAE R B T s 45 T
Steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered

R IR B AR IB R bR E T R 5R il 85 TIE AT
EREREY 27 5

Remarks

B

B.1
B.1

B.6, Chart 5
B.6, &1&5
B.6, Chart 5
B.6, &1&5
B.1

B.1

B.2
B.2

B.6, Chart 5

B.6, &1%5
B.6, Chart 5

B.6, &x1&5

B.3,B.4
B.3, B4
B.1

B.1
B.1

B.1
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ESG content index (continued)

Aspect
Em

Operating Practices
B

B5 Supply Chain
Management

B5 B E IR

B6 Product
Responsibility
B6 EmEE

KPI
B

B5

B5.1

B5.2

B6

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

ESGZ5|(#&)

Description

i

General Disclosure

—MRIKER

Number of suppliers by geographical region

=i [R B 5 e 2 B

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored

AR MHERNES - RERITERENN
HEEEE - URBBEHITRERGE

General Disclosure

—MRIRER

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject
to recalls for safety and health reasons
EENEERERAAPAL S EEREHMAR
WHI B L

Number of products and services related complaints
received and how they are dealt with

B Em M RIGEVIRFEE AR EE A
Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights

T ot B o % RS AN EE R A O 1B 1D

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures

R E 21 E @R K Em B KA

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, how they are implemented and monitored
HEE B ERMRE RALBEE - AREERTR

= =
BEERA

Remarks

B

C
C

C.2, Chart 6
C.2, X146
C,C.2

C,C2

C1
C.1
C.1

C.1

C.1

C.1
C.3

C.3
C1

C.1
C.1

C.1
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ESG content index (continued) ESG %&5|(#&)

Aspect KPI Description Remarks

BT B Haat Bx

B7 Anti-corruption B7 General Disclosure B.5'B.6

B7 RE)5 — MR EE B.5 ' B.6
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt B.5 ' B.6

practices during the reporting period and the

outcomes of the cases
RERMAHETAXEEERELEEENES B5 B6
FARMHE B ReFFA&S

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle- B.5' B.6
blowing procedures, how they are implemented and
monitored
PR IERBRET - URBBABITRESRS B5'B6
)7
B8 Community B8 General Disclosure D
Investment — IR D
B8 #EEE B8.1 Focus areas of contribution Chart 7
BIERERE =IRT7
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area Chart 7

EEIRBBAER RIBT
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B XA RS

KPMIG

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yuanda
China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 112 to 243, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
o WE R S CIESEC )

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated

financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Recognition of construction contract revenue
Refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies

in Notes 2(0) and 2(u)(i).

The Key Audit Matter

The Group is primarily engaged in the
design, production and installation of
curtain wall systems for commercial
buildings and high-end residential
buildings. The Group normally enters
into construction contracts with main
contractors or real estate developers.

The Group recognises construction
contract revenue based on the
percentage of completion (“POC”) of
individual contracts, calculated based
on the proportion of total contract
costs incurred at the end of reporting
period compared to the estimated total
budgeted contract costs to complete
the contract.

The measurement of the POC and
revenue therefore relies on estimations
of total budgeted contract costs.
Changes to estimated total budgeted
contract costs could give rise to material
variances in the amount of revenue
recognised.

Contracts entered into by the Group
are mostly fixed price contracts,
although there may be variations which
are instructed by the customers for
changes in the scope of the work to
be performed under the construction
contracts. A variation is included in
contract revenue when it is probable
that the customer will approve the
variation and the amount of revenue
arising from the variation can be reliably
measured.

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Our procedures to assess the recognition
of construction contract revenue included
the following:

e assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls over the budgeting
process for construction contracts;

e scrutinising the key clauses of
construction contracts selected
on a sample basis, and assessing
whether these key clauses had
been appropriately reflected in the
estimation of total budgeted contract
costs and contract variations applied
in calculating contract revenue;

¢ challenging the Group’s estimates
of budgeted costs to complete
the contract on a sample basis by
considering the Group’s historical
records of gross profit margins for
similar contracts;

e assessing whether major costs
incurred were accounted for in the
appropriate period and comparing
major costs incurred during the
current period to purchase invoices
and other relevant underlying
documentation on a sample basis;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZHAIRE @

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Recognition of construction contract revenue (continued)
Refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies

in Notes 2(0) and 2(u)()).

The Key Audit Matter

We identified the recognition of
construction contract revenue as a
key audit matter because there is a
high degree of risk and associated
management judgement in estimating
total budgeted contract costs and the
timing of recognition of variation orders
and, consequently, the amount of
revenue to be recognised by the Group.

How the matter was addressed in our

audit

performing a re-calculation of
revenue recognised for individual
contracts based on the estimated
total budgeted contract costs,
the costs incurred to date and the
agreed contract price (including
variations);

performing site visits for selected
major contracts in progress,
physically observing the stage
of completion of the contract
and discussing the status of the
contract with the site supervisor;
and

discussing material contract
variations with management
and challenging their estimation
of the recoverability of contract
variations and the timing of
recognition of the related revenue
by inspecting correspondence
with customers, bank statements
and other relevant underlying
documentation indicating
subsequent settlement, if any.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of trade receivables and bills receivable
Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies

in Note 2(K)()

The Key Audit Matter

The Group’s trade receivables and
bills receivable arise from the Group’s
construction contract business. As at
31 December 2017, the aggregate
amount of trade receivables and bills
receivable aged more than six months,
based on the invoice date, totalled
RMB2,102.1 million.

Trade receivables and bills receivable
are reviewed by management at the end
of each reporting period to determine
the credit risk and whether there is
evidence of impairment. Credit risk
assessments focus on the customers’
and debtors’ past history of making
payments when due and current
ability and willingness to pay, taking
into account the financial position of
the customers and debtors and the
macroeconomic environment in which
the customers and debtors operate.
The credit assessments also consider
the status of the construction project,
i.e. whether there is any delay, any
unresolved lawsuits or contentious
matters with customers or debtors.

We identified the valuation of trade
receivables and bills receivable as
a key audit matter because of the
significant balances at the end of the
reporting period and because there is
a high degree of risk and associated
management judgement in estimating
allowances for doubtful debts.

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Our procedures to assess the valuation
of trade receivables and bills receivable
included the following:

o assessing the design and
implementation of key internal
controls over the credit control
and debt collection processes;

o assessing whether items were
categorised appropriately in
the trade receivables and bills
receivable ageing report by
comparing a sample of individual
items with the underlying sales
invoices and other relevant
documentation;

o selecting a sample of contracts
based on a variety of quantitative
and qualitative factors and
assessing management’s
evaluations in respect of the
customers’” ability to pay based on
the historical trading experience
with the relevant customers and
the financial condition of these
customers; and

o obtaining cash receipts recorded
after the year end relating to trade
receivables and bills receivable as
at the end of the reporting period
and comparing a sample of cash
receipts with bank statements
and other relevant underlying
documentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZHAIRE @

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZHAIRE @

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
o WE R S CIESEC )

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE BB MmBZS M BRRRIENSE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) (&

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the - M EASHYBERERAERETHRA R
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, HEENMAS  BREFEE  UAREGHE
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent BHREREERERMRZZHMEIH o

the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the = HEEBERNERAES TN BEE
financial information of the entities or business activities within BENTRE  HENERE - UE
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial HEHPBEREERER - E58E
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision EEEFANSR  EBMBIT - &
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely EhAEAERAERTEE -

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other MEMEBIEIN  BESHEBEREESERAT
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 2 ETEE - BB TH - EAET R

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control BE  BEESERT R L A S0 F
that we identify during our audit. FOFEREIEPNFREI

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have EENABZEZESRRIER  HBPESE
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence ERAEBBIIIENEEEEEEEN
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that WHFEEBEREAEAEIHEAESZE

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where EEBYMENAEBEMEMSIE - UK
applicable, related safeguards. EEARNERT - 1B FEEE o
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is YU Wai Sum.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
EptERER

(Expressed in Renminbi (‘RMB”))  For the year ended 31 December 2017
(AARB(TAR% ) REf) HZE2017F12A31 B LFE

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥T T ARETIT
Revenue WA 4 5,688,650 7,324,415
Cost of sales SHERK AR (4,439,731) (6,032,376)
Gross profit EF 4(b) 1,248,919 1,292,039
Other income A 5 108,949 114,467
Selling expenses SHE & (95,217) (121,358)
Administrative expenses TE R (971,578) (1,111,508)
Profit from operations £ 291,073 173,640
Finance costs BhE Ak AR 6(a) (232,801) (86,446)
Profit before taxation A R 6 58,272 87,194
Income tax FrfS i 7 27,457 (10,577)
Profit for the year FRFE 85,729 76,617
Attributable to: AR A4 -
Equity shareholders of the Company — Z"A &R 60,652 87,039
Non-controlling interests IEIE AR iE RS 25,077 (10,422)
Profit for the year FRRE 85,729 76,617
Earnings per share SREXN(ARE®S)
(RMB cents)
— Basic and diluted —HANEEE 11 0.98 1.40

The notes on pages 120 to 243 form part of these financial F120 8 EF 243 B2 T BILFM B HE
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of 285 o AR RIRREMFAFEZ
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in Note &% SR EERHIEE27(0) ©

27(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
EffEEREMZEKER

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2017
(AARBEBEN) HE2017TF12A31 BILFE

2017 2016
2017 £ 2016 4F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR®T ARET T
Profit for the year FERFE 85,729 76,617
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKE
for the year (after tax and (BRBRREHFIE
reclassification adjustments): HAEE) 10
[tems that may be reclassified HEgEiHhoEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmMIEE
— Exchange differences on —HERNE R
translation of financial = THEAR
statements of the Company BB HmERABET
and certain subsidiaries BEEHIE R =58
into presentation currency 94,903 (131,567)
— Cash flow hedge: —BEREE A
net movement in the AR E)FE
hedging reserve 9,981 19,544
Other comprehensive income FREMEE RS
for the year 104,884 (112,023)
Total comprehensive income FRAZHEKREEE
for the year 190,613 (85,406)
Attributable to: BUR ARG :
Equity shareholders of the Company 282 &) &R 183,615 (24,324)
Non-controlling interests e 6,998 (11,082)
Total comprehensive income FRAZHERRBEE
for the year 190,613 (35,400)
The notes on pages 120 to 243 form part of these financial F 120 BEEF 243 8 2 i sE AL S EHE

statements. Z—E8m o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B O BARR R

(Expressed in RMB) At 31 December 2017

(MARBEEN) R2017F12A318

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Lease prepayments
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventories

Gross amount due from customers

for contract work
Trade and bills receivables
Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables
Cash on hand and in bank

Current liabilities
Trade and bills payables
Gross amount due to customers
for contract work
Receipts in advance
Accrued expenses and
other payables

FRBEE

EfNES
EEHIREE

REBEE

e
ElE S SR T8

B 2 MR & BRI
B BNRE

H At FE UK
FERE MIRTTIFK
REAE

BIRNALENRER
ENEFPARIIZEER

TBURIR
FERTRA ST R B AR AR

Bank loans RITER

Income tax payable FERPTIS TR

Provision for warranties RISEAE
Net current assets RBEETFE

Total assets less current liabilities @& ERAIHER

The notes on pages 120 to 243 form part of these financial
statements.

Note
HiaE

12
13
25(c)

15

16
17

18
19(a)

20

16
21

22
23(a)
25(a)

26

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
617,302 695,726
600,490 623,646
454,312 396,655
1,672,104 1,716,027
277,198 357,938
4,027,183 4,998,142
3,035,194 3,109,682
663,842 635,270
1,805,591 2,362,694
9,809,008 11,463,726
3,314,858 4,080,981
891,455 1,289,660
16,282 19,444
591,806 738,973
2,222,000 3,560,000
211,528 205,086
52,277 42 671
7,300,206 9,936,815
2,508,802 1,526,911
4,180,906 3,242,938

F£120 BE 5243 B 2 MisE ALt S0 SRR

1)

25

N

o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
B P RN & (80

(Expressed in RMB)

At 31 December 2017

(MARKAREN) R2017F12A318
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt ARET T AREFIT
Non-current liabilities FRBEMS
Bank loans IRITER 23(b) 721,551 -
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBEE 25(c) 3,971 4,527
Provision for warranties RIS FEAE 26 257,118 230,758
982,640 235,285
NET ASSETS BEE 3,198,266 3,007,653
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERREE 27
Share capital A& 7N 519,723 519,723
Reserves i 2,817,332 2,633,717
Total equity attributable to equity  Z</A TR R FE(L A RE 2
shareholders of the Company 3,337,055 3,153,440
Non-controlling interests FEfE R R (138,789) (145,787)
TOTAL EQUITY R 3,198,266 3,007,653

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29
March 2018.

EEEN2018F3 A29F #H /£ R IFHEE M o

Kang Baohua Wang Hao
REEE IR
Director (Chairman) Director
EF(ZERE) BE

The notes on pages 120 to 243 form part of these financial B0 HE5F 243 B 7 M Al &R %

Z—85

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
O EREER

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2017
(AARBAER) HE2017F12A31ALFE

Aftrioutable to equty shereholders of the Company

FRARERL
Shares held
under share
award PRC Non-
scheme stafutory controling
Se  Shae  RERA Other  resenes  Exchange  Hedging  Retained nterests Totd

aptd  pemum  #EHE e PEET  esve  resene  pofis  Tod  FEBR ey

RE ROEE BERD  EbER 0 BE ENBE HRBE RENE &% EE @R
RMB000  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB00  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'0OD  RMBIOO0  RMB'000  RMBI0O0
ARETL ARETT ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARMTT ARMTT ARETT ARETR

(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note:

a0) a2 o) 2md) 2rde)  2rd)

W R W

a0 700 2700 200 k) 270k)  276k)

Balance at 1 January 2016 RO6E1 1A 268 519723 574047 RI0) 18069 30743 19948 (28304 1562124 3177764 (184705 3043059
Changes in equity for 2016: w0
Proftoss| forthe year Enfile/ (E8) = = - - - - .m0 09 (042 66T
Other comprehensive income A2 ARG - - - - - (180907 1954 - (11369 660) (112023
Total comprehensive income 2ENGEE = = - = - (10907 1954 87039 (434 (11,08 (35408
Appropriaton {o reserves e T - - - - . 281 56 ------- - - (28126) ------ ------ ------ -

Balance at 31 December 2016 RO6E12R3 A 2Gs 51973 574047 (10) 189698 368869 (11094  (B760) 1621087 3153440  (145787) 3007653

The notes on pages 120 to 243 form part of these financial F120B 2 F 243 B 2 Mz Bt Bk
statements. 22— o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
B RS ER @

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2017
(AARBEBEN) HE2017TF12A31 BILFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KAARRES
Shares held
under share
award PRC Non-
scheme statutory controlling
Share  Share  MERH  Other reseves Exchange  Hedging  Retained interests ~ Total

capital  premium  RE:E  reseve  WEEE  resene  reserve  profits Totl  FER  equity
Ba  RGEE HERH  AHREE e EXRE YrEE REAR it i 4B
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETn ARETT ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARMTR
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note

ae) ) ) 2 2 27 2rdii)

wE kg kR kE ok BE B

26) 21 200 276 26h) 2 26

Balance at 1 January 2017 ROITEIB1B 2 519728 574,047 (10) 160698 368869 (110,964 (8760 1,621,037 3153440 (145,787 3,007,653
Changes in equity for 2017: mEsmes:
Proft for the year EfHE - - - - - 60652 6062 260 85729
Other comprefensive income LT e - - - - - 112982 9,981 - 122063 (18079) 104884
Tota comprehensiieincome 2EhnEE - - - - - 112982 991 60652 183615 6998 190613
Appropriaton to reserves EEEE . - - - - - 24,337 ------- - - (24,337) ------ ------ ------ -

Balance at 31 December 2017 ROE12AS AZER 519728 STA0HT (210) 189698 93206 2018 1221 1657362 3337085  (138789) 3,198,266

The notes on pages 120 to 243 form part of these financial F120 BEF 243 B 2 Wit AL EB 15 *R
statements. Z—E8m o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHEERER

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2017
(AARBAER) HE2017F12A31ALFE

2017 2016
20175 2016 F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat AR®T R ARETTT
Operating activities REES
Profit before taxation TR AR E 58,272 87,194
Adjustments for: JHEIER
Depreciation and amortisation IE R H 6(c) 59,404 62,547
Interest income FEUWA 6(a) (4,749) (10,920
Interest expenses and FEFS REM
other borrowing costs BERA 6(a) 169,804 202,887
Net gain on disposal of HEWE  BE R
property, plant and equipment XA DA K 1 b {5 P A
and land use rights Wan e (98,383) (31,720)
Changes in working capital: BiEELH
Decrease in inventories FERD 80,740 75,022
Decrease in gross amount due EREFARIRE
from customers for contract work HERD 970,959 740,026
Decrease/(increase) in trade B SRR RN EE
and bills receivables md/(Em) 78,846 (297,021)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, 7& - BNER
prepayments and other receivables Hbpelk (32m),wd (10,442) 34,778
Decrease in trade and bills payables B RN REMNEZRRD (664,542) (341,375)
Decrease in gross amount due to ENEEARLIZRERLD
customers for contract work (398,205) (271,112)
Decrease in receipts in advance SEUE =N (3,162) (62,619)
Decrease in accrued expenses FERT B S M b A S0 A
and other payables (160,392) (82,667)
Increase in provision for warranties IRAEBEAEIZ AN 35,225 56,592
Cash generated from operations REmBES 113,375 161,616
Income tax paid B FEH 25(a) (27,763) (89,413)
Net cash generated from RETHMERESTFE
operating activities 85,612 72,203
The notes on pages 120 to 243 form part of these financial FA20 B2 FE 243 8 7 Mz At 8 k3=

1)

statements. > R

o

N
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)
'Aﬁﬁﬁﬁwma%a%)

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2017
(AARBEBEN) HE2017TF12A31 BILFE

2017 2016
20175 2016 &
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat AR®T R ARETT
Investing activities REEH
Payments for purchase of property, BEWE  BEIRENAK
plant and equipment and land use rights T3 {# FERR (2,694) (68,533)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BE KRN K
plant and equipment and land use rights {5 FR#E 2 FT{S 2008 102,474 23,948
Interest received 2 U F S 6,249 9,420
Payments for time deposits with a HEABR=EHZ
maturity of over 3 months EHRTFERS TR 19(a) (51,559) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZBHME(FiA)
investing activities HE TR 54,470 (35,165)
Financing activities METH
Proceeds from new bank loans I RTE RS RIE 19(b) 3,605,551 4,790,000
Repayment of bank loans BRRITEN 19(b) (4,222,000) (5,289,900)
Net decrease in advances received WA D BB AS AR
from the ultimate equity shareholder SHPH A RBR
of the Company and the companies R
under his control (219) -
Borrowing costs paid BERfEERAR 19(b) (170,970) (204,583)
Net cash used in financing activites ~ B&EBFTAR L EE (787,638) (704,483)
Net decrease in cash and ReRALEEY
cash equivalents WD RE (647,556) (667,445)
Cash and cash equivalents M1A1HNRER
at 1 January HEZEY 19(a) 2,362,694 3,006,827
Effect of foreign exchange IEERSEBNTE
rate changes (6,366) 23,312
Cash and cash equivalents R12B31 BHES
at 31 December KBEEEEY 19(3) 1,708,772 2,362,694
The notes on pages 120 to 243 form part of these financial F120 B EF 243 B 2 st At EH R

statements.

Z—HbD
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YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements
B R SRR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEHAIN - UARK AELL)

1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 26 February 2010 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman lIslands. The shares of the Company were
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 17 May 2011. The consolidated financial
statements of the Company comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”). The
principal activities of the Group are the design, procurement,
production, sale and installation of curtain wall systems.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@ Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and related Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB”). These financial statements also comply with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

1
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 765 3 2= B & ()

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except for
derivative financial instruments which are stated at their
fair values (see Note 2(f)).

The Company has its functional currency in Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$”). As majority of the Group’s operation are
conducted by the subsidiaries of the Group in mainland
China, the consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 3.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEAEIN - UARBRELRL)

2 EXEHBE#E)

(b)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Bt 765 3 2R B & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BEHEHIN

2

AR R EAL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued several amendments to IFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group. None of these impact on the accounting
policies of the Group. However, additional disclosure has
been included in Note 19(b) to satisfy the new disclosure
requirements introduced by the amendments to IAS
7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative, which
require entities to provide disclosures that enable users
of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable retuns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

2

BAREHBEE)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 765 3 2= B & ()

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity interests
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those equity interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those equity interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the
Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s equity interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative equity interests, but no adjustments are made
to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

2

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEAEIN - UARBRELRL)
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Bt 765 3 2R B & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BEHEHIN

2

AR R EAL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire equity
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Any equity interests retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(k)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held-for-sale.

Investments in debt securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt securities
are as follows:

Investments in debt securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical
asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that
uses only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 765 3 2= B & ()

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(€)

Investments in debt securities (continued)

Investments in debt securities which do not fall into the
categories of investments in securities held for trading
or held-to-maturity are classified as available-for-sale
securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve.
Interest income from debt securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(u)(v).

When the investments in debt securities are
derecognised or impaired (see Note 2(k)(i)), the
cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is
reclassified to profit or loss. Investments in debt
securities are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting, in which case recognition of any resultant
gain or loss is in accordance with Note 2(g).

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEAEIN - UARBRELRL)
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Bt 765 3 2R B & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BEHEHIN

2

AR R EAL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)

Hedging

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as
a hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised
asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction
or the foreign currency risk of a committed future
transaction, the effective portion of any gains or losses
on remeasurement of the derivative financial instrument
to fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of any gain or
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial
liability, the associated gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to be included in the initial cost or other carrying
amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results
in the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability,
the associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss in the same period or periods during which
the asset acquired or liability assumed affects profit
or loss (such as when interest income or expense is
recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the
preceding two policy statements, the associated gain or
loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same
period or periods during which the hedged forecast
transaction affects profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 765 3 2= B & ()

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)

Hedging (continued)

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the Group revokes designation of the
hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is
still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that
point remains in equity until the transaction occurs and it
is recognised in accordance with the above policy. If the
hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place,
the cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss immediately.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
Note 2(k)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs
(see Note 2(w)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BEHEHIN

2
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual values, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Estimated

useful lives

Plant and buildings 30 years
Machinery and equipment 15 years
Motor vehicles and other equipment 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the estimated useful life
of an asset and its residual value are reviewed annually.
No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress until it is completed and ready for its intended
use.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research and development activities is

recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 765 3 2= B & ()

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series

of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group

determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use

a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time

in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such

a determination is made based on an evaluation of

the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of

whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

Payments made on the acquisition of land held
under an operating lease are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
(see Note 2(K)(ii)). Amortisation is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEHAIN - UARK AELL)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EAREHBERE)
(k) Impairment of assets k) BERE
() Impairment of investments in debt securities () REBEFREKRROR

and receivables HiR{E

Investments in debt securities and receivables 2 Bk 7N Sk H K AN A BR 3k

that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are SEATHNEZRFNE

classified as available-for-sale securities are %75 RERGRAIEE R

reviewed at the end of each reporting period to FIREHREITER - U

determine whether there is objective evidence BTt HERENTE

of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment BE - RENEEIES

includes observable data that comes to the BAEEEEZEBHEUT

attention of the Group about one or more of the —IHZIEEEE A

following loss events: REE ¢

-  significant financial difficulty of the debtor; - BEBAEREKRE

TEREE

—  a breach of contract, such as a default or - ERAER - Hlane
delinquency in payments; RS EEK

- it becoming probable that the debtor - BB ATEBKESS
will enter bankruptcy or other financial HETHEMIP S ER
reorganisation; and K

- significant changes in the market, economic - WiHZ KBEIEE
or legal environment that have an adverse RIBHIFEANE
effect on the debtor. ¥ EBABKDT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 765 3 2= B & ()

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt securities
and receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

— For receivables carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the receivable’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the receivable’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these receivables),
where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively
where these receivables share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for receivables which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for receivables
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the
receivable’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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AR R EAL)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt securities
and receivables (continued)

= For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised in
the fair value reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
receivables whose recoveries are considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against
the receivable directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified
as being held under an operating lease; and

- investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s

statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measureable) or value in
use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(see Notes 2(k)(i) and 2(k(ii)).

Inventories

Inventories record the cost of raw materials waiting to be
assigned to specific construction contracts. Inventories
are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of inventories includes design costs,
costs of purchase, direct labour, other direct costs and
production overheads. The net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated cost of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are assigned to specific construction
contracts, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the year in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the year the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the year in which the reversal occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(k)(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(k(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of an
asset or a group of assets, where the customer is able
to specify the major structural elements of the design.
The accounting policy for contract revenue is set out
in Note 2(u)(i). When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably, contract costs are
recognised as an expense by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract at the end of the reporting
period. When it is probable that total contract costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss
is recognised as an expense immediately. When the
outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract costs are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Construction contracts (continued)

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of
costs incurred plus recognised profit less recognised
losses and progress billings, and are presented in the
statement of financial position as the “Gross amount due
from customers for contract work” (as an asset) or the
“Gross amount due to customers for contract work” (as
a liability), as applicable. Progress billings not yet paid
by the customer are included under “Trade and bills
receivables”. Amounts received before the related work
is performed are presented under “Receipts in advance”.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value, and are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(M

Employee benefits

(i)

(i1)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the Group.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are stated
at their present values.

The Group’s contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are charged to profit or loss
when incurred, except to the extent that they
are included in the cost of inventories not yet
recognised as an expense.

Share-based payments

The shares awarded under the share award
scheme are acquired from open market. The
net consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs, is presented as
“Shares held under share award scheme” and
deducted from equity.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

n

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments (continued)

For shares granted under the share award
scheme, the fair value of shares granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares on grant date plus any
directly attributable incremental costs. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the shares,
the total fair value of the shares is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the shares will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of shares
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or
loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of shares that vest with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.

When the awarded shares are transferred to the
awardees upon vesting, the related weighted
average acquisition cost of the awarded shares
vested are credited to “Shares held under share
award scheme”, and the grant date fair value of
the awarded shares vested are debited to the
capital reserve. The difference between the related
weighted average acquisition cost and the grant
date fair value of the awarded shares vested is
transferred to retained profits directly.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(M

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,

if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided it is

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss

as follows:

(@

(i1)

(iii)

Contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction contract can
be estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price
contract is recognised using the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to the
percentage of contract costs incurred to date to
estimated total contract costs for the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

Service income

Service income from the rendering of services
is recognised when the related services are
rendered.

Sale of raw materials

Other income is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the raw
materials have been transferred to the customers.
Other income excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any sales
discounts. No other income is recognised if there
are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of
the consideration due, the possible return of raw
materials, or continuing management involvement
with the raw materials.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the
asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

V)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated into the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates.

The results of operations which have a functional
currency other than RMB, the Group’s presentation
currency, are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
items are translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or completed.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)  Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

)

(i)

V)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.
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3

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Notes 24 and 29 contain information about the assumptions
and the risk factors relating to fair value of shares granted
under share award scheme and financial instruments. Other
key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(@  Contract revenue

As explained in the accounting policies set out in Notes
2(0) and 2(u)(i), revenue and profit recognition on an
uncompleted project is dependent on estimating the
total outcome of the construction contract, as well as
the work done to date. In addition, actual outcomes in
terms of total cost or revenue may be higher or lower
than estimated at the end of the reporting period, which
would affect the revenue and profit recognised in future
years as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.

(b)  Impairment of receivables

Trade receivables and bills receivable are reviewed by
management at the end of each reporting period to
determine the credit risk and whether there is evidence
of impairment. Credit risk assessments focus on
the customers’ and debtors’ past history of making
payments when due and current ability and willingness
to pay, taking into account the financial position of
the customers and debtors and the macroeconomic
environment in which the customers and debtors
operate. The credit assessments also consider the
status of the construction project, i.e. whether there
is any delay, any unresolved lawsuits or contentious
matters with customers or debtors. If the financial
conditions of the customers and debtors and/or the
macroeconomic environment of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
repay, additional impairment provision may be reputed.
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3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(©)

Provision for warranties

As explained in Note 26, the Group makes provisions
under the warranties it gives on construction of curtain
wall systems contracts, taking into account the Group’s
recent claim experience. As the curtain wall systems
required by customers become more complex, it
is probable that the recent claim experience is not
indicative of future claims that the Group will receive in
respect of past construction of curtain wall systems. Any
increase or decrease in the provision would affect profit
or loss in future years.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
and deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised.
In determining the amount of deferred tax assets to be
recognised, significant judgement is required relating to
the timing and level of future taxable profits, after taking
into account future tax planning strategies. The amount
of deferred tax assets recognised at future dates are
adjusted if there are significant changes from these
estimates.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSHEIEAEN  MARBBEN)
4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(@) Revenue
The principal activities of the Group are the design,
procurement, production, sale and installation of curtain
wall systems.
Revenue represents contract revenue derived from the
design, procurement, production, sale and installation of
curtain wall systems.
The Group’s customer base is diversified. There was no
customer with transactions that exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016.
Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities
are disclosed below.
(b)  Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by geographical
locations of the construction contracts. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented
the following six reportable segments: Northeast China,
North China, East China, West China, South China
and Overseas. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

° Northeast China: comprises construction
contracts carried out in the northeastern region
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
which includes Liaoning, Jilin, Heilongjiang,
Shandong, Henan and Inner Mongolia provinces
and autonomous region.

4

WA R B &

(@)

YA

AREHETEXB BRI K
B AE HERZRKRFERER

LONE TSN s
E-#ERREBERANA
FIMA -

REENRFPEMRZ T o #
MERPHETHNRFHERAEE
B E 2017 F %2016 F 12 A 31
HIEFERURAER10% ©
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)

North China: comprises construction contracts
carried out in the northern region of the PRC,
which includes Hebei and Shanxi provinces,
Beijing and Tianjin.

East China: comprises construction contracts
carried out in the eastern region of the PRC, which
includes Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Anhui and Jiangxi
provinces, and Shanghai.

West China: comprises construction contracts
carried out in the western and northwestern
regions of the PRC, which include Sichuan,
Yunnan, Guizhou, Hubei, Shaanxi, Ningxia, Gansu,
Qinghai and Xinjiang provinces and autonomous
regions, and Chongaing.

South China: comprises construction contracts
carried out in the southern region of the PRC,
which includes Guangdong, Hunan, Fujian, Hainan
and Guangxi provinces and autonomous region.

Overseas: comprises construction contracts
carried out outside of the Mainland China.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BEHEHIN

4

AR R EAL)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s most senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment assets include all assets with the
exception of property, plant and equipment,
lease prepayments, deferred tax assets and
other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
trade and bills payables, gross amount due to
customers for contract work, receipts in advance,
accrued expenses and other payables and
provision for warranties managed directly by the
segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments. No significant inter-
segment sales have occurred for the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016. The Group’s
other operating expenses, such as selling and
administrative expenses and finance costs, are
not measured under individual segments. The
measure used for reporting segment result is gross
profit.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016 is set out below.
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(BrREEAEIN - UARBRELRL)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 WARDEHRE (E)
(o)  Segment reporting (continued) ) PE3RE (E)
() Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) SBEE "ERAR

(continued) (&)
2017
017%

Northeast North East West South

China China China China China  Overseas Total

3 31 3 0] £ 7 it
RMB'0O0 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTR  ARBTR ARMTR ARMIR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTR

Revenue from extemal RENDEPEBAR
oustomers andreportable. EEATMA

segment revenue 47310 701483 1135020 404835 504602 2415250 5,688,650
Reportable segment TEEABEH

1055 proft 109,479 171884 304,364 60,372 9823 508007  1,48919
Reportable seqmentassets ~ EERAAE 1806972 1385800 2184220 840313 1076098 1938378 9,231,880
Reportable segment iabiities @A F&1E 1,022,862 636,625 1,306,302 418498 457198 1638700  5480,1%4

2016

2016%

Northeast North East West South

China China China China China Overseas Total

b3 # 2R L] B A it
RMB'OOD  RMBOOD  RMB'OOD  RWB'0D0  RMB'OOD  RWB'0D0  RMB'00
ARRTTE  ARRTT  ARRTT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR

Revenue from extemal REMPERHRAR
customers and reportable  EBHAZIA

segment revenue 665,406 866935 1,687,864 680,003 675054 2,760,153 7,324,415
Reportable segment pl:ERES

gross proft 174,906 206,935 334,088 68,125 80594 2132 1,292,089
Reportable segment assets AN TEE 2,214,231 1398934 2308758 1071074 1186814 2380749 10,560,560

Reportable segment iablites T/ HAE 1,264,070 71013 1593547 545,086 556605 2004007 6763450
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(BrREEHAIN - UARK AELL)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4  WARDERE (&)
(o)  Segment reporting (continued) () PERE (E)
(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment assets (i) TTEHEIBEERAED
and liabilities HIE
2017 2016
2017 £ 2016 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AR EEE 9,231,880 10,560,560
Property, plant and equipment  ¥2 - & M aRE 617,302 695,726
Lease prepayments S 600,490 623,646
Deferred tax assets EETIAE B 454,312 396,655
Unallocated head office ROBBI R AR EE
and corporate assets 1,060,228 1,445,893
Elimination of receivables 7 HBE K o EPER 4R =B
between segments, and FEU R T 85
segments and head office (483,100) (b42,727)
Consolidated total assets S EE 11,481,112 13,179,753
Liabilities =8
Reportable segment liabilities AR EEE 5,480,194 6,763,450
Bank loans WITER 2,943,551 3,560,000
Income tax payable JES TSR 211,528 205,086
Deferred tax liabilities BRETHIARE 3,971 4,527
Unallocated head office and AOREX R AFEE
corporate liabilities 126,702 181,764
Elimination of payables 7 ERfE Mo B B 4B E e
between segments, and FEAS SR EE
segments and head office (483,100) (542,727)
Consolidated total liabilities affteasE 8,282,846 10,172,100
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(BrREEAEIN - UARBRELRL)

4  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 WARDBERE (E)
(o)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEIRE(E)
(i) Geographic information (ii) HWMEFE

The following tables set out information about the
geographical location of the Group’s (i) revenue
from external customers and (ii) property, plant
and equipment and lease prepayments (the
“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at
which the construction contracts are carried out.
The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is determined based on the physical
location of the assets. For overseas construction
contracts, the Group further divided the customers
based on regions, where each country within the
region shares similar characteristics as to the
depth of the Group’s penetration in the market and
industry practices.

TREF) B BEAREE (i) R
BANBE P BB K (i) 7
¥ BELEZEARTE
NHEe(EEERDE
ElRNHBAENER -
BEEHMIEAE THIR R
TEEARMMEE S °
B E BB E E R IR
EIRE B ER BRI
2o - BN TIRARM
T AEBEE Sk
EAEF  HEANER
TEAREE TS RITEIED]
B),23E RS AR
2
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(BrREEHAIN - UARK AELL)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4

(b)  Segment reporting (continued)

(iii) Geographic information (continued)

(i) The Group’s revenue from external

customers:

Mainland China [ A 4t
East Asia region R 5@
Europe region B b [
Australia region BN Hb R
Americas region M =
Middle East region F B [&
Others Hih

(i)  The Group’s specified non-current assets:

Mainland China R B A,
Overseas NEBYN

WARDEBRE ()
b) PEPHRE (&)
(i) HIBFE(Z)

() AEBKREIINSE

FHRUA :
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR¥ETT

3,273,400 4,564,262

853,273 936,148
680,475 628,619
401,261 688,485
365,375 278,760
95,226 206,066
19,640 22,075

5,688,650 7,324,415

iy ANEBEMIEEIER

B)EE
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FR ARETTT

1,203,171 1,302,537
14,621 16,835

1,217,792 1,319,372
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(BrREEAEIN - UARBRELRL)

5 OTHER INCOME 5 Hfnlg A
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTTT

Government grants 2R 6,828 33,960
Rental income from operating leases wEEERS WA 1,394 2,487
Net income from provision of repairs B MEE (RS RS

and maintenance services B9 S 2,060 1,858
Net gain from sale of raw materials SHE R B F W 284 80
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME « BE k&G

plant and equipment and land Ko -t 55 FARE A 3 e

use rights 98,383 76,082

108,949 114,467
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEHAIN - UARK AELL)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 i A A E
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AT ALE ok, (GEA) AT &8
BISH
(@)  Finance costs: @ BEKA :
2017 2016
2017 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Interest on borrowings BERE 152,680 172,376
Bank charges and other BITFEEREMRERA
finance costs 17,124 30,511
Total borrowing costs (Note 19(b)) WBIEE A (M15E 19(b)) 169,804 202,887
Interest income FEHA (4,749) (10,920)
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) HSNFEETIE (U zs ) ‘B 45m 114,057 (144,186)
Net (gain)/loss on forward foreign RHAINE S XY
exchange contracts: (Uezk) /i 35
— net (gain)/loss on cash flow — BREmEN D EH
hedging instruments reclassified ReREHPTIA
from equity (Note 10(b)) (Wzs),/ EiEFeE
(Kt 100)) (6,131) 8,042
— net (gain)/loss on other forward — B b= HIINE S 4
foreign exchange contracts (Wzs) /Eia%sa (40,180) 30,623
232,801 86,446
No borrowing costs have been capitalised for the year REBE2017F12H31 8 EF
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: RMBNIl). EAEEERAHEEZR L (2016

F:ARBER) -
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6

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

(b)

Staff costs”:

6

Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMEF

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Note:

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC participate in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes managed by the local government
authorities, whereby these subsidiaries are required to
contribute to the schemes at rates ranging from 12% to
20% of the employees’ basic salaries. Employees of these
subsidiaries are entitled to retirement benefits, calculated
based on a percentage of the average salaries level in the
PRC, from the above mentioned retirement schemes at their
normal retirement age.

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group established
outside of the PRC participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes managed by the respective
local government authorities, whereby these subsidiaries
are required to contribute to the respective schemes at
rates stipulated by the relevant rules and regulations of the
respective jurisdictions.

The Group does not have any further material obligations
for payments of other retirement benefits beyond the above
annual contributions.

A 5 E AR ET IR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEAEIN - UARBRELRL)

BRI RE (&)

b) BIpA":
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
576,091 795,972
74,649 98,996
650,740 894,968

At -

AEBRHBKZE B AR E
B 22 3 75 O A R B 3 0 SRUE R
FORAARAG S - R P EE A
RIZRRREESEARFE 12% £ 20% A
ZER R - BB R RES
REBRERRNFREFER L
BAGEZERDEFIFHSKF
B O LR EERAER -

REE R BIFEIMKLAHTE R A
WESSEER BT BFEEE
B FUE HBUR AR METE - Bt
BN A B RIRE BAE RV
B R A BOE SR P AT B A LL A %5+

G -

AR BB AE — TAENFEMH
TR AT Lt B ARR KB E
fE -
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(BrREEHAIN - UARK AELL)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 HAREE)
() Otheritems: ) Hhigg :
2017 2016
2017 2016 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Depreciation and amortisation” HTE ey
(Notes 12 and 13) (Kt 12X 13) 59,404 62,547
Impairment loss on trade receivables & 5 fE W FUREEE
(Note 17(b)) (K7 17(b)) 462,838 348,542
Operating lease charges in respect AR - MiERETF
of land, plant and buildings, motor VRE N E RS
vehicles and other equipment” REHERY " 29,489 33,180
Auditors’ remuneration A CHE=0 11,081 10,501
Research and development costs” BEROAR " 211,442 264,144
Increase in provision for warranties” (RSB AN (F2E26)
(Note 26) 91,196 104,765
Cost of inventories” (Note 15(b)) TSR (B:E 150b)) 4,439,731 6,032,376
# Cost of inventories includes RMB531.3 million for the HZE2017F12A31ALLFE

year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB640.5
million), relating to staff costs, depreciation and
amortisation expenses, operating lease charges,
research and development costs and provision for
warranties, which amount is also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above
or in Note 6(b) for each of these types of expenses.

TERABEEIRAE - I
EREHEAY  CEHRERH
¥ EAARRIERES
AR AARES531.3BET
(20164 : ARM640.5EHE
JC) ' M B &R INET AL L
Sk RE6(0) 2 B FE A& 48
FXBRET -
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7  INCOME TAX 7 FiBE
(@  Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss @ AHERKRANEHIE
represents:
2017 2016
2017 F 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

Current taxation (Note 25(a)): BNEATRIA (H17E 25(a))

— Provision for corporate income — & AEREEETR
tax in respective jurisdictions EMSHH G 46,204 63,537

— Over provision in respect of —BAFEBERE
prior years (13,840) -
32,364 63,537

Deferred taxation (Note 25(b)): IRIEFRIA (3L 25(b))

— Origination and reversal of —EFERES

temporary differences K E (59,821) (52,960)

(27,457) 10,577
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7  INCOME TAX (continued) 7 BB (&
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) THERAIZSEEREAREITERN
profit at applicable tax rates: SETHEREER
2017 2016
2017 5§ 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Profit before taxation i EIA)E 58,272 87,194

Expected tax on profit before taxation, = F|EAERE 7] /AR

calculated at the rates applicable BAETEMTEAT

to profits in the jurisdictions FETEEAR 1B

concerned (Notes (i), (i), (i) and (iv)) — (BRFE@) ~ (i) ~ (i) K (iv)) 16,889 21,013
Tax effect of non-deductible PRI 2 A 75

expenses (Note (v)) S (W) 17,555 6,661
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEFRWA BT TS 22 £ - (10,363)
Tax effect of utilisation of prior BRI R FERBE

years’ unused tax losses FEABAHRBEEE

previously not recognised TR TS 2 (21,754) (15,464)
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERAB A IEREE

not recognised RIS R 22 6,255 33,759
Tax effect of write-down of MOREIER TE & E R

deferred tax assets s 2 - 61,906

Over provision in respect of prior years &1+ 4 [Z FAZA R (13,840) —

Tax concessions (Note (Vi) HIER S (B (i) (32,562) (86,935)

Income tax Frig it (27,457) 10,577

Notes: Kt -

()  The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group (i) AABRAEBRESZM
incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong PRS2 BB A R B2 2017
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% for the year ended F12A318 IF F E A &
31 December 2017 (2016: 16.5%). No provision 16.5% (2016 4F : 16.5%) HJ
for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as MEBMNBEBRER - AR
the Company and the subsidiaries of the Group AABRAEBRESZM
incorporated in Hong Kong did not have assessable PR SZ BB A R ELZ 2017
profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year F12A31A L FEMER
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: RMBNIl). BRE B R E T B FE R TR F

B M ERTIR BB RS
B (20165 : ARKEZT) ©
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7 INCOME TAX (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

profit at applicable tax rates: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

The Company and a subsidiary of the Group
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and the British
Virgin Islands, respectively, are not subject to any
income tax pursuant to the rules and regulations of
their respective countries of incorporation.

The subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
are subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 25%
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: 25%).

The subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in
countries other than the PRC (including Hong Kong),
the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands, are
subject to income tax rates ranging from 8.5% to 35%
for the year ended 31 December 2017 pursuant to the
rules and regulations of their respective countries of
incorporation (2016: 8.5% to 35%).

The amounts mainly represented non-deductible
entertainment and other expenses in excess of the
tax deductibility allowances under the PRC tax laws
and regulations.

One of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC has obtained approval from the tax
bureau to be taxed as an enterprise with advanced
and new technologies for the calendar years from
2017 to 2019 and therefore enjoys a preferential
PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 15% for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: 15%). In addition
to the preferential PRC Corporate Income Tax rate,
this subsidiary entitles an additional tax deductible
allowance amounted to 50% of the qualified research
and development costs incurred in the PRC by this
subsidiary.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEHEIN - UARK RERL)

7 BB (E)

(b)

BIAR X B ERREAER
SETAERHER : ()

Hrat - (&)

(i)

(i)

RIS BEMAZE KR
AMOER - DRIRASES
Ko B8 B X BY B R AR SZ Y
ARRRAEE—KMEA
BIBARREFIFASH o

NEE @R R B A HTE A
AR E E2017F12 A31 H
1F £ [E 7B 32 25% (2016 4F :
25%) BT KA B P
185 -

BIR S B sl S B R #9948
BIREA - AEBERPE (B
BES) FAEHEREE
B 2 BE B ASNB SR AR A2
B KB A Al B R & £2017
F12A310 It F E RN %
8.5% & 35% TNE /I FT{S i K
BT3B (2016 4F : 8.5%
Z35%) °

ZECHRIZEREBBETE
BiERERIA T AR &
BN HOB R R A o

REEEAR —FKNH B
M B AR ESHE R
HEE 2017 FE2019F IEHIE
B 1 A = 8 BT 1B ZE BN
FRIE - MEZE2017412 A 31
BItFEE=ZH 15% (20164 :
15%) R B E A5 B R
MK - REAPRAPEMB
MEBRE 2N ZMBR
ABEEAREZNPREELDN
B B AR R A K9 50% &t
MRS -
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(BrREEHAIN - UARK AELL)

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 E=Me

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) BIEE BN 71665 383(1) & R AT

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the (FEEEFZFEE) BHIE — i

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BENEEMEFBOT
Directors) Regulation are as follows:
2017
M17F
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
in kind scheme
Directors’ #&+  contributions
fees BHR Y Total
E=ne B0ER 3% h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Executive directors YTES
Mr Kang Baohua FEERE - 190 37 21
Mr Zhang Lei RERE - 1,633 3% 1,61
Mr Li Hongren THARE
(appointed on 8 February 2017) (R2017462 A8 REZ () - 1,958 39 1,997
Mr Liu Futao BRRRE
(appointed on 8 February 2017) (R017E2 8 HERM) - 1841 39 1,880
Mr Ma Minghui SHELE
(appointed on 8 February 2017) (M2017E2 A8 REZRH) - 693 39 732
Mr Wang Hao B
(appointed on 8 February 2017) (R2017462 A8 REZ () - 612 39 651
Mr Tian Shouliang BFREE
(resigned on 8 February 2017) (R20172 A8 AEHE) S 3 1 4
Mr Guo Zhongshan DRILEE
(resigned on 8 February 2017) (201742 A8 HEF) - 66 3 69
Mr Wang Yijun IZELH
(resigned on 8 February 2017) (R201752 A8 BEHT) - 215 3 218
Mr Wang Linu TUELE
(resigned on 8 February 2017) (R2017452 B8 AEHT) - 211 3 214
Independent non-executive directors BUKHTES
Mr Poon Chiu Kok ARELE 217 - - 217
Mr Woo Kar Tung, Raymond R EE 217 - - 217
Mr Pang Chung Fai, Benny FHERE 217 - - 27
651 1,422 241 8,314




EAPBEERARAT 2 UaEeEH 167

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B %5 R R B = (0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8 EZMe (&)
2016
2016F
Salaries,
allowances
and bengfits Retirement
in kind scheme
Directors’ ¥ contributions
fees EHR BIRGTE Total
ESHE ENET R a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Executive directors HTES

Mr Kang Baohua FEERE - 190 36 226
Mr Tian Shouliang BTREE - 183 34 217
Mr Guo Zhongshan DRLEE - 194 33 207
Mr Wang Yijun IEERE - 180 32 212
Mr Wang Lihui TBERE - 181 35 216
Mr Zhang Lei RERE - 181 35 216
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES

Mr Poon Chiu Kwok ERE L 224 - - 224
Mr Woo Kar Tung, Raymond HRELE 224 = = 224
Mr Pang Chung Fai, Benny PHiBLE 224 - - 224

672 1,109 206 1,986




168 YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B %65 3 7 B = (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEHAIN - UARK AELL)

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9 SESEL PN
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2016: hammHm AR WHAL016
none) of them are directors of the Company. The aggregate of F:E|)BARAREE - WIEEW
the emoluments in respect of the three individuals (2016: five) Z= AET(20164F : if)HVEBH4E
who are not directors are as follows: IR

2017 2016

2017 2016 4

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He o EMREYET 5,157 8,088
Discretionary bonuses EISTEAL 380 425
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIHIR 899 1,366

6,436 9,879
The emoluments of the employees who are not directors and REEREERTWNENLIFEEZ A
who are amongst the five highest paid individuals of the Group THFBN T AT EHE :

are within the following bands:

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F

(In HK$) (L)
2,000,001-2,500,000 2,000,001 - 2,500,000 2 4

2,500,001-3,000,000 2,500,001 - 3,000,000 1 1
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10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 10 HbZ2mEKE
(@) Tax effect relating to each component of other @ BHEEMEENESHEKXDBD
comprehensive income KR e 2
2017 2016
2017 F 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTTT

Exchange differences on translation of BENEERETHBEAR

financial statements of the Company BsHmEk AR EER
and certain subsidiaries into presentation & i Z %8 (FipT R Hi1%)
currency (before and after tax) 94,903 (131,567)
Cash flow hedge: BEMELHNF
net movement in the hedging reserve R E)FE
— Before tax amount — TRl e5 13,309 22,564
- Tax expense —HERY (3,328) (3,020)
- Net of tax amount —RHi%E 9,981 19,544
Other comprehensive income Hib 2 mes 104,884 (112,023)
(b) Components of other comprehensive income, including ) BEEMEEKRZAEKILS -
reclassification adjustments BIEEHHEFAE
2017 2016
2017 £ 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBT T
Cash flow hedges: BERMELHF
Effective portion of changes in fair value ~ FAE AR LR T A
of hedging instruments recognised AREEESNEUHSD
during the year 19,440 14,522
Reclassification adjustments for amounts B R85 FEHE T
transferred to profit or loss (Note 6(3)) DERR (K17 60) (6,131) 8,042
Net deferred tax charged to other REM 2 EWREIER AR IT
comprehensive income (Note 25(b)) IR FEE (77725 (b)) (3,328) (3,020)

Net movement in the hedging reserve R E A 2 e TR
during the year recognised in other FE RN EEE)FE
comprehensive income 9,981 19,544
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11 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 ERERRBEER

(@  Basic earnings per share @ BREREFR
The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 HE2017F12A31HILFE
December 2017 is calculated based on the profit FBREREFBIEARD AR
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company FEEABEAREYGTH B T
of RMB60.7 million (2016: RMB87.0 million) and the (20164F : AR B7.0BHET)
weighted average of 6,208,147,000 ordinary shares KA ANF B BT g T8
(2016: 6,208,147,000 ordinary shares) in issue during 6,208,147,000 % & 3@ f% (2016
the year ended 31 December 2017. 4 1 6,208,147,000 B I 38 % )

(b)  Diluted earnings per share (b)) BREERF
There were no dilutive potential shares outstanding RE 22017 F K2016F 12 A
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. S1EIEFEREABTEEN

FERIBAD BTN -
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Cost:

At 1 January 2016
Exchange adjustments
Additions

Transfer in/(out)
Disposals

At 31 December 2016

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 January 2016
Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 December 2016

Net book value:
At 31 December 2016

Cost:

At 1 January 2017
Exchange adjustments
Addltions

Disposals

At 31 December 2017

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 January 2017
Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 December 2017

Net book value:
At 31 December 2017

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

R
2016F1 A1 8
& 5 A%

NE

21/(1)

il

2016512 A31 B

ZHHE
2016F1 A1 8
& 53 %
FRHE
HEER

12016412 431 B

RHFE
201612 A31 B

R
R2017F1 A1R
S

NE

HE
1201712 A31H
ZitHE:
R2017F1 1R
5 A
FRfE
HEAD

R2017F12A31 B

RHEFE
R2017E12A31H

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB

12 Y% - BMEKRRKE

AAREE R ERL)

Motor

vehicles

Machinery and other

Plant and and equipment  Construction

buildings  equipment ARER  inprogress Total
HEREFT  BERRE Akt ERIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
664,008 387,519 204,018 11,345 1,266,890
584 560 1,165 - 2,309
432 3,664 6,420 191 10,707
28 - = (28) -
(25,332) (301) (16,311) - (41,944)
639,720 391,442 195,292 11,508 1,237,962
(145,900) (218,364) (153,461) - (617,725)
(86) 77 (1,028) - (1,391)
(18,162) (17,770) (11,928) - (47,860)
9,834 301 14,605 - 24,740
(154,314) (236,110) (151,812) - (542,236)
485,406 155,332 43,480 11,508 695,726
639,720 391,442 195,292 11,508 1,237,962
(25) (248) (439) - (112)
244 - 815 585 1,644
(55,545) (2,920) (12,987) - (71,452)
584,394 388,274 182,681 12,093 1,167,442
(154,314) (236,110) (151,812 - (542,236)
28 25 436 - 489
(17,390) (18,307) (9,328) - (45,025)
22,396 2,608 11,628 - 36,632
(149,280) (251,784) (149,076) - (550,140)
435,114 136,490 33,605 12,093 617,302
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12 9% BERREGE)
At 31 December 2017, property certificates of certain R2017512 B31 B » & THAKRMEF
properties with an aggregate net book value of RMB87.6 EAARYS76H & r(20164F 12
million (81 December 2016: RMB101.4 million) are yet to A31H : AR¥B1014BE L) 99
be obtained. Of these properties, Mr Kang Baohua, the EHABESYEEE - HEif - KEE
ultimate equity shareholder of the Group (the “Controlling B IRTERS IS R BB S A ([ RRR%
Shareholder”), has undertaken to procure the title documents R EAHRENSLEMFEAR
of properties with an aggregate net book value of RMBO0.2 B02BEBL(20165F12 4318 : A
million (31 December 2016: RMBO0.2 million). If these title R¥02BETT) YR o f#
documents could not be obtained, the Controlling Shareholder REEENSERE M - BRRERE A
agreed to indemnify the Group for all the losses and damages REEBERLMEENMEEER
arising therefrom. BX -
13 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 13 FEHEE
2017 2016
2017 F 2016 F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT AR®ETT

Cost: B

At 1 January »1A18 718,878 718,671
Additions NE 558 207
Disposals BRE (12,047) -
At 31 December W12 A31H 707,389 718,878
Accumulated amortisation: 2Ty

At 1 January m1A1H (95,232) (80,545)
Charge for the year FREH (14,379) (14,687)
Written back on disposals HE RS 2,712 -
At 31 December m12 A31H (106,899) (95,232)
Net book value: BRTERE :

At 31 December ®12A31 A 600,490 623,646
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13 LEASE PREPAYMENTS (continued) 13 HEf[#E£(E)
BNASIEAEERMA PR L
FT ey it (s AR RS - 7R 2017
F12A31H + MARBREREEERA
R#s54BH & L(2016%12 8318 :
AR®A189.0B8I) ME T LHFER
REHY T MO FRAERE -

Lease prepayments represented land use right premiums paid
by the Group for land situated in the PRC. At 31 December
2017, land use right certificates of certain land use rights with
an aggregate carrying value of RMB5.4 million (31 December
2016: RMB139.0 million) are yet to be obtained.

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14 RHBLARZRE

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries

which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

TREFNHBEAKERRE  BEXK
BEAEATEZHBARER -

Group.
Proportion of ownership interest
BERELA
Place Particulars of The
of establishment/  registered/ Group’s Held
incorporation issued and effective by the Held by
and business paid-up capital interest ~ Company subsidiaries
Name of subsidiary R/ 3 8R/BRAR KXE@z  BAAE  HKEAF  Principal activities
WEAFAR REgxith BRBAFE BiRER e ¥E IEZEE
Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium The PRC United States Dollar 100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
Industry Engineering Co., Ltd. m (USD")323,298,200 production, sale and
(“Shenyang Yuanda')* 323,298,200 T installation of curtain wall
BRERAREIRERAF (E3)) systems
(EHEK])" Fit B EE-
HERZERREAG
Shanghai Yuanda Aluminium The PRC RMB15,000,000 100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
Industry Engineering Co., Ltd. ™ HE AR 15,000,007 production, sale and
FERARETREARAR" installation of curtain wal
systems
Fat B EE
HERRERRAN
Yuanda (UK) Co., Ltd.™* United Kindom British Pound Sterling 60% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
BEARBER AR ™ ) (GBP") 500,000 sale and installation of curtain
500,000 4% ([ % ) wall systems

B
HERRERERS
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14 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14 HAHBRARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

RRRELLP
Place Particulars of The
of establishment/  registered/ Group’s Held
incorporation issued and effective by the Held by
and business paid-up capital interest  Company subsidiaries
Name of subsidiary R/ HM/BETR A58z  HBARE  AMEAR  Principal activities
MEARAR REFHH BRRAFE BRER L KE IEER
Shenyang Yuanda Metal Coating ~ The PRC RMB?7,000,000 100% - 100%  Plating and coating of metals
Co, Ltd* hE AR%7,0000007C tEEERER
BREASBRAARAR"
Foshan Yuanda Aluminium The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - 100%  Purchase of materials for and
Industry Engineering Co, Ltd.”* AR20,000,0007 provision of senvices to group
R ARETRERAR" companies
REBRREERIH
RimE Rt iR
LLC Yuanda Curtain Wall™* Russian Federation  Russian Ruble 100% = 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
("Yuanda Russia’) R 280,000 sale and installation of curtain
EARRARAR™ 280,000 (R ET wall systems
(FEXBES ) Fat A%
HERRERRAN
Yuanda Australia Pty Ltd.”* Australia Australian Dollar 100% = 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
BABAFBERA ™ BANS 1,069,291 sale and installation of curtain
1,069,201 BT wall systems
Fat HB A%
HERZEREZS
Yuanda USA Corporation™* United States of USD1,000,000 100% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
BAZEERAF™ America 1,000,000%7T sale and installation of curtain
£l wall systems
Fat R A%
HERREBRAN
Yuanda Canada Enterprises Ltd.**  Canada USD500,000 100% = 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
("Yuanda Canada’) nex 500,000% 7 sale and installation of curtain
EAMERBRAR ™ wall systems
(FEAMEA]) Hat R AR

HERLERRAR
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Name of subsidiary

HEARAR

Yuanda Aluminium Industry

Engineering (Germany) GmbH™*

EARETR(Z8)BRAR ™

Yuanda Aluminium Engineering
(Indlia) Private Limited™*
(Yuanda India”)

EABETR(E)RA
BRAR™
(FeRHEL)

Yuanda Europe Ltd.
("Yuanda Europe’)

EABABRAR
([ AERM))

Yuanda Curtain Wall
(Hong Kong) Company Limited
EAR (BE)BRAA

Yuanda Kuwait General Contracting

for Buildings Underes
EAMBARTAREAR
BREEAT

Place

of establishment/
incorporation
and business
R/
REFHR

Germany
28

Republic of India
(‘Indlia’)
EE AR ([ E0E )

Swiss Confederation
T

Hong Kong
&

State of Kuwait
("Kuwait”)

Rt (TR )

Particulars of
registered/
issued and
paid-up capital
it/ BRTR
BRRAFE

Euro100,000
100,000EX7T

Indian Rupee

(‘INR")1,476,200

1476 200E0E ELL
([HEEL)

Swiss Franc

(‘CHF")1,000,000

1,000,000 T3%E8
(Dati2881)

2,000,000 shares

2,000,000 At 3

Kuwait Dinar
(*KWD")1,000,000

1,000,000 BB E

(2R )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEAEIN - UARBRELRL)

14 REBLARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest
RRELLP
The
Group’s Held

effective by the Held by

interest ~ Company subsidiaries
%8¢  HBARE  AKEAT  Principal activities

L 1] KE IERE

100% = 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat B A%
HERRERRAN

100% = 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat A%
HERRERRAS

60% - 60%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat A%
HERRERRAN

100% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat A%
HERRERRAN

100%# 100%#  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat R A%
HERRERRAR
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(B=BEHEHIN

AR R EAL)

14 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

HEAFRR

Yuanda Curtain Wall (Vietnam)
Co., Ltd.
EARE (d) ARARATA

Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium
Industry Engineering Co., BR

BEEARRIRARAA
WA

Well Galaxy Limited
BEERAT

Eurl Yuanda France

BAZEBRAR

Yuanda (Hong Kong)
Holdings Limited
BA(BR ) ARARAT

PT. Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium
Indlustry Engineering

BAEETRIE
EREEERAR

Place

of establishment/
incorporation
and business

R /&
REFHH

Socialist Republic
of Vietnam
BB TR ANE

Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia
PR

The British
Virgin Islands

ABERES

France

i

Hong Kong

Republic of Indonesia
1l

Particulars of
registered/
issued and
paid-up capital
it/ BRTR
BRRAFE

USD100,000
100,000%7T

Saudi Arabian Riyal

500,000

500,000
HAZTA

USD1
1%

Euro13,020,000

13,020,0008%7

1 share

15

USD750,000
750,000% 7T

14 RRBLARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

RRRELLP
The
Group’s Held
effective by the Held by
interest  Company subsidiaries

A%Ez  BR0F  AKELE
ERER 1) L)

Principal activities

TEXK

100% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat A%
HERZERRAN

100% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fet R AR
HERZEREAN

100% 100% Investment holding

REAR

60% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems
Fat HB A%
HERZEREAN

100% - 100%  Investment holding

BER

99% - 99%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fet R AR
HERZERRAN
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

HEARAR

CNYD Aluminium Industry

Engineering Malaysia SDN. BHD.

EARE TRERASD
IABRAR

Yuanda Curtain Wall
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
BARE Fg) BRAH

Yuanda Mexico S.A. de C.V.
BARRIFUEEAERAR

Yuanda Italy SR.L.
BAEANARARAT

Yuanda Queensland Pty Ltd.
EARTHERAR

Place

of establishment/
incorporation
and business
R/
REFHR

Malaysia

BRED

Republic of Singapore
il ile]

The United Mexican
States
el

Italy
EAM

Australia
YN

Particulars of
registered/
issued and
paid-up capital
it/ BRTR
BRRAFE

Malaysia Ringgit

(‘MYR")750,000

750,000 SR B
LH(BREE

<&))

Singapore Dollar
(SGD")1,950,000

1,950,000 57 M4k
(E::5))

Mexican Peso
1,000,000
1,000,000 2HFHZ

Euro20,000
20,0000

AUD800,000
800,000:27C

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEAEIN - UARBRELRL)

14 REBLARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest
RRELLP
The
Group’s Held

effective by the Held by

interest ~ Company subsidiaries
%8¢  HBARE  AKEAT  Principal activities

L 1] KE IERE

100% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat A%
HERZERRAN

100% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat B A%
HERZERRAN

100% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Rt RE A
HERRERREM

60% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Fat B AR
HERRERRAM

100% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
sale and installation of curtain
wall systems

Hat R AR
HERRERRAN
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14 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14 HAHBRARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

BEEELA
Place Particulars of The
of establishment/  registered/ Group’s Held
incorporation issued and effective by the Held by
and business paid-up capital interest  Company subsidiaries
Name of subsidiary R/ HM/BETR A58z  HBARE  AMEAR  Principal activities
MEARAR REFHH BRRAFE BRER L KE IEER
Yuanda WA Pty Ltd. Australia AUD1 100% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
BEAERAFITARAR YN 1271 sale and installation of curtain
wall systems
Fet R AR
HERZEREZN
Yuanda SA Pty Ltd. Australia AUD1 100% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
BABRAFIEARARA BAFE 1271 sale and installation of curtain
wall systems
Fat R A%
HERREBRAM
Yuanda VIC Pty Ltd. Australia AUD1 100% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
BABSTIARA BAHE 1271 sale and installation of curtain
wall systems
Hat R A%
HERREBRAN
Yuanda Pakistan (PVT.) Limited The Islamic USD60,000 100% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
EAEEAEER AR Republic of Pakistan 60,0003 7T sale and installation of curtain
BEMERAHRRN wall systems
Fat B A%
HERREBRAN
Canada Yuanda Aluminum Canada Canadian Dollar 100% - 100%  Design, procurement, assembly,
Corporation YN (“CAD")100 sale and installation of curtain
MEREREREAT] 100J12AT wall systems
(TmeAzl) Fat B A%

HERREBRAR
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14

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

*k

This company is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise
established in the mainland China.

These companies are limited liability companies established
in the mainland China.

The Group, through Shenyang Yuanda, owns 49% equity
interests in this company, where the remaining 51% equity
interests are held on trust for Shenyang Yuanda by an
individual resided in Kuwait. In accordance with the entrust
agreement, this individual does not have the right to vote or
receive dividends declared or participate in the liquidation
of this company. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
consider the Group effectively owns 100% equity interests
in the company.

The following table lists out the combined financial information

of Yuanda Europe and its subsidiaries, a sub-group within the

Group, which has material non-controlling interests (“NCI”).

The summarised financial information presented below

represents the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

Revenue A

Profit/(loss) for the year

Profit/(loss) attributable to NCI

Sy el
A, (E518)

Non-current assets IEMBEE
Current assets MENEE
Current liabilities mEaE
Net liabilities FATE

Net liabilities attributable to NCI

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

FRFE(EBE)

RN IR )
RERLEH2RE)
KERE R ZEEH
RERERDZHER

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEAEIN - UARBRELRL)

RB AR ZRE (&)

ok

2N B 2 TA R B LB SZ B S 7 08
Bp% -

ZE N A AR B A A R
EEAF °
REEBBEGREAEBZARN
49% R #E - TE 82 51% ARAE T /E
REESS A TIAEER R 585
RAFH - RELENZ - ZEE
BIA 4= 3 R R h 2% A FIHE = gk ik
BRESRR SN EER - Bt -
RARIEERE  A5EER LH
BN FHI 100% A HE ©

TREHNEREMNLEMEQE (K
SEESE FERESNMBEE)
BHMBER - TX2HMOMBHER
HERHBRERI A REEHIER Z 80

RIS %E ©

2017 2016

2017 & 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
715,667 665,351
62,693 (26,055)
25,077 (10,422)
19,645 20,478
373,325 409,339
(739,945) (794,285)
(346,975) (364,468)
(138,789) (145,787)
768 (2,848)
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15 INVENTORIES 15 #F&

(@ Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial @ AafBRARANEFERRE
position comprise:

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 £
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Raw materials B R 283,446 368,502
Less: write down of inventories B TR E R (6,248) (10,564)
277,198 357,938
(o)  The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as b) RERNERAEFRIZ AL G
an expense and included in the consolidated statement BHREANFEESELSTNT :

of profit or loss during the year is as follows:

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

Carrying amount of inventories BREESEH

used in construction contracts FEEmE 4,444,047 6,029,862
(Reversal of write down)/write & (MUs B E), o

down of inventories (4,316) 2,514

4,439,731 6,032,376
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16 GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB

AAREE R ERL)

16 EW SEFEEIREAE

CONTRACT WORK
2017 2016
2017 £ 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBT T
Contract costs incurred plus recognised WEHRMERAR
profits less recognised losses in FREE £ K& RIS
connection with construction MEERFERE
contracts in progress at the end MR EE
of the reporting period 37,879,281 45,502,659
Less: progress bilings B EE IR (34,743,553)  (41,794,177)
3,135,728 3,708,482
Gross amount due from customers for FUWEEARIIZA2%8
contract work (Notes (i) and (i) (BT (1) % (i) 4,027,183 4,998,142
Gross amount due to customers for ENEFARIIZ4A5E
contract work (Notes (i) and (iv)) (BTEE (i) % (iv) (891,455) (1,289,660)
3,135,728 3,708,482

Notes:

(i)

(ii

(ii)

(iv)

All of the gross amount due from customers for contract
work are expected to be billed within one year, and upon the
billing, the amounts of RMB821.8 million as at 31 December
2017 (31 December 2016: RMB916.8 million) related to
retentions receivable are expected to be recovered over one
year.

Included in the gross amount due from customers for
contract work are amounts of RMB1.0 million at 31
December 2017 (31 December 2016: RMB23.0 million) due
from the companies under the control of the Controlling
Shareholder.

Included in the gross amount due to customers for contract
work are amounts of RMB16.5 million at 31 December
2017 (31 December 2016: RMB10.8 million) due to the
companies under the control of the Controlling Shareholder.

All of the gross amount due to customers for contract work
are expected to be recognised as revenue within one year.

HEE

(i)

(i)

(V)

FTERKREFE&RITiZEZEEHRN
—FAAR - RARRTE - 2017 F
12 A31 HEEWEPREBSE B
SFBARKES21.8HET(20164F12
A318 : AR¥916.85ET)EH
R—F&E -

EWEFARIBEEBIEN 2017
%12 A 31 B 8y e E AR AR SR 12 il 9
REREARE1.0BET (2016 F
12A31H : AR%23.088T) °

BNEFARIEAESBER
20174 12 A 31 B E AR AR R 2
FlIH AR REARKI6SBEE T
(20164512 A31H : AR¥10.88

S

BT °

MEENEFARIEEBERHAR
—FAERSEA
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(BrREEHAIN - UARK AELL)

17 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables for contract work
due from:
— Third parties
— Companies under the control of
the Controlling Shareholder

Bills receivable for contract work

Trade receivables for sale of raw
materials due from:
— Third parties
— Companies under the control of
the Controlling Shareholder

Less: allowance for doubtful debts
(Note 17(b))

17

ARTIRE Sk -

A

=EH=J5
— SR AR RIS AR )

BRIEEERE
HERMEHE S UG -

oy

==
— IR AR R BB A &)

B REREEE (W 17(0)

At 31 December 2017, the amount of retentions receivable

from customers included in trade and bills receivables (net
of allowance for doubtful debts) is RMB1,062.6 million (31

December 2016: RMB1,144.1 million).

Except for retentions receivable (net of allowance for doubtful
debts) of RMB454.7 million at 31 December 2017 (31
December 2016: RMB426.0 million), all of the remaining trade
and bills receivables are expected to be recovered within one

year.

BEZRURRERRE

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 £
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
4,272,751 3,816,663
185,586 155,660
4,458,337 3,972,323
47,659 163,802
2,302 1,532
1,870 1,631
4,172 3,163
4,510,168 4,139,288
(1,474,974) (1,029,606)
3,035,194 3,109,682

R20176 12 A31H » BIEEESE
KR REREEANEREFRE S
SRE(FIRREREME) B ARKK1,062.6
BB T(R016F12A31H: AR

S

11441 BHBL) °

BrA2017F 12 H31 H A R#454.7
BEILQEOI6F12A31H: AR
426.0 8 B7T) M EBURE £ (HBR R
BREBME) I - BT E B SRR KR
FEMCERIETE BRI —F AR [E] o
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17

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group generally requires customers to settle progress
billings and retentions receivable in accordance with
contractual terms.

Retentions are withheld by customers up to a maximum
amount calculated based on a prescribed percentage of the
contract amount. Retention terms of one to five years after
the completion of construction contracts may be granted
to customers for retentions receivable, depending on the
market practice of construction industries in countries where
construction contracts are carried out and credit assessment
carried out by management on an individual customer basis.

(@  Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis

of trade and bills receivables, based on the invoice date
and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

17

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEHEIN - UARK RERL)

EZRURREVRE(F)
AEBBTZREFREBEE NRKE
BEEFRLERRES -

BEFAARESBMAELLHIFENS
BERRMERES  GTHEAER
REETENTSBERALEEERE
lEPEEETHNERENGEME &
SEREEMRERESATPRT
BRI -FERFNERY -

RBEESHKR - EHRUARE
WERECNBRREERE) RER
BHMERERDITIT -

Within 6 months

More than 6 months but
less than 1 year

More than 1 year

Details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in Note

29(a).

2017 2016

2017 & 2016 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT

~NMEAR 933,087 853,991
BENEABRILR—F

202,024 316,762

HBiE—F 1,900,083 1,938,929

3,035,194 3,109,682

£ 29(a) °

AEBEEEBRROFERNM
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(BrREEHAIN - UARK AELL)

17 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Impairment loss in respect of trade and bills receivables
are recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote,
in which case the impairment loss is written off against
trade and bills receivables directly (see Note 2(k)(i)).

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts
account during the year are as follows:

At 1 January M1 A1H
Exchange adjustments HE 5, 8 BE
Impairment loss recognised ERERRERE
Impairment loss written back B ERERR
At 31 December Mm12 A31H

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s trade and bills
receivables of RMB1,7183.1 million (31 December
2016: RMB1,148.2 million) are individually determined
to be impaired. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties
and management of the Group assessed that only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts of
RMB1,475.0 million (31 December 2016: RMB1,029.6
million) are recognised. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

17 BSRURREWRERE(E)

(b)

B 2 MG & R IR R R (E

B REBFREREENRE
BRI ERABERAR - RIE
REBEMRNEZRANES
B TR UL 1B R TR E & 1B
BEERE ZERUGR R EREE
ARlEE (RHEE2(K)) ©

FARRRESHOT :
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBTT
1,029,606 658,604
(17,470) 22,460
515,273 433,207
(52,435) (84,665)
1,474,974 1,029,606

R2017F12H318 A& E
HNESEBFRERERAR
#1,713.1 &L (2016 512 A
31H: AR¥1,1482587T)
B AR E E AR E o @RI E
B JIE U5 5k T B 3R B B R B
BEFEEHE MASEERERE
1 78 B4 X 1 [0] 7 8 8 LUK o
EHit - EEREFEEREREA
R#1,475.0 8 &7t (2016 12
A31H: ARM1,0268 8
TL) ° ARBEWENZEEBT
BEMERR
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17 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Trade and bills receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that
are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired I 7R 8 BRSO E

Less than 6 months past due BHEANE AR

More than 6 months but less w AR AN E A
than 1 year past due DR —F

More than 1 year past due E AR —

Given the nature of the Group’s business, except for
retentions receivable under retention terms granted and
bills receivable not yet matured, all remaining receivables
are considered past due once billings have been made
by the Group or the customers have not settled the
billings within the credit terms granted, where applicable.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to bills receivable from the issuing banks and
retentions receivable within retention terms and from
customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of customers that have a good
track record with the Group. These receivables mainly
relate to construction projects either in progress or
at final inspection stage. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEAEIN - UARBRELRL)

17 BSRURREWRERE(E)

(©)

I & KR BE 2 B 5 B W &
LSS

W AR N A B RES B
5 18 U 30 % B M SRR B B AT
T

2017 2016
2017 & 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFIT
552,219 735,851
930,564 728,371
238,191 347,959
1,076,110 1,297,501
2,244,865 2,373,831
2,797,084 3,109,682

ERNAEEXEBEE - FREE
REIA R U R B & I B A
REWWERSIN - —BFRED
BAKEFELSEP L ARRE
RHOEEGR(IER) BER
I8 - BIFTA & N RUGR IR 1F
pIE

BE R 380 5B 7T RO MEL 2 8 Wk 2
HHRTOERERERERIL
ETHE R RS E P BIDE
BEREAZRESHR -

B8 BB I 48R (B 2 FE MR R
ZREFAM  ZEFEFPHEX
SEAEERARTZIHEER
%o RERWAREBENER
SR EBREEERNTRER -
REBELR ANEEER
WEBBXES  BFHERID
WA SAZEEE - HEEE
BIEBANZ ST ERTIRRE
Bim e NEBYENZFEHR
FrAEEAR o
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(BrREEHAIN - UARK AELL)

18 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 18 & - ANRRHMERR

RECEIVABLES
2017 2016
2017 £ 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Prepayments for purchase of BEEFERNR(AZ)))
inventories (Note (i) 246,891 219,090
Prepayments and deposits for KERERENARES
operating leases 15,458 18,314
Prepayment for miscellaneous taxes MBI 29,448 19,016
Deposits for construction contracts’ bidding &4 RIKIZ & B4
and performance (Note (i) e (M (i) 115,521 182,852
Deposits for purchase of forward BERERES LS
aluminium contracts 5,513 1,013
Other deposits Hihin s 44,889 45,310
Receivable for disposal of property, plant  HEYE - BE LR E R i
and equipment and land use rights {55 FR R JE WS R 75,784 24,976
Derivative financial instruments: TESRTA :
— held as cash flow hedging instruments —FEREREHHTA
(Notes 29(d)()&(e)) (HTE29(d)) % (e)) 1,638 13,270
— other derivatives (Notes 29(d)(ii) & (e)) —HMTAET A
(B35 29(a)(i) % () 54,517 38,966
Amounts due from the Controlling JE U7 IS RS 3R B 52 L 422 1| Y
Shareholder and the companies NAEIFIB (BT (i)
under his control (Note (iii) 18,111 17,338
Amounts due from non-controlling U N & B IR AR A S
interests of the Group (Note (i) SRIE (K22 (i) 2,671 2,709
Others Hih 58,478 62,493
668,919 640,347
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W REREHE (L 18(@)
(Note 18(a)) (5,077) (5,077)
663,842 635,270
Notes: Kiat -
(i) Included in the balance are prepayments of RMB3.8 million i) ZEBBIER2017F12 31 HA

at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: RMB3.8 million)
made to the companies under the control of the Controlling
Shareholder.

R¥38BET(20165FE12A31H
ARKEI8HEEL) WRIZIERARE
PEHIE A R EH TR K ©

iy ZERERERERENERKRER
BARMBEFPZNNZRS 25k e
HEREREERERAR TR (WEA)
TEIRHEBAER -

(if) The balance represented deposits placed with customers
for contracts’ bidding and performance of contracts in
progress. The deposits will be released to the Group upon
the completion of the related bidding and contract work,
where applicable.
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18 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have
no fixed terms of repayment.

Except for amounts of RMB10.6 million at 31 December 2017
(81 December 2016: RMB14.2 million), all of the remaining
deposits, prepayments and other receivables are expected to

be recovered or recognised as expenses within one year.

(@)

Impairment of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables

Impairment losses in respect of deposits, prepayments
and other receivables are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of
the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss
is written off against deposits, prepayments and other
receivables directly (see Note 2(K)(i)).

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s deposits,
prepayments and other receivables of RMB5.1 million
(81 December 2016: RMB5.1 million) are individually
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired
deposits, prepayments and other receivables related to
debtors that were in financial difficulties. Consequently,
specific allowances for doubtful debts of RMB5.1 million
(81 December 2016: RMB5.1 million) are recognised.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEAEIN - UARBRELRL)

18 RE - ANRREMEYRK(E)

Bet - (%)

(i) ZEFEREER RSEEEE

BiA2017F 12 A31 HES AR
10.6 E&EL(20165F12 A31 A : AR
¥142BBTT) I EBRFIERS -
T R E b FEU R T ER I A — A
WE sk R ABRE o

(@ 1RE - FAN TR E A B R
E

75 AR RN B/ 6740
WEBECEABERAR
B FEARER 815 9 U ] 3% SRR Y
WEHEM - WELBERT "
BEEEERERS  ANRK
H A ok 38 CRLBTRE2(4)()) ©

R2017F12H31H &~ &
iR E ~ TBAT 30 B H e U 5k
ARB51BEIL(20165F 12 A
31H: ARKS1EET) B
RIEE BBE - B RIRERIE
© o TR FR E b FE YR TS B
IR RN A& AR o
Eit - EEREERKRBEA
R¥5188m(20165 12 A 31
H: ARESIHEL) A%
B Rt % F SRS A
A e
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19 CASH ON HAND AND IN BANK AND OTHER CASH 19 FEESRETERREMBESR
FLOW INFORMATION ¥
(@ Cash on hand and in bank comprise: @ FEERERBITFHREE
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Cash on hand and in bank FOEIR S NRBITERX 1,708,772 2,355,194
Time deposits with banks SRITEHATER 96,819 7,500
Cash on hand and in bank SRS REIRITIER 1,805,591 2,362,694
Less: restricted deposits to secure B EREEEREYD

the performance and retentions AR & A ) PR H

of construction contracts T3 (96,819) =
Cash and cash equivalents in the S RERERTH

consolidated cash flow statement HWENIRESEEY 1,708,772 2,362,694
The Group’s business operations in mainland China REERNPEAEBAAR
are conducted in RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible BitE ARSI AAIEHRR
currency and the remittance of funds out of mainland BOEE  BELPEAEEE
China is subject to the exchange restrictions imposed by & X BEBUS E iR SNE E

the PRC government. F#RMR °
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19 CASH ON HAND AND IN BANK AND OTHER CASH 19 FEASRBOTERREMBE SR
FLOW INFORMATION (continued) &R (&)
(o)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities b) BMEEZBELENBEZEE
Advances
due to

At 1 January 2017

Changes from financing
cash flows:

Proceeds from new bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Net decrease in advances
received from the Controlling
Shareholder of the Company
and his subsidiaries

Borrowing costs paid

Total changes from financing
cash flows

Other changes:

Total borrowing costs
(Note 6(a))

At 31 December 2017

R201751 81 H
REREHEEE
HRE

MERTETAEN

BERITER

WERA R RIERR R
RERBLFRN
FRD

EfffEERA

RERSREE
HEEmE

Hitt 28 :
R A
(Hitew)

R2017F12A31 8

B

the Controlling

Shareholder of
the Company
and his
subsidiaries
BARAT Interest
Bank loans IRRERE payable Total
BITER MEARNE ERFE M@t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET R AR¥T R ARETR
(Note 23) (Note 22) (Note 22)
(Hizt23) (Hizt22) (Hfzt22)
3,560,000 3,290 4,102 3,567,392
3,605,551 - - 3,605,551
(4,222,000) - - (4,222,000)
- (219) - (219)
- - (170,970) (170,970)
(616,449) (219) (170,970) (787,638)
- - 169,804 169,804
2,943,551 3,071 2,936 2,949,558
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(BrREEHEIN - UARK RELL)

20 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 20 BEZEMNRREMNERE
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 £
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBTTT

Trade payables for purchase of inventories  JENIA THBEFE

due to: =) N
— Third parties =E5=75 1,746,425 2,016,540
— Companies under the control of the — YRR R HIA) A F)
Controlling Shareholder 4,268 5,172
1,750,693 2,021,712
Trade payables due to sub-contractors BN BRE FEMNR 831,117 882,928
Bills payable ANEE 733,048 1,176,341
Financial liabilities measured at R AT E
amortised cost ERIAE 3,314,858 4,080,981
All of the trade and bills payables are expected to be settled BB ZENARENERERN—
within one year or are repayable on demand. FRBEHRBIZERERE -
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of RBEEAR - BZERNRRENEE
trade and bills payables, based on the maturity date, is as R B H BRI DT AA T
follows:
2017 2016
2017 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T
Within 1 month or on demand — {8 A Nz Esk 2,724,867 3,080,302
More than 1 month but less than 3 months ~ #2:8—1& F{B A =1E A 193,096 713,044
More than 3 months HBE=18A 396,895 287,635

3,314,858 4,080,981
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21

RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

Receipts in advance for contract work &R TEBEWRTE

Receipts in advance represented advances received from
customers for which the related construction work has not
been commenced as of the end of the reporting period.

All of the receipts in advance are expected to be recognised as
revenue within one year.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrAHEEHEN - UARBRELRL)

21 FEWFEIE

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

16,282 19,444

B IRIE N R & BRI ARREF A
MEREZETIZE REPHER -

PR AW FIATR AN — F A RER AU
A °
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(BrREEHAIN - UARK AELL)

22 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES

22 RSB R EMEMARK

2017 2016
2017 5§ 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBTTT
Payables for staff related costs FE B TABRARL A 122,152 233,606
Payables for transportation and FEASTiE 8 SR AR P A =2
insurance expenses 37,404 39,610
Payables for interest expenses JERT A B R 2 2,936 4,102
Payables for construction and purchase EENBEYE
of property, plant and equipment [R5 K =8t K
and land use rights 4 b {5h PR A FE AN R 39,073 39,565
Deposits from sub-contractors DEEI RES 38,078 59,824
Deposits from suppliers for contracts’ HEE S MR A RIRE
bidding and performance MEARS 244,571 235,609
Amounts due to the Controlling JE - 22 A B R B 2 EL A2 1) )
Shareholder and the companies under NEIFIRE (K1)
his control (Note (i) 3,071 3,290
Others HAth 38,158 27,025
Financial liabilities measured R SR ANET B HY
at amortised cost SHaE 525,443 642,631
Payables for miscellaneous taxes RS HERS 34,995 7,937
Derivative financial instruments: TESRTA -
— held as cash flow hedging —FHERESREL
instruments (Notes 29(d)(i) & (e)) T B (f5#290)0) % (e)) 13 24,954
— other derivatives (Notes 29(d)(ii) & (e)) —HTAT A
(H1aE 29()H) 5 () 6,332 41,802
Provision for outstanding legal claims FEMNEERERE 25,023 21,649
591,806 738,973
Note: Kiat -
(i) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have 0] ZEBEEA  TstERERETE
no fixed terms of repayment. ERUR o

Except for amounts of RMB4.1 million at 31 December 2017
(31 December 2016: RMB5.8 million), all of the accrued
expenses and other payables are expected to be settled or

BriR2017F 12 A31 HMWARK41H
E(2016F12H31H : AR%5.8
BEIT)MWSEIN - MEREGHXR
HAi B REAB R —FRBFESIR
B R ERIIRERKEE -

recognised in profit or loss within one year or are repayable on
demand.
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(BrREEAEIN - UARBRELRL)

23 BANK LOANS 23 RITER

(@ The Group’s short-term bank loans are analysed as @ AEENEHRITERSTHE
follows: K
2017 2016
2017 F 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

RSB - BE M
AR A A Ko - S {8 PR

Secured by property, plant and
equipment and land use rights
of the Group (Note 23(c)) VESRIR (B2 23 () 300,000 667,000

Guaranteed by a company under S22 AR IS R A2 oIl Y
the control of the Controlling NEER
Shareholder 1,032,000 1,243,000

Secured by property, plant and ST AR A SR A I Y R B AY
equipment and land use rights W BEREER

of and guaranteed by a T Hb(FE AR &
company under the control R S R AR ER 12
of the Controlling Shareholder EOMNEIEELPS 400,000 -
Unguaranteed and unsecured YRR K R 250,000 1,350,000
1,982,000 3,260,000
Add: current portion of long-term n: REAERITEFRAVEDER
bank loans (Note 23(b)) 2o (K123 (b)) 240,000 300,000
2,222,000 3,560,000

The Group’s long-term bank loans are analysed as

AEBNRHBRITERD T

follows: T
2017 2016
2017 5 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AREET T

Secured by property, plant and UAREENDE  BEX

equipment and land use rights SR DA K -t (5P PR
of the Group (Note 23(c)) VERRIR (M7 23 () 961,551 300,000
Less: current portion of long-term B REIIRITE A BN ES
bank loans (Note 23(a)) 2L (K123 (a) (240,000) (300,000)

721,551 =
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(BrREEHAIN - UARK AELL)

23 BANK LOANS (continued)

(b)

The Group’s long-term bank loans are analysed as
follows: (continued)

The Group’s long-term bank loans are repayable as
follows:

Within 1 year or on demand —FRYIZENK
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFENR

After 2 years but within 3 years MERB=FR

At 31 December 2017, the aggregate carrying value of
the property, plant and equipment and land use rights
pledged for the Group’s bank loans is RMB1,050.9
million (31 December 2016: RMB661.5 million).

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s banking facilities
amounted to RMB2,991.6 million (31 December 2016:
RMB3,830.0 million) were utilised to the extent of
RMB2,943.6 million (31 December 2016: RMB3,280.0
million).

Certain of the Group’s bank loans are subject to the
fulfillment of covenants commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the loans would become
payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in Note
29(b). At 31 December 2017, none of the covenants
relating to the bank loans had been breached (31
December 2016: None).

(b)

23 RITEXR(E)

AREBHNRBBITERD TN
T: (&)

REBHRPBTERNER
BT

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARETIT
240,000 300,000
480,000 =
241,551 =
961,551 300,000

R2017F12 A31H A%
ErIRITERE KA -
TS B A% 4 DA Je = Hb {5 FR A Y
RIEEEAARK1,0009E8
L(2016 12 H31H : AR

e —

661.5BBIT) °

R2017F12 A31H » RNEEH
BITMEBARK29016EH8
JL(2016F 12 A31 H : AR
3,830.088T) ' EBAARK
2,943.6 HET(2016 5 12 A 31
H: AR¥KS32800FET) °

AEEWNS TRITER—RA
ERNRSRBEIIINERR
R HRER A AEE - AKX
EEERRE - AIARERE
BER AEBTHEERS
BTEAELH  AEETER
HESRABRMNE —THFERN
B 5£29(b) © 72017 FF 12 A 31
B BiEERTMERITER
ARANRZE(2016F12 8318 :
&) o
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24

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

On 10 April 2013 (the “Adoption Date”), the directors of the
Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) as a mean of rewarding and retaining certain
employees of the Group and to attract suitable personnel for
further development with the Group. A trust has been set up
for the purpose of administering the Share Award Scheme.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the trust may purchase
shares in the Company from the Stock Exchange with cash
contributed by the Group, and to hold such shares until they
are vested.

The directors of the Company may, from time to time, at its
sole and absolute discretion, select any employee of the Group
(other than those classes of employees specifically excluded
as stated in the Share Award Scheme) for participation
in the Share Award Scheme and grant such number of
awarded shares to any selected employee of the Group at nil
consideration. The directors of the Company are entitled to
impose any conditions (including a period of continued service
within the Group after the award) with respect to the vesting of
the awarded shares.

The Share Award Scheme came into effect on the Adoption
Date, and shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the tenth
anniversary date of the Adoption Date; and (i) such date
of early termination as determined by the directors of the
Company.

24

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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24 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 24 DIRAZEERS (&)
(continued)
Details of the shares held under the Share Award Scheme are & (D S B =T EF AR MR T -

set out below:

2017 2016
20175 2016
No. of shares Value No. of shares Value
RBHE BE RH%E A
’000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB'000
TR ARETR TR ARETT
At 1 January and 31 December W1A1BR12A31H 587 210 587 210
For the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no ordinary HZE2017F K2016F 12 A31 HIEF
shares held under the Share Award Scheme were awarded to E - BERERDEREFE Y
or vested by any employee of the Group. BRETAEBESSNGE -

25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 25 AHMBRRRANRAE
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@ Movements of current taxation in the consolidated @ AHYTBEAARLRAEENETE
statement of financial position are as follows: BEINN -
2017 2016
2017 2016 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Income tax payable at 1 January ®1 A1 BREREEER 205,086 229,214
Exchange adjustments PE =& 1,841 1,748
Provision for income tax on the F AT E AT

estimated taxable profits for KPS B

the year (Note 7(a)) K1zt 7(@) 32,364 63,537
Income tax paid during the year FERNDFFER (27,763) (89,413

Income tax payable at 31 December A 12 A 31 B tFE FTEE 211,528 205,086
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25 [INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 25 SR BERRERANAER (&)
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(o) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: b) EBERRECEHRBEEENARE:
The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities RE G AR R FE R A IR HE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial MIAEERBBENEKIBD K
position and the movements during the year are as FAEEIT :
follows:

Depreciation
allowances
in excess
of the
related
depreciation,
and government Remeasurement
grants and Impairment of the
related loss fair value of
depreciation on frade derivative
Unused 2EEE and other  Provision for financial
tax ik Write  receivables warrantiesand  instruments
losses  FERRE down of 23R legal claims EifitE
Deferred tax arising from: ABR  OREARE  inventores  EAENEM RER  fiEeRIE Total
RTIIR AR NEERE WAFE  DEEfE FEHA HEFE iEZERE  MOAER it

RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMBI000
AEBTL  ARRTR ARBTR ARRTR ARETR ARETR ARETR

At1 January 2016 I016E1A1H 109,174 35,362 2013 131,643 55,09 4314 337,591
Exchange adjusiments EfEE 4,584 - - (187) 200 - 4507
(Cherged) credted o the RARERRD(1R)/

consolidated statement A7)

of proft or oss (Note 7(3) (36,498 (7.516) 629 81,940 11,067 2,338 52,960
Chargedto reserves (Note 10(b) RERIR A 100) = = - - - (3,02) (3,020)
At 31 December 2016 RN16E12A81A 18210 21,83 2,642 213446 66,362 3,632 392,128
Exchange adjustments B 1422 - - (145) 43 - 1,720
(Cherged) creted o the RARERRR (MR)/

consolidated statement A b 78)

of proft or loss (Note 7(a)) (44410) (6,27 (1,079) 1,72 1,714 (7.889) 50,821
Charged o resenves (Vote 10(b) EEETA (K 100) - - - - - (3,928) (3928)

At 31 December 2017 RonE12A518 35,222 21,599 1,963 331,022 68,519 (7,584) 450,341
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25 [INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(©)

25 EHPBRRRANAES (&)

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets and liabilities (€
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position:
Deferred tax assets recognised RE PSR R R A
in the consolidated statement ERRIELETRIBEE
of financial position
Deferred tax liabilities recognised RE P ISAR R R A
in the consolidated statement ERNELHRIBEAE
of financial position
Deferred tax assets not recognised (d)

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(s), the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of unused tax losses and deductible
temporary differences arising from certain subsidiaries
of the Group of RMB806.4 million at 31 December 2017
(81 December 2016: RMB1,056.2 million), as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity. Except for the amount of
RMB416.1 million which will not expire under the relevant
tax legislation, the remaining unused tax losses at 31
December 2017 will expire on or before 31 December
2037.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2017, temporary differences relating
to the retained profits of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC amounted to RMB2,733.1 million
(81 December 2016: RMB2,889.6 million), of which no
deferred tax liabilities in respect of the tax that would
be payable on the distribution of these profits was
provided as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it
is probable that such profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

B AR R ARER AR AT

HIBEENK BN :
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
454,312 396,655
(3,971) (4,527)
450,341 392,128

RERELERIBE E

RIRMIRE 2(s) FRE I 25T BUR -
AREBWAF2017F12 31 H
BEASEETHERAREERN
2R BY) FA 78 5 48 K AT R B
=5 AR 806.4H & JT(2016
F12A31H: AR #1,056.2
BEL) BRELCHEEE R
ERE@EnBaliEzRER
R ARZRA] A FE R B A E A
NS BARNEE - BRAR
¥ 416.1 BB T T2 EF B
EETER - SR IR 2017 F 12
A31 BRI ARG EBER
2037412 A 31 B LARIfE °

AERIRIERIARE

MR2017F12 A31H - K
SER BRI E DA
RBFENEREZBAARE
2,733.1 B &L (2016 F 12 A 31
H: AR#¥28806HET) &
RS o IR & 5 AE e
<74 T AY IR E 7 18 B 15 1 T
I S P NN B2 ] A
BARMKERR  MEEE
EZSMNEA TSR A &R
RIEDIR
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26

PROVISION FOR WARRANTIES

At 1 January R =
Exchange adjustments bE 5 3R EE
Additional provisions made BT ERIMNE
Provisions utilised EEREE

At 31 December M®12A31H

Less: amounts included as current
liabilities at the end of the
reporting period

Under the terms of the Group’s construction contracts with its
customers, the Group will rectify any defects arising within one
to five years from the date of completion of the construction
contracts, as required by industry regulations in respective
jurisdictions and depending on the terms negotiated with each
customer. Provision is therefore made for the best estimate of
the expected settlement under these construction contracts
in respect of construction contracts completed within one
to five years prior to the end of the reporting period. The
amount of provision takes into account the Group’s recent
claim experience and is only made where a warranty claim is
probable.

o mEMREEE
mBEBERANERE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEAEIN - UARBRELRL)

26 RIEEE

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 £
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
273,429 223,279
741 (6,442)
91,196 104,765
(55,971) (48,173)
309,395 273,429
(52,277) (42,671)
257,118 230,758

REASEEARFITVHRZEAR
R ARERSRENE FAER
MITERBIFTRE MR T RBER PR
BHGR  EEEMREESRTT
MWEHRE—ERFRNELARE -
b BB BRERR— 2R FR
TERMZEARMBRBEZFEELER
MIRRAEE RN REGFT MR - &
BB RAREIRNRRER
WAENA AT BEHRRIE B RAFHE ©
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27 EBXR - HERBRE
(@  Movements in components of equity () HERRAERER D HYE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REBHEFERSHEKILD
balances of each component of the Group’s B9 BT K2 BR 4% 45 o5 O T AR S0
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated EHERBERT - FHEF
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in SR HAR AN A B A 51 4 2 4B AR
the Company’s individual components of equity between o EE B FIBFI T

the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

Shares
held
under
share
award
Share Share scheme Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium  RERHEE reserve loss Total
e kita®  EAERG ESiGfE ZitEE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARBTT  ARETR  AR¥TT  ARBTR ARETR
(Note 27(c) ~ (Note 27(d)f)) ~ (Note 27(a)il)  (Note 27(c)v))
(Witong)  (Wtemop)  (Waenom)  (Wzana)

At1 January 2016 Ha01651 A1 A 2EH 519,723 574,047 (210) (28,463) (56,242) 1,008,805

Changes in equity for 2016: 20162 EX4E :

Loss for the year EnEE - = = = (3,149 (3,149
Other comprehensive income ~~ Eft2 @& - - - 65,287 - 65,287
Totel comprehensiveincome 2 EiE#E - - - 65,287 (3,149) 62,138
At 31 December 2016 2016512731 A28 519,723 574,047 (210) 36,824 (69,391) 1,070,993
At1 January 2017 RAOTE1R1R 519728 574047 (210) %824 (59301) 1070993

Changes in equity for 2017: 20172 %45

Loss for the year ERElE - - - - (16,399) (16,399)
Other comprehensive income~~ Eft2 @& - - - (64,538) - (64,538)
Total comprehengive income 2 ENALE - - - (64,538) (16,399) (80,937)

At 31 December 2017 R 12831 B2tk 519,723 574,047 (10) (21,114) (75,790) 990,056
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b)

(©)

Dividends (o) BB

)

(i)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i)
Company attributable to the year

The directors of the Company do not recommend
the payment of a dividend for the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: HK$NIl).

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i)
Company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year

No final dividend in respect of the previous financial
year has been approved during the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: HK$NIl).

=]
[

(BrREEAEIN - UARBRELRL)

27 BX RERRE(E)

BEREANENAAT
PRBE

RATESEZDIKTE
ZE2017F 12 A31HIEEF
FEH A% B (2016 4F : =8
TT) e

BEN E—MBEENRE
NARBRREE - 2R
AN HEE SORA

REZE 2017 F 12 A31 H
WiEHL ER R E—BEE
[ /) K B % B (2016 4F -
TEIL) °

Share capital © R
()  lIssued share capital: () BETRA:
2017 2016
2017 2016
No. of shares No. of shares
RAEE RDEE
’000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
TR AR%®TZR TH ARETT
Ordinary shares, LR 28T
issued and fully paid: RER
At 1 January and W1A1BR
31 December 12A31H 6,208,734 519,723 6,208,734 519,723
(i) At 31 December 2017, 587,000 ordinary shares i) M2017%F12H31H » &

are held by the Company under the Share Award
Scheme (31 December 2016: 587,000 ordinary
shares) (see Note 24).

N AIRIEAR (0 2B A 8IS
6587,0001% &A% (2016
%12 A31H : 587,000 %
LTimAR) (RHMIaE24) o
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by Section 34 of the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Shares held under share award scheme

The amount represents the consideration paid for
shares held under the Share Award Scheme.

Other reserve

The other reserve represents (i) the aggregate
carrying value of non-controlling interests
acquired by the Group in excess of the total
considerations paid; (ii) the surplus/deficit of the
carrying values of the controlling equity interests
in subsidiaries under common control disposed
of over the considerations received; (iii) the
difference between the carrying values of the
controlling equity interests in subsidiaries acquired
and the considerations paid under the Group’s
reorganisation completed in 2010; and (iv) the
difference between the carrying value of the net
assets acquired and the consideration paid for the
acquisition of a business under common control in
2012.

27 BX RERRE(E)

(@

EHENMEEREH

(i)

(i)

(iii)

B iniRR

FARMNEERZHASE
B AREFE 22 (1961 4
BE=IEER - EERE k(B
71) 5B B4 KEEE o

R 7 M RIS T BR
3

%R RIRAR R D 22t
SR AR STTHNRE -

o fih 5

HAth 45 () AN =B Pk
BB FEIE IR i o AR R 3B
B ERENEEE: ()B
& 2 AR I B A A
RIERR IR BRI ERD
WRER RS EAL (i)
FIT U i B B8 1 A B0 122 AR AR
REREEEREASER
2010 F TR EAR TS BIMK
BzZEHER: kiR
2012 F YIS RIEHI 2
AT FEERMER
TRAREZENEE -
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

PRC statutory reserves

In accordance with the articles of association of the
subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC,
these subsidiaries are required to set up certain
statutory reserves, which are non-distributable.
The appropriation to these reserves is at discretion
of the directors of the respective subsidiaries.
The PRC statutory reserves can only be utilised
for predetermined means upon approval by the
relevant authority.

In addition, pursuant to the relevant PRC
regulations, with effect on 1 January 2012, a
reserve for production safety is required to be
set up and to be appropriated at a fixed rate
on the revenue of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC. The reserve can be utilised
for expenses or capital expenditures incurred in
connection with production safety.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations into
the presentation currency. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(v).

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective
portion of the cumulative net change in the fair
value of hedging instruments used in cash flow
hedges in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for cash flow hedges in Note 2(g).

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEAEIN - UARBRELRL)

27 BX RERRE(E)

(@

EEEE R B R (F)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

HEEE R

RIBA K BN B LA
Y /B8 X B Y 4B 4 = A2 AR
A EMEBARIARL
H T AR DK 85 E
o MZEREND RS
EMBARINEEBIER
E e PEDEAERBENB
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B e
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] ANEERPEKA
L) EEVNEIVEE AN R a4t
HE LB 2 EE
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(€)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for equity shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher equity shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose,
the Group defines adjusted net debt as total debt (which
includes bank loans and trade and bills payables) plus
unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash and cash
equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components
of equity other than amounts recognised in equity
relating to cash flow hedges, less unaccrued proposed
dividends.

During 2017, the Group’s strategy was to maintain
the adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at an acceptable
level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to equity
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.

27 BX RERRE(E)

(e)

BARER

AEEEREANTERERER
REREFEBEFBEELH6
N BEEHAEBEERMR
B EEERRKE -2 RS
BRAEBERARSHELER
B RAR A [0 3 K 4 H b | 25 4
FAE RN -

AEEESR L E Mma M EE
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K ARIE 2 EES T - WA
BRRNZEHE NG BIED
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ARELEHBFEHEER
WERAEEEBHEEARERE -
FEME  NEEREEAE
FERRAES (A eRRT
ERURESENRRENR
1B IFERFHBURALE. - BIRE®
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 27 BX - RERKRE(E)
(e) Capital management (continued) e BAREEE)
The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 R2017 4 Kk2016F 12 A31H
December 2017 and 2016 was as follows: B 7R & [ A4S R B R (E TS LA R
=T

2017 2016

2017 2016 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Current liabilities: MENAE :
Trade and bills payables B HENTLENEE 3,314,858 4,080,981
Bank loans RITER 2,222,000 3,560,000
5,536,858 7,640,981
Non-current liabilities: JEREAE
Bank loans SRITEF 721,551 -
Total debt BIETS 6,258,409 7,640,981
Less: cash on hand and in bank o FEEIRE MIRTTER (1,805,591) (2,362,694)
Adjusted net debt RARFER 4,452,818 5,278,287
Total equity “arEns 3,198,266 3,007,653
Less: hedging reserve R B (1,221) 8,760
Adjusted capital RGN 3,197,045 3,016,413
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio KR FEKE G AL = 139% 175%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are AR E SR E AR B A 7 &

subject to externally imposed capital requirements. ZHNEBHENNEY B ANAR FE PR )
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 ERBEHIRS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed Brid bt E 0 IS Tk A E0 D W ER AR
elsewhere in these financial statements, the material related S REHRIN  AREBRFRNE L ME
party transactions entered into by the Group during the year N R NG

are set out below.

(@) Transactions with the Controlling Shareholder and the @ HEERBEREEIEZESNAF
companies under his control X5
2017 2016
2017 2016 F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Revenue from contract work BRI A 223 179
Purchase of raw materials BB EME 1,277 2,611
Net increase in non-interest P EAEsE 5 R B TR
bearing advances received SATRIENNFEE
from related parties 1,125 —
Further details on guarantees provided by a related party — 2R AN E EIR T E IR
for the Group’s bank loans are disclosed in Note 23(a). AR E— S BN 23@) W E °
(b)  Key management personnel remuneration b) EEZEEABHD
Remuneration for key management personnel of the REBTESIE A SAEEN -
Group, including amounts paid to the directors of the BERKESHENAANTES
Company as disclosed in Note 8, is as follows: SSH AT ¢
2017 2016
2017 5 20164F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Short-term employee benefits HHEERA 8,246 1,960

Retirement schemes contributions RORGTEIH IR 241 205
8,487 2,165

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note HiMeEesN [ETRA|(R

6(0)). M5t 6(0)) ©
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29

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks

arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to gross
amount due from customers for contract work, trade and
other receivables and derivative financial instruments
entered into for hedging purposes. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposure to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of the gross amount due from customers for
contract work and trade and other receivables other
than derivative financial instruments, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers and debtors.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s and debtor’s
past history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information specific
to the customers and debtors as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customers
and debtors operate. The Group generally requires
customers and debtors to settle progress billings and
retentions receivable in accordance with contracted
terms and other debts in accordance with agreements.
Trade receivables for contract work are considered
past due once billings have been made. Retention
terms of one to five years may be granted to customers
and debtors for retentions receivable. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers and
debtors. The Group entered into a credit insurance
scheme with an insurance company to insure against
the recoverablility of certain trade receivables arising
from the Group’s overseas construction contracts. At 31
December 2017, 1.0% (31 December 2016: 10.7%) of
trade and bills receivables are insured under this credit
insurance scheme.

29
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Transactions involving derivative financial instruments
are entered into with either banks or recognised futures
exchange in the PRC, and with whom the Group has
signed settlement arrangements. Given the high credit
standing of the banks and futures exchange in the PRC,
the management of the Group does not expect any
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer or
debtor rather than the industry or country in which the
customers and debtors operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the
Group has significant exposure to individual customers
and debtors. At 31 December 2017 and 2016, there
are no significant concentrations of credit risk through
exposure to individual customers.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group
as set out in Note 31(a), the Group does not provide
any other guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
gross exposure to credit risk arising from gross amount
due from customers for contract work and trade and
other receivables are set out in Notes 16, 17 and 18.
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The treasury function is centrally managed by the
Group, which includes the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

The following tables detail the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on current rates at the end of the reporting period) and
the earliest dates the Group can be required to pay:

Within

1 year or on

demand

—FR

HEEX

RMB’000

ARETR

Trade and bills payables BoRNTRENEE 3,314,858
Accrued expenses and BB A 2 AR

other payables measured R RE MR
at amortised cost 525,443
Bank loans RITER 2,293,866

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEAEIN - UARBRELRL)

29 B¥EREEREMIBENAAE
B (&)

(b)

mEE MR

AEBEREEMBEN - &£
RAEZERNEMRENER
EXmEERREHEFR KK
BHRRRERERERDE
EHREREETEERENE
o AERE GRS TR
BREEESREEBIRETMR
MAKERERE  AnEERE
HERPRDESCHE -

TRALRAKEFEITES B
BERTESREBER RS Y
WEEBENSRTARZIEA -
TERERFERRERE (B
EERA R XRFTHEAFER
TRk (fin B IF B H ) LB S
IR A E B RRITH ) RAK
EFENRHKFBHEDL

2017
2017%
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARABRR SR

Morethan ~ More than Carrying
1yearbut  2years but amount
less than less than at 31
2 years 3 years December
BB-F BBMF Total #12A31H
BORME  BIRZE &t HEREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARBTRT ARETR ARETR
- - 3,314,858 3,314,858
- - 525,443 525,443
497,5% 244,559 3,036,019 2,943,551
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29 B¥EREEREMIENAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)
(o)  Liquidity risk (continued) () mBIETRER(Z)
2017
2017 &

Contractual undiscounted cash (outflow)/inflow

BERERRE (RH) R

More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1 year or on less than less than
demand 2 years 5 years
—FR BB-F BEmEF Total
REETR BORME BOREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT ARBT T ARYT T
Derivatives settled gross: EHEETETAEE
Forward foreign exchange ~ #{ERE&REL M T A
contracts held as cash EHINES K
flow hedging instruments (#3229 -
(Note 29(d)(i)):
- outflow — R (47,855) - - (47,855)
— inflow —mA 49,508 - - 49,508
Other forward foreign HREINEA L
exchange contracts (B 2900)) -
(Note 29(dii):
- outflow — i (1,243,184) (596,282) (286,240) (2,125,706)
- inflow —mA 1,285,575 603,436 285,816 2,174,827
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29 B¥EREEREMIBENAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (E)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) b) REERERE)
2016
20164
Contractual
undiscounted

cash outflow
within 1 Carrying
year oron amount at 31
demand December

—FRNHE
ERMERAR MN12A31H
BRI e M HRREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARBFIT

Trade and bills payables Z DN RN 25 4,080,981 4,080,981
Accrued expenses and RS ARG S R EST

other payables measured S EE AR

at amortised cost 642,631 642,631
Bank loans BITERK 3,634,556 3,560,000

8,358,168 8,283,612
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 20 BiREREEREMIAENAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)

(o)  Liquidity risk (continued) () mBIETRER(Z)

2016
2016 4F

Contractual undiscounted cash (outflow)/inflow
BRREEES (RL),/RA

More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 year but
1 year or on less than less than
demand 2 years 5 years
—FR iR —F FHRAME Total
FESK BORmE BORAE 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Derivatives settled gross: EHEETETAEE
Forward foreign exchange  #{EE &R T AR
contracts held as cash BEINERD
flow hedging instruments (#3229 -
(Note 29(d)(i)):
~ outfiow — et (422,044) (30,628) - (461,672)
- inflow A 408,821 41,093 = 449,914
Other forward foreign HREINEA L
exchange contracts (BtaE29a)i)
(Note 29(d)i):
- outflow it (1,309,411) (474,955) (59,821) (1,844,187)
- inflow —mA 1,299,514 480,873 61,331 1,841,718
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29 UHEBEERSMIANAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (E)
() Interest rate risk © FIERER
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from REE R F R @R EERE 5T
interest bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at BEE - ZZ B H X K & F 7
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to RBELNEESD RIS RSB
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk XEEREMNEXRREALE
respectively. BRI =R o
() Interest rate profile (i) FIEER
The following table details the interest rate profile of TRAFMAEBEERR
the Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting HEHIRA AR AERE
period:
2017 2016
20175 2016 F
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
ERFI= BRA=
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Fixed rate borrowings: BEEFEEE :
Bank loans PITER 4.19% 1,872,000 417% 2,260,000
Variable rate borrowings:  FEHFIREE :
Bank loans RITER 4.04% 1,071,551 411% 1,300,000
Total borrowings BELE 2,943,551 3,560,000
Fixed rate borrowings BEEFZEEREE
as a percentage of AR

total borrowings 64% 63%
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group’s profit after tax and the Group’s retained
profits of approximately RMB9.1 million (2016:
approximately RMB11.1 million).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied
to remeasure those non-derivative financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk at the end of
the reporting period. The impact on the Group’s
profit after tax and retained profits is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expenses of such
a change in interest rates. The sensitivity analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2016.

29 B¥EREEREMIENAAE
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d@

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
revenue from and costs incurred for contract work,
purchases of imported materials which give rise to
receivables, payables, inter-company payables and
receivables within the Group, and cash balances that
are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
USD, Euro, SGD, AUD, GBP, CHF, Japanese Yen
(“JPY”), Indonesia Rupiah (‘IDR”), CAD, RMB, HKS$,
Qatar Riyal (“QAR”), Vietnamese Dong (“VND”) and RUB.

A significant portion of the Group’s business is overseas
construction contracts, and these contracts are
generally settled in currencies other than RMB. The
Group uses forward foreign exchange contracts to
minimise its exposure to currency risk arising therefrom.

(i) Forecast transactions

The Group hedges portion of its estimated foreign
currency exposure in respect of highly probable
forecast revenue from overseas construction
contracts.

The Group uses forward foreign exchange
contracts to hedge its currency risk and classifies
these as cash flow hedges. At 31 December 2017,
RMB49.5 million (31 December 2016: RMB408.8
million) of the forward foreign exchange contracts
have maturities of less than one year after the end
of the reporting period, and RMBNIl (31 December
2016: RMB41.1 million) of the forward foreign
exchange contracts have maturities of more than
one year after the end of the reporting period.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEAEIN - UARBRELRL)
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Forecast transactions (continued)

At 31 December 2017, the Group had forward
foreign exchange contracts hedging forecast
transactions with a net fair value of RMB1.6 million
(81 December 2016: a net negative fair value of
RMB11.7 million) recognised as derivative financial
instruments.

Recognised assets and liabilities

Change in the fair value of forward foreign
exchange contracts that economically hedge
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies is recognised in profit or loss
(see Note 6(a)). At 31 December 2017, the net
fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts
used by the Group as economic hedges of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies was a gain of RMB48.2 million
(31 December 2016: a loss of RMB2.8 million)
recognised as derivative financial instruments.

In respect of the remaining receivables and
payables denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate, the Group ensures that the net exposure
is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary
to address short-term imbalances.
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(iii)

Exposure to currency risk

The following tables detail the Group’s exposure
at the end of the reporting period to currency
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in RMB, translated using
the spot rates at the end of the reporting period.
Differences resulting from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations into the
Group’s presentation currency are excluded.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEAEIN - UARBRELRL)

29 MREREERERTIANOAE

B (#&)

o) EERRE)

(iii)

&SR0 W A R

TRFAMAKERN RS
RAESZERERABNIEE
BRI EETHEND R
REERRBELENER
Rk BL2FME - FR
R H 2R TIAARES|
™ ERARNHERRNE
EEXBE - I HEFER
HEIN R P BERR S
AEBEMZ2IERELN
EE o

217



218 YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5 %65 3 7 B = (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEHAIN - UARK AELL)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29 B¥EREEREMIENAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) o) E¥RkRE)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) EHBRHEWERRE(Z)
017
07§
USD Ewo SGD AUD GBP CHF JPY DR CAD RMB HKS QAR VND RUB

4R
R En MR Bn RE REER A7 ORMR NeAn ARM  En AR MEE A6
RMBO00 RMBO0O RMB'000 RMBOO0 RMB'00 RMBO0O RMBO00 RMB'000 RMBO00 RMB'00 RMB'000 RMBOO0 RMB'000 RMB00
ARE ARM ARE ARE AR® AR® ARM AR® ARM ARM ARM ARM AR® ARE
fn i 1 2 fi o fn o fi f o fn T T2 TR

Gross amount due from BlEPERTESE

customers for contract work 11,441 - - - - - - - - - - - -
Trade and bils receivables ZEENGRENZE 8651 23815 57600 205619 112120 67349 6599 16,182 15,077 - 0643 178%2 3459 22,768
Deposits, prepeyments e BRAR

and other receivables Bl 162636 7032 50 1701 11,005 175557 6,601 - 1B - - - -
Cash on hand and n benk WEARIGER W o oM  ome - - - 2 o - - . -
Trade and il payables BAENGRENZE @18 - - - By - - - - - - - -
Accrued expenses and FEsti s R 3t

other payables (166,086) - - - - (2% - - - (1,033,319 - - - -

Gross exposure rsing fom BETEERAR
recognised assets and iabiities ELRRREE 878517 31692 58666 297,727 123807 200958 13200 16,162 15362(1,033.20) 407358 17832 34505 22,768

Notional amounts offovd e
foregn exchange cortracts NERNEZEE
used as eoonomic hetdges (19612) (20924 (58003) (42231) (112,120) (38280) - - - - - - - -
Net exposure asing fom BETEERAR

recognisecl assets and lbilties ErHERTE 658905 10768 661 255496 11687 201673 13200 16,162 15,362(1,033205) 407358 17832 34595 22768
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29 B¥EREEREMIBENAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) NG =D)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) o) EERRE)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) EBRHEWERE(Z)
2016
N16E
UD Ewo SGD AD GBP CHF KWD BD CAD RMB  HKS QAR WD MW
Hak  B# ] SRED

A OBmOWNET BT RE RDED BOR BME neAm ARR B MR #RE %
RVBO0O RMBOOD RMBO0D RVBOOD RMBOOD RVBOND RMBOOD RWBOO RVBOXO RMBTOD RMBO0D RVBO0D RMBO) RVBOND
ARE AR ARE ARE ARR ARE ARE ARE ARR ARE ARE OARE ARR ARE
fi i 1o Tt ot i Tt Tt o fio i T Tt i

Gross amount due from BYEFEEIRER

customers for coniract wark 3,006 - 219 9 - - - - - - - - -
Trade and bils receivables SRENGRENEE 101166 53130 143838 336732 33048 63600 7860 14307 7512 - 102998 18786 78404 27457
Deposits, prepayments e BAR

and other receivables =0l e 190,369 - - - 10667 177846 - - - - 19 - - -
Cash on hand and in bark TERARGAR 19574 13318 005 148 812 - - - 109 1 - - - -
Trade and bils payables LERMTRENZE (2609 (6% - - B p®y) - - -y - - -
Accrued expenses and Festi s R (3t

other payables (143,990) - - - (183878 - - - - (1,054.285) - - - -

Gross exposure rsing fom BETARRAR
recognised assets and fablities EthEREE 90724 58802 190002 338909 221019 288514 7860 14307 49040(1064171) 325,118 18786 78404 27467

Notional amouns of onward BlEmEL R
foreign exchenge confacts IERDEZEE
used as economic hedges (174,729 (29,068 (3978 (46,881) (159,182) - - - - - - - - (1672
Net exposre arsing fom BETARRAR

recognisecl assets and libilties EENERTE 81899 29734 186024 203028 61837 288514 7860 14307 49040(1064171) B8 18786 78404 2578

(iv) Sensitivity analysis (ivy BRESR
The following table indicates the instantaneous TNRERIANEBRNRRE
change in the Group’s profit after tax and retained HASR A B KRB Y I
profits that would arise if foreign exchange rates xRNz B HEFmEs) -
to which the Group has significant exposure at the RE& P E fib n] 2 & 2 B
end of the reporting period had changed at that EHRFIE  KEBERH
date, assuming all other risk variables remained 1& F)E R AR 88 A1) &9 BN B

constant. BEE) o
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29 B¥EREEREMIENAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) o) EERkREE)
(iv) Sensitivity analysis (continued) (iv) BBESHEZ)
2017 2016
20175 20164

Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)in Increase/  (decrease) in
(decrease)  profit after (decrease) profit after
in foreign tax and in in foreign tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits

HNEER B& A SRR BEME
A/ (TR  RRBANE LA/ (TR)  REBAE

i,/ () /()

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT

usD ETT 10% 55,403 10% 70,883
(10%) (55,403) (10%) (70,883)

Euro B 10% 917 10% 2,527
(10%) (917) (10%) (2,527)

SGD s T 5% 28 10% 15,812
(5%) (28) (10%) (15,812)

AUD SRTT 10% 21,7117 15% 37,361
(10%) (21,717) (15%) (37,361)

GBP g 10% 1,001 15% 7,883
(10%) (1,001) (15%) (7,883)

CHF TSR 10% 17,142 10% 20,274
(10%) (17,142) (10%) (20,274)

JPY BT 10% 1,122 TNEA NiERA
(10%) (1,122) i NERA

IDR ENfe &Lt 10% 1,375 T TEHA
(10%) (1,375) TEA TEHA

CAD mneArT 5% 654 15% 6,253
(5%) (654) (15%) (6,253)

RVB AR 10% (103,321) 10% (88,784)
(10%) 103,321 (10%) 88,784

HK$ BIT 10% 36,179 10% 27,635

(10%) (36,179) (10%) (27,635)
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29 B¥EREEREMIBENAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) o EBERkRE)
(iv) Sensitivity analysis (continued) (iv)y BBEDRE)
2017 2016
20175 2016 F
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)in Increase/  (decrease) in
(decrease)  profit after (decrease) profit after
in foreign tax and in in foreign tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits
SMEEE =R B H HNES RE RETNE
tH(TR) RRARSFE LA (TR) REBME
#m,/ (fd) 1,/ G
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFT
QAR FIERF 5 10% 1,516 10% 2,011
(10%) (1,516) (10%) (2,011)
VND WEE 10% 2,941 5% 3,332
(10%) (2,941) (5%) (3,332
RUB B 20% 3,870 35% 6,653
(20%) (3,870) (35%) (6,653)
KWD RS MR TiEA TiEA 10% 668
~ER T EA (10%) (668)
BHD EMRERR TEA ~EA 10% 1,216
TiEA TiEA (10%) (1,216)
MYR EREESTH TEA ~ER 10% 2,192
TiEA TiEA (10%) 2,192)
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(iv) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit/loss after tax and retained profits
measured in their respective functional currencies,
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period for presentation
puUrposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
remeasure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables within the
Group which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The sensitivity analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2016.

29

BEERE

B(#)

(d)

B,

(iv)

EREMIANARE

(&)

BRESW (E)

EREFNDMERES
HEAREERASEHN
DREEBAENHIEN
B/ ERRRE T EE A
R g HiEmSHRE
%msz I RARE
2515

RE DI RRE AN
%ETW E) N
AEEFEMSAEER
& AR ONEE BB B
SHMIE  BIEAERA
2 18 SR A F I BE B EE LA
MEKTENAEBERAR]
IR SR R UL - AT
TEEBBREEINEBRD
M mERAAEEK 27
EMmMEERZERE - BUX
ED T TR 2016 F 48R
R EEAEELT o
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)  Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEAEIN - UARBRELRL)

29 MEBERBREERERIANDAE
B (&)

€ 2AEEE

() BAREEHEHERE
ERAR

R EIEER

TREFR IR B R B 53R
HEEEARAAEER
B EHRNBEHEEAR
AEARESRTACA
REBEIBRR=LAE
BER - 2EZHEETE
P ABUB R AT BRI I
EREFEATRBIERE

e FIBMBME:E®E
REE @ AR
(BNFtEHHIE B
FEEXBELR
M5 ERREHE
HEFENAIAE
Mo

o  F2EMKE:EAF
2B ABE (B
A% ERENR]
BREB)FENR
nEBE BETg®E
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% A BUR B AR BER
BmEBENE A
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s FIEMRE:ERE
AT A B RE AK
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)  Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (continued)

Recurring fair value

measurements:
BEQALEETE
Assets EE
Derivative financial instruments: {74 &gt T E :
— Forward foreign exchange — REINES A
contracts
Liabilities =l
Derivative financial instruments: $744€@ T E :
— Forward foreign exchange —RENEE XY

contracts

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
2. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end
of the reporting period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts in Level 2 is determined by discounting
the contractual forward price and deducting the
current spot rate. The discount rate used is derived
from the PRC government yield curve as at the end
of the reporting period plus an adequate constant
credit spread.

29

BHEEAREEREMTIANDAE
B5(#)

(€)

NABEE(E)

(i)

BARREHENEME
ERARE)

Fair value measurements
categorised into Level 2

DERF22BN A AEETE

2017 2016

2017 &§ 2016 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREFIT
56,155 52,236
6,345 66,756

REZE2017F12 A31 H
IHFE HBERF1ER
FoBZHEMER - A&
EHBER AT AR BER
B4 B AR SRR SRS A
RETEAEITHER -

RE2BN AR BEFE
PiT B B 17 (B 510 B B A 2K
=

ZHINER OO AR EER
(F2fE) RBBMEAAR
EHHEERLNRRE
EXRGE - BRETAR
W& R BB E i
BRINRHEEEZRES -
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 29 UHEBEERSMIANAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (E)
(e)  Fair value measurement (continued) e 2AnEET=E)
(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (i) HFEBOAARBEERIEHS
carried at other than fair value MEERARHAOAEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial 2017 F K 2016 6 12 A
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are 31 B - REBEIRAK A B
not materially different from their fair values at 31 SHA AN BR A @t T A BR
December 2017 and 2016. HEEAALBEIL RS
REER -
30 COMMITMENTS 30 &g
(@) Capital commitments @ BEAEIE
At 31 December 2017, the outstanding capital R2017F12 8318 - RAGHET
commitments of the Group not provided for in the BREP W RBEZ NEE XK
consolidated financial statements were as follows: BB ERNEIEMT :
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Commitments in respect BT REF UK
of buildings, machinery HEER R R YRR
and equipment
— Contracted for — B4 12,612 6,923
— Authorised but not —EEEERETL
contracted for 15,547 23,600

28,159 30,5623
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30 COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)  Operating lease commitments

At 31 December 2017, the total future minimum lease
payments of the Group under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:

Within 1 year —FNKN
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRIERFA

The Group leases certain plant, buildings, motor vehicles
and other equipment under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of one to five years,
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
lease rentals.

31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@) Guarantees issued

At 31 December 2017, the Group has issued the
following guarantees:

Guarantees for construction EEASRIIKE  BA
contracts’ bidding, performance KRB & R
and retentions

30 RIE(E)
(o) REFHERE
MR2017F12 A31 8 » XEER

B A REH G 2 HE R R R
R EB AW

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARBTT

4,625 2,688
547 671
5,172 3,359

AEERBELEHEMEES TR
B BF REREMEE - ZFH
E—RNTHHIEF - UMARE
RESHERMBRIKEEEE -
BEREe s AEE -

31 FHAREE

@ BELER

MR2017%12 A31H » ZEER
BEHTAIER

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

1,780,253 2,156,126
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31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(@)

Guarantees issued (continued)

As of the end of the reporting period, the directors of

the Company do not consider it probable that a claim

in excess of the provision for warranties provided by the

Group will be made against the Group under any of the

guarantees. The maximum liability of the Group as of the

end of the reporting period under the guarantees issued

is the amount disclosed above.

Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims

U

In December 2009, Shenyang Yuanda and
Yuanda India, both wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Group, jointly received a notice that they are
being sued by a former sub-contractor in India in
respect of Shenyang Yuanda’s and Yuanda India’s
non-performance of the terms as stipulated in the
sub-contract agreement entered into between
Shenyang Yuanda and this former sub-contractor.
Shenyang Yuanda has made a counterclaim
against this sub-contractor for non-performance
of the sub-contract agreement. On 30 September
2016, a first instance court judgement has been
rendered in favour of Shenyang Yuanda and
Yuanda India and pursuant to which the former
sub-contractor shall pay to Shenyang Yuanda and
Yuanda India damages in the amount of INR81.8
million (equivalent to approximately RMB8.4
million) plus accrued interest.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEAEIN - UARBRELRL)

31 HREEE)

(@)

BEELERE)

RBEMR NARAREERR
5 AT BE IR R IR AT ] B R ¥
AEERLBEANKEMEHR
MREBENHR  AKER
BEPRRBRBEES B LEFROR

BEEALEXFARENEER -

=

BRZEBRRNAAAE

@

R2009F 128 « A& E
MRE=EHBRRILEER
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A EBEEEEERR D
BEmEEERARIER
AN EITERSE AL AT
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TR ERIR B 5 © &
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TC) DIFEET RIS ©
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31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)  Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims (continued)

U

(i)

(continued)

The former sub-contractor and Shenyang Yuanda
and Yuanda India later on filed appeals and as
at the date of these financial statements, the
lawsuit is under reviewed before the Hon’ble
High Court of Delhi. If Shenyang Yuanda and
Yuanda India are found to be liable, the total
expected monetary compensation may amount
to approximately INR1,410.8 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB143.9 million) plus accrued
interest. Shenyang Yuanda and Yuanda India deny
any liability in respect of the appeal filed by the
former sub-contractor and, based on legal advice,
the directors of the Company do not believe it is
probable that the court will find against Shenyang
Yuanda and/or Yuanda India. No provision has
therefore been made in respect of this claim.

In November 2014, Yuanda Canada, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group, received a notice
that it is being counterclaimed by a contractor
in Canada alleging damages due to additional
costs incurred for project delays caused by
Yuanda Canada and costs incurred in completing
and rectifying Yuanda Canada’s work. This
counterclaim is derived from a claim registered
by Yuanda Canada against the contractor in
respect of its non-payment of CAD2.9 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB15.1 million) for
the value of work performed by Yuanda Canada.
If Yuanda Canada is found to be liable, the total
expected monetary compensation may amount
to approximately CAD13.5 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB70.2 million) plus accrued
interest. Yuanda Canada continues to deny any
liability in respect of the counterclaim and, based
on legal advice, the directors of the Company
do not believe it is probable that the court will
find against Yuanda Canada. No provision had
therefore been made in respect of this claim.

31

HREE(E)

(b)

BRZRRRNVIRAEE)

(i)

(&)

It AT B 78 BB G iR K &
EERAE BN E5F
MR ZEHBHRER B
SFRALER = E Hon' bles
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MEERAEREAE £
= EHeEmERRE
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B (HERARE143.9
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R2014F11 8 A& E
2ENBARMEREK
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31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)  Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims (continued)

(i)

On 20 April 2016, Yuanda Russia, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, initiated an arbitration
proceeding against Rasen Stroy LLC (“Rasen
Stroy”), a contractor of Yuanda Russia, in the
arbitration tribunal in Moscow to demand payment
of the outstanding construction payable of USD6.5
million (equivalent to approximately RMB42.5
million) and apply for a protection order in relation
to letters of guarantee issued by Yuanda Russia
to Rasen Stroy. Rasen Stroy filed a counterclaim
against Yuanda Russia on 27 July 2016 claiming
for USD37.4 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB244.4 million).

In respect of Yuanda Russia’s claim, on 9
September 2016, the arbitration tribunal in
Moscow ruled that Rasen Stroy shall make
payment of an outstanding construction payable
of USD2.8 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB18.3 million) to Yuanda Russia and Yuanda
Russia’s application for a protection order in
relation to the letters of guarantee was dismissed.
In respect of Rasen Stroy’s counterclaim, on 5
October 2016, the arbitration tribunal in Moscow
ruled in favour of Rasen Stroy and that Yuanda
Russia shall pay 50% of the amount Rasen Stroy
claimed for, which is USD18.7 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB122.2 million).

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEHEIN - UARKB RERL)

31 HREEE)

b) BEERRROHAEEE)
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20164 A20H + &
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31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)  Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims (continued)

(i)

(continued)

Yuanda Russia disagrees with the above ruling
and filed an appeal against the ruling. The appeal
by Yuanda Russia was dismissed by the relevant
tribunal and the ruling that Yuanda Russia shall pay
50% of the amount Rasen Stroy claimed for was
maintained. Yuanda Russia later on filed a second
appeal. On 2 May 2017, the arbitration tribunal
in Moscow ruled in favour of Rasen Stroy and
that the claimed amount Yuanda Russia is liable
for was reduced to USD3.4 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB22.1 million). In June 2017,
Yuanda Russia and Rasen Stroy both filed further
appeals. In August 2017, the arbitration tribunal
in Moscow rejected the further appeals of Rasen
Story. As at the date of these financial statements,
Yuanda Russia continues to deny any liability in
respect of Rasen Stroy’s counterclaim and, based
on legal advice and taking into account of Yuanda
Russia’s financial position as at the end of the
reporting period, the directors of the Company do
not believe Yuanda Russia will incur material losses
in connection with this lawsuit, no provision has
therefore been made in respect of this lawsuit.

31
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31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims (continued)

(iv)  In addition to the lawsuits mentioned in Notes
31(b)(i) to 31(b)(iii), certain subsidiaries of the
Group are named defendants on other lawsuits or
arbitrations in respect of construction work carried
out by them. As at the date of these financial
statements, these lawsuits and arbitrations are
under reviewed before courts or arbitrators. If
these subsidiaries are found to be liable, the total
expected monetary compensation may amount
to approximately RMB245.5 million, the Group’s
bank deposits of RMB17.8 million at 31 December
2017 was frozen by courts for certain of these
lawsuits. Based on legal advices, the directors of
the Company do not believe it is probable that
the courts or arbitrators will find against these
subsidiaries of the Group on these lawsuits and
arbitrations.

Contingent compensation payable

In July 2016, it was reported that certain construction
materials supplied by the Group was found to contain
asbestos in two construction projects in Australia.
The Group is cooperating with relevant authorities on
investigation into the reason for the reported cases. As
at the date of these financial statements, asbestos was
not found in other projects constructed by the Group and
there was no related legal action against the Group in
Australia. As the investigation is yet to be completed and
claims against the Group from contractors have not been
quantified, the directors of the Company cannot reliably
estimate the repair cost and potential compensation for
projects found with asbestos. No provision in this regard
has therefore been made.

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEHEIN - UARKB RERL)
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32 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 32 AFABEANHBRREE
POSITION
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt ARET T AREFIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RHB R RRRE 2,000,019 42,071
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other TEAST R EAth FE IR
receivables 628 1,909,066
Cash on hand and in bank FERS RIEITER 1,558 1,558

2,186 1,910,624

Current liabilities REBEE

Accrued expenses and FETFE S & B Ath e A =X

other payables 1,012,149 881,702

Net current RE(BE) BEERE

(liabilities)/assets (1,009,963) 1,028,922
NET ASSETS FEE 990,056 1,070,993
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARRf#E 27

Share capital SN 519,723 519,723

Reserves e 470,333 551,270
TOTAL EQUITY R 990,056 1,070,993
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on EE2R 201843 A 29 Hilh & KX e

29 March 2018. Bt o
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33

34

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The directors of the Company consider the immediate and
ultimate holding company of the Company as at 31 December
2017 to be Best Outlook Limited, which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce financial
statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2017 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

IFRS 9, Financial instruments

BIRR B M S AERISE o5 - 2B T A

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

BIFR B s S HERIE 55 - K ELERLZHA

Amendments to IFRS 2, Share-based payment Classification
and measurement of share-based payment transactions

BRI S EERNE 25 2 BF] - RO - URO BEBRNZINE G895 RqAE
IFRIC 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

BRI G HRERBEEGREE 225  IMES G RAE

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments

33

34

BN G RERBL E@REE 28 - FHEE A0 THEEE

IFRS 16, Leases

BRI = ERIE165% - HE

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 cycle
EBR A 75 R £ 2B R 2015 4 3 2017 F A BRI F /2 204

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BrREEAEIN - UARBRELRL)

HERRRERAT

RABIEERR » ARAEINR2017512
A 31 Bz B RGRERARAER
BRAT - ETREE R A S
BXS o LB BRI HARALT
15 FR B B 75 Rk o

BZ2017F12831HILFEEHE
B R ERIERT ~ FTERAR
RETN BRI E

HELZHHRETIZAH  BFe
SFEREESEEME TEHE2017F
12 A 31 B IEF[E 8 R 4 R 2 BIl{E
F] - FETERIRRE  HUARH®SE
BTSN ERAN o sz S a] 2R R 2
ANEETRIEATEIE - BrladARE
EEE -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
AT B A
g2 1&

IR &S
HAR A 3

1 January 2018
201841 A1 H
1 January 2018
201841 H1H

1 January 2018
201841 H1H
1 January 2018
20181 A1 H
1 January 2019
201941 A1H
1 January 2019
201941 A1 H
1 January 2019
20191 A1 H
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34

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects of
the new standards which may have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements. Further details of the
expected impacts are discussed below.

IFRS 9, Financial instruments

IFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting
for financial instruments, IAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement. IFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement of financial
assets, including the measurement of impairment for financial
assets and hedge accounting. On the other hand, IFRS 9
incorporates without substantive changes the requirements
of IAS 39 for recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments and the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities. Expected impacts of the new requirements
on the Group’s financial statements are as follows:

34

BE2017F 12831 BLFEEH
B el R A RRROIEET ~ AT EAIR
RETRERNTE ()

AEBEHEZFERNER] - el %
AhBEBEENSEAAMELNT
£ BRIRLE - AEEDESIFER
T HEA] S A T B mEREK
EARE  FRHPENE—TFER
XA

BRI RELEREIW - EMTA

B R B 7% e 5 22 RIS 9 SR AS B ER 1T
MemITASTEEED  AEKE
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 34 EHZE2017F12831BILLFEECHE
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT B & R AE R HIEET ~ FETERI R
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 RIETRERNTE(E

DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued) BB B I s YE RS2 Q9% - R T A

(%)
(@) Classification and measurement (a) S HERE
IFRS 9 contains three principal classification BREEREEREIR S
categories for financial assets: measured at (1) REBEZATI=HEEHIE :
amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or MIRBIER ARG E - QRAR
loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value through other BEF=A5 AEBZ=E(FVTPL)
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) as follows: RQ@EAREBEEFERF AR

The classification for debt instruments is
determined based on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the asset. If a debt instrument is classified as
FVTOCI then interest revenue, impairments
and gains/losses on disposal will be
recognised in profit or loss.

For equity securities, the classification is
FVTPL regardless of the entity’s business
model. The only exception is if the equity
security is not held for trading and the
entity irrevocably elects to designate that
security as FVTOCI. If an equity security is
designated as FVTOCI then only dividend
income on that security will be recognised in
profit or loss. Gains, losses and impairments
on that security will be recognised in other
comprehensive income without recycling.
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 34 HZE2017F12A31BILFEECHE
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT 1B 1 R AERIBET ~ FRTERR
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 RETRERNEE(Z)
DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(a)

Classification and measurement (continued)

Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group
expects that its financial assets currently measured
at amortised cost and FVTPL will continue with their
respective classification and measurements upon the
adoption of IFRS 9.

The classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities under IFRS 9 are largely unchanged
from IAS 39, except that IFRS 9 requires the fair value
change of a financial liability designated at FVTPL that
is attributable to changes of that financial liability’s own
credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive
income (without reclassification to profit or loss).
The Group’s financial liabilities designated at FVTPL
are derivative financial instruments except for those
designated as hedging instruments. The fair value
change of these liabilities is not attributable to their own
credit risk and therefore this new requirement may not
have any impact on the Group on adoption of IFRS 9.
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment

The new impairment model in IFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in IAS 39 with an “expected credit
loss” model. Under the expected credit loss model, it
will no longer be necessary for a loss event to occur
before an impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an
entity is required to recognise and measure either a
12-month expected credit loss or a lifetime expected
credit loss, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. This new impairment model may result
in an earlier recognition of credit losses on the Group’s
trade receivables and other financial assets. However, a
more detailed analysis is required to determine the extent
of the impact.

Hedge accounting

IFRS 9 does not fundamentally change the requirements
relating to measuring and recognising ineffectiveness
under IAS 39. However, greater flexibility has been
introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting. The Group preliminarily assesses that its
current hedge relationships will qualify as continuing
hedges upon the adoption of IFRS 9 and therefore it
expects that the accounting for its hedging relationships
will not be significantly impacted.
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34

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. IFRS
15 will replace the existing revenue standards, IAS 18,
Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, and IAS 11, Construction contracts,
which specifies the accounting for revenue from construction
contracts.

The Group is currently assessing the impacts of adopting
IFRS 15 on its financial statements. Based on the preliminary
assessment, the Group has identified the following areas which
are likely to be affected:

(@) Satisfaction of performance obligations

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed
in Note 2(u). Currently, revenue arising from construction
contracts is recognised over time, whereas revenue from
the sale of goods and rendering of services is generally
recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership
have passed to the customers.
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(@) Satisfaction of performance obligations (continued)

Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the entity
satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control
of promised good or service to the customer. IFRS 15
identifies three situations in which an entity satisfies a
performance obligation and recognises revenue over
time:

(i) When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

(i)  When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in progress)
that the customer controls as the asset is created
or enhanced;

@iy~ When the entity’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the entity and
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not
fall into any of these 3 situations, then under IFRS 15
the entity recognises revenue for the sale of that good
or service at a single point in time, being when control
has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership
is only one of the indicators that will be considered in
determining when the transfer of control occurs.
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

(b)

Satisfaction of performance obligations (continued)

Further analysis is required to determine whether this
change in accounting policy may have a material impact
on the amounts reported by the Group in any given
financial reporting period.

Contract modifications

IFRS 15 introduces general guidance on contract
modifications and other changes in transaction price.
A contract modification is a change in the scope or
price (or both) of a contract that is approved by the
parties to the contract. The entity considers whether
a contract modification should be accounted for as a
separate contract. In the construction industry the Group
operates, typically a contract modification does not add
a distinct good or service to the existing contract and
hence, under IFRS 15, such modification will not be
accounted for as separate contract. This is similar to
current practice under IAS 11.
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(b)

Contract modifications (continued)

Currently, when the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, the Group recognised
revenue to the extent of contract costs incurred that
it is probable will be recoverable. Under IFRS 15,
contract modifications are required to be approved to
be recognised. If a change in the scope of the contract
has been approved where the corresponding price
undetermined, the underlying variable consideration
is estimated at either its expected value or most likely
amount and is only permitted to be included in revenue
to the extent that it is highly probable that the revenue
will not reverse. At the end of each reporting period, the
entity shall update the estimated transaction price to
represent circumstances at period end.

Approval for contract modifications and highly probable
that the revenue will not reverse are new threshold for
the contract modifications to be recognised once IFRS
15 is adopted, these new requirements will result in
the Group’s revenue from contract modifications being
recognised later under IFRS 15 than would have been
the case under IAS 11.
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34

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in Note 2(j), currently the Group classifies leases
into finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the
lease arrangements differently, depending on the classification
of the lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor
and others as the lessee.

IFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under a
lease. However, once IFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no
longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease
the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments and will
recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial
recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis over the
lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not
to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where
the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to be
recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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34

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which are
currently classified as operating leases. The application of the
new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in
both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the
expense recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the
period of the lease. As disclosed in Note 30(b), at 31 December
2017 the Group’s future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases amount to RMB5.6 million for
properties and other assets, with majority of which is payable
within one year after the end of the reporting period. The
adoption of IFRS 16 may not have a significant financial impact
to the Group.

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. Depending on whether the Group elects
to adopt the standard retrospectively or follow a modified
retrospective method of recognising a cumulative-effect
adjustment to the opening balance of equity at the date of
initial application, the Group may or may not need to restate
comparative information for any changes in accounting
resulting from the reassessment.

The Group has decided not to early adopt IFRS 16 in its 2018
consolidated financial statements.
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(B=BEHEHIN

Results
Revenue

Profit/(loss) from operations

Finances costs

Profit/(loss) before taxation

Income tax
Profit/(loss) for the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the
Company

Non-controlling interests

Profit/(loss) for the year

Assets and liabilities
Non-current assets

Current assets
Current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Non-current liabilities

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of
the Company

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

AR R EAL)

ES
CEL

gEFE/(B1R)

BATAE, (&18)
w5

FRFE/(BR)

ATALRER
ARFRR

=

EFE G S
FERHE/(BR)

EEREE
FRBEE

mBEE
nBAE

MEEEFE
BEERRPAR

FRBAE

FEE

BXRHE

A

e

AR BRI
G Eaak

B G 5

BRER

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
2017 2016 £ 20154 2014 £ 20134
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETRE ARETRT ARETRE ARETT ARETL
5,688,650 7,324,415 8,594,364 10,038,653 10,872,404
291,073 173,640 (168,395) 295,929 192,700
(232,801) (86,446) 1,107 (234,398) (160,019
58,272 87,194 (167,288) 61,531 32,681
27,457 (10,577) (443) (10,424) (5,133)
85,729 76,617 (167,731) 51,107 27,548
60,652 87,039 (192,257) 25,597 104,367
25,077 (10,422 24,526 25,510 (76,819)
85,729 76,617 (167,731) 51,107 27,548
1,672,104 1,716,027 1,728,283 1,635,986 1,664,416
9,809,008 11,463,726 12,610,538 12,804,657 12,270,108
7,300,206 9,936,815 10,817,304 10,521,672 9,592,913
2,508,802 1,526,911 1,793,234 2,282,985 2,677,195
4,180,906 3,242,938 3,521,517 3918971 4,341,611
982,640 235,285 478,458 130,697 234,875
3,198,266 3,007,653 3,043,059 3,788,274 4,106,736
519,723 519,723 519,723 519,723 519,723
2,817,332 2,633,717 2,658,041 3425653 3,781,681
3,337,055 3,153,440 3,177,764 3,945376 4,301,404
(138,789)  (145,787)  (134,705)  (157,102)  (194,668)
3,198,266 3,007,653 3,043,069 3,788,274 4,106,736
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